
 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

             
 

AMENDED 

AGENDA 
Board of Supervisors Room - County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards, Independence, California 
 

NOTICES TO THE PUBLIC:  (1) This meeting is accessible to the public both in person and, for convenience, via Zoom webinar. The Zoom webinar is accessible to the 
public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. The meeting may also be accessed by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 215-8782; 
(929) 205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. Anyone unable to attend the Board meeting in person who wishes to make either a general 
public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item may do so by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will 
call on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are limited to three minutes. Remote participation for members of the public is provided for convenience only. In 
the event that the remote participation connection malfunctions for any reason, the Board of Supervisors reserves the right to conduct the meeting without remote 
access. Regardless of remote access, written public comments, limited to 250 words or fewer, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at 
boardclerk@inyocounty.us. (2) In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the 
Clerk of the Board at (760) 878-0373 (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the 
Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 
54954.2).  (3) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 
72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, 
California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1). 

 

REGULAR MEETING 
September 24, 2024    

8:30 AM 
 

 1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s)  
Comments may be time-limited 

CLOSED SESSION   

  

  2) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); 
Inyo County Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace 
Officers Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement 
Administrators’ Association (LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County 
designated representatives – Administrative Officer Nate Greenberg, Deputy 
Personnel Director Keri Oney, County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Assistant 
County Counsel Christy Milovich, Auditor-Controller Amy Shepherd, and 
Assistant CAO Denelle Carrington. 

  
 

  3) Conference with Real Property Negotiators – Pursuant to paragraph (1) of 
subsection (b) of Government Code §54956.8 – Property: 233 E. Elm St., 
Bishop, CA 93514. Agency Negotiators: Nate Greenberg, Meaghan 
McCamman, Anna Scott, Jeff Thomson, John-Carl Vallejo, and Grace Weitz. 
Negotiating parties: Inyo County and Harry Bhakta. Under negotiation: price 
and terms of payment. 

 

 

 
 

 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS  •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY  

 

 
DAN TOTHEROH   •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I NG S LE Y  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NATE GREENBERG 
CO U NT Y ADM I NI ST R AT IV E O FF IC ER  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

DARCY ELLIS 
AS S T .  CLE RK  O F T HE  BO ARD  

 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

  
 

 4) Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation - Initiation of 
litigation pursuant to § 54956.9(d)(4): 1 case. 

  
 

  5) Public Employee Performance Evaluation – Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957 – Title: County Administrator. 

  
 

OPEN SESSION  
(With the exception of timed items, which cannot be heard prior to their scheduled time, all open-session items may be 
considered at any time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 

  

10 A.M. 6) 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 

  7) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law 
  

 

  8) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  9) County Department Reports 
  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

  

   

 10) Minutes from the September 10, 2024 Meeting 

  Clerk of the Board | Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 

Recommended Action:  
Approve the minutes from the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of 
September 10, 2024.  

  

   

 11) Support for Reconnecting Communities Grant and Resolution Authorizing 
Application Submittal 

  County Administrator | Elaine Kabala, Executive Director, Eastern Sierra Council of 
Governments 
 

Recommended Action:  
A) Adopt Resolution No. 2024-28, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of 

Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, Authorizing the Eastern 
Sierra Council of Governments to Submit an Application for the U.S. 
Department of Transportation Reconnecting Communities Pilot Program;" 
and  

B) Approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a letter of support for the 
grant application. 

  

   

 12) Authorization to Apply for Cybersecurity Grant 

  County Administrator - Emergency Services | Mikaela Torres 
 

Recommended Action:  
Approve submission of Inyo County's grant application for the FY 2024 State and 
Local Cybersecurity Grant Program (SLCGP), and authorize the County 
Administrative Officer to sign.   

 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

  

   

 13) Local Area Technical Assistance Grant Phase 2-A Contract with Onward 

  County Administrator | Scott Armstrong 
5 minutes 
 

Recommended Action:             
Ratify and approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Inyo 
Networks, Inc., doing business as Onward, of Rancho Cucamonga, CA, for the 
provision of detailed network engineering design services as part of the LATA 
Grant (Phase 2-A) in an amount not to exceed $220,000 for the period of 
September 24, 2024 through January 25, 2025, and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign.            
 

 14) Approval of Renewal of Land Mobile Radio Site Leases on Cerro Gordo 

  County Administrator - Information Services | Noam Shendar 
 

Recommended Action:  
Approve the amendments to the leases between the County of Inyo and 
Mountain Investments, extending the leases by 10 years to August 2034, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the Chief 
Information Officer to sign.  

  

   

 15) Approval of Purchase of Land Mobile Radios for the Sheriff's Office 

  County Administrator - Information Services | Noam Shendar 
 

Recommended Action:  
Authorize two purchase orders in an amount not to exceed $155,000 and 
$65,000, respectively, payable to BlackPoint LLC of Gardnerville, NV, for in-
vehicle and handheld radios (respectively) for the Sheriff's Office.  

  

   

 16) Electrical Cost Sharing Agreement with Caltrans for the Installation, 
Operations, Maintenance, Repair, and Replacement of Meadow Farms 
Pedestrian Lighting 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action:  
Approve the cost sharing agreement between the County of Inyo and the 
Department of Transportation of California (Caltrans) for the electrical sharing 
costs of 47 pedestrian scale lights on U.S. 395 from See Vee Lane to 0.1 mile 
north of Barlow Lane, and authorize the Chairperson to sign.  

  

   

 17) Amendment No. 2 to the Contract between the County of Inyo and Stantec 
(formerly Cardno, Inc.) of Zephyr Cove, NV 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action:  
Approve Amendment No. 2 to County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 146.1 
between the County of Inyo and Stantec (formerly Cardno, Inc.) of Zephyr Cove, 
NV for the provision of Environmental and Engineering Services, changing the 
end date of the contract from October 31, 2024 to December 31, 2025 for the 
Lone Pine Town Streets Project, and authorize the Chairperson to sign.  

 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

  

   

 18) Accuracy of an Estimate for Sidewalk Railing Fabrication and Installation in 
Lone Pine 

  Public Works - Road Department | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action:  
Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20394, find that the estimated expense 
of the work to be done within the County right-of-way at the intersection of 
Jackson Street and Bush Street in Lone Pine is less than $25,000 and authorize 
the Road Commissioner to enter into a contract to perform the work.  

 

   

  
19) 

 
Annual Special Event Permit for the Big Pine High School Homecoming 
Parade 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action:  
Approve the temporary closure of School Street in Big Pine with detours between 
the hours 8 a.m. and 10 a.m. on October 5, 2024 for the purpose of the Big Pine 
Annual High School Homecoming Parade.  

  

   

 20) Temporary Closure of Tinnemaha Road/Old Highway 395 for Sierra Nevada 
Bighorn Sheep Demographic Studies 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action:  
Approve the temporary closure of Tinnemaha Road (Old 395) approximately 6 
miles south of Aberdeen and Hogback Road with detours between U.S. 395 and 
Black Rock Springs Road from October 15-22, 2024 for the purpose of the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife's annual Sierra Bighorn Sheep 
monitoring program.   

  

   

 21) 2024 Patrol and Controlled Substance Annual Operating and Financial Plan 

  Sheriff | Mike Atkins 
 

Recommended Action:  
A) Approve Agreement 20-LE-11051360-040, Modification No. 8 between 

the County of Inyo and U.S. Forest Service for the provision of controlled 
substance operations for a funding amount of up to $10,000 for the period 
of October 1, 2024, through December 31, 2025, contingent upon the 
Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget; 

B) Approve Agreement 20-LE-11051360-040, Modification No. 8 between 
the County of Inyo and U.S. Forest Service for the provision of forest 
service patrols in funding amount up to $18,918 for October 1, 2024, 
through December 31, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the 
Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget; and  

C) Authorize the Sheriff or designee to sign. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

  

REGULAR AGENDA  

  

   

 22) Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Final Board Approved Budget 

  County Administrator | Nate Greenberg 
20 minutes  

 
Recommended Action:             

A) Conduct a review and discussion of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Final 
Approved Budget, including but not limited to: 
1. Those changes to the County Administrative Officer (CAO) 

Recommended Budget that were directed by the Board to be included 
in the Final Budget; and 

2. Any other changes which may be made as a result of today's 
discussion; 

B) Adopt the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 as recommended by the County 
Administrator and as amended, and as directed on September 10, 2024; 
and 

C) Approve Resolution No. 2024-29, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of 
Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, Adopting a Final Budget 
for Fiscal Year 2024-2025," and authorize the Chairperson to sign.            

  

   

 23) Contract between the County of Inyo and Eastern Sierra Engineering for 
the Lone Pine Americans with Disabilities Act Sidewalk Project  

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
5 minutes 
 

Recommended Action:   
A) Ratify and approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and 

Eastern Sierra Engineering of Reno, NV for the provision of material 
testing services in an amount not to exceed $109,750 for the period of 
May 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s 
approval of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign; and 

B) Authorize staff to pay last fiscal year's (2023/2024) outstanding invoices 
from Eastern Sierra Engineering dated June 5, 2024, in the amount of 
$15,461.10, and July 8, 2024, in the amount of $31,921.76.            

  

   

 24) Management and Non-Represented Resolution Regarding Changes to 
Health Insurance 

  County Administrator - Personnel | Keri Oney 
2 minutes 
 

Recommended Action:             
Approve Resolution No. 2024-30 titled, "A Resolution of the Board of 
Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, Setting Certain Salary and/or 
Terms of Conditions of Employment for Management and Non-Represented 
Employees Employed in the Several Offices or Institutions of the County of Inyo, 
which shall Amend Resolution No. 2024-05," and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign.             

 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

  

   

 25) Appointed Officials Resolution Regarding Changes to Health Insurance 

  County Administrator - Personnel | Keri Oney 
2 minutes 
 

Recommended Action:             
Approve Resolution No. 2024-31 titled, "A Resolution of the Board of 
Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, Amending Resolution 2006-06 
And Setting Salary and/or Terms of Conditions of Employment for Appointed 
Officials Employed in the Several Offices or Institutions of the County of Inyo," 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign.             

 

 

 
25A) 

 
Retiree Resolution Regarding Changes to Health Benefits 

  County Administrator - Personnel | Keri Oney 
2 minutes 
 

Recommended Action:             
Approve Resolution No. 2024-32, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of 
Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, Rescinding and Replacing 
Resolutions 2003-23 and 2014-31, and Fixing the Employer's Contribution for 
Employees and the Employer's Contribution for Annuitants at the Same 
Amounts," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  

ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT & REPORTS   

  

  26) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  27) Board Member and Staff Reports 
Receive updates on recent or upcoming meetings and projects 

  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

            
ADDENDUM 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-725  

 

Minutes from the September 10, 2024 Meeting 
Clerk of the Board 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Clerk of the Board Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the minutes from the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of September 10, 2024. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, 
www.inyocounty.us. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no financial impact associated with this agenda item. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board may request changes or edits, or decline to approve but the latter option is not 
recommended. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
Not Applicable 
 
APPROVALS: 
Hayley Carter Created/Initiated - 9/17/2024 
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 9/17/2024 
 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft September 10, 2024 Minutes 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  1                                                                                                                                     September 10, 2024       

     

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

 

 
September 10, 2024 
  
The Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, met in regular session at the hour of 8:31 a.m., on 
September 10, 2024, in the Board of Supervisors Room, County Administrative Center, Independence, with the following 
Supervisors present: Chairperson Matt Kingsley, presiding, Scott Marcellin, Jeff Griffiths, Jennifer Roeser and Trina Orrill. 
Also present: County Administrator Nate Greenberg, Assistant County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, and Assistant Clerk of 
the Board Darcy Ellis.  
 
Closed Session  
Public Comment 
 

The Chairperson asked for public comment related to closed session items and there was no 
one wishing to speak. 

Closed Session  
 

Chairperson Kingsley recessed open session at 8:31 a.m. to convene in closed session with 
all Board members present to discuss the following item(s): No. 2 Conference with Real 
Property Negotiators – Pursuant to paragraph (1) of subsection (b) of Government 
Code §54956.8 – Property: Bishop, Independence, and Lone Pine Landfills. Agency 
Negotiators: Nate Greenberg, John-Carl Vallejo, Greg James. Negotiating parties: Inyo 
County and Los Angeles Department of Water and Power. Under negotiation: price and 
terms of payment; No. 3 Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to 
Government Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County 
Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association 
(ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). 
Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – Administrative Officer 
Nate Greenberg, Deputy Personnel Director Keri Oney, County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, 
Assistant County Counsel Christy Milovich, Auditor-Controller Amy Shepherd, and Assistant 
CAO Denelle Carrington; and No. 4 Public Employee Performance Evaluation – Pursuant 
to Government Code §54957 – Title: County Administrator. 
 

Open Session 
 

Chairperson Kingsley recessed closed session and reconvened the meeting in open session 
at 9:07 a.m. with all Board members present. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Chairperson Kingsley led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Report on Closed 
Session 
 

County Counsel Vallejo reported that the Board met under Item Nos. 2 and 3 and said that 
no action was taken during closed session that is required to be reported. Vallejo said the 
Board would reconvene later in the meeting for further discussion. 
 

Public Comment  
 

The Chairperson asked for public comment related to items not calendared on the agenda 
and public comment was received from Jen Roeser, Joe Lattrell, Jose Garcia (who 
presented an event flier), and Courtnee Johansen and her students from Big Pine 
Elementary School.  
 

Clerk of the Board – 
Approval of Minutes 
 

Moved by Supervisor Marcellin and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to approve the minutes 
from the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of September 3, 2024. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

CAO-Emergency 
Services – 
Amended FEMA-
Funded Unmanned 
Aircraft System Policy  

Moved by Supervisor Marcellin and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to approve the 
proposed amendment to the County's Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)-
Funded Unmanned Aircraft System (UAS) Policy and Protocol for Inyo County, covering 
additional requirements necessary for acquiring and operating UAS equipment. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  2                                                                                                                                     September 10, 2024       

CAO-Emergency 
Services – 
Community Navigator 
Program Grant Sub-
Award Agreement 
 

Moved by Supervisor Marcellin and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to approve the sub-
award grant agreement with Coalitions and Collaboratives, Inc. for $149,996 to be used for 
capacity-building, and authorize the County Administrative Officer to sign. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

Public Works-Parks & 
Rec. – Diaz Lake 
Clean CA Grant Bid 
Package 
 

Moved by Supervisor Marcellin and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to approve the plans 
and specifications for the Diaz Lake Welcoming and Beautification Project and authorize the 
Parks and Recreation Manager to advertise the project. Motion carried unanimously.  
 

Public Works – 
Runway 12-30 Surface 
Treatment Project  

Moved by Supervisor Marcellin and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to 
A) Award the contract for the Runway 12-30 Surface Treatment Project to American 

Road Maintenance of Tuscon, AZ as the successful bidder;  
B) Approve the construction contract between the County of Inyo and American Road 

Maintenance of Tuscon, AZ in the amount of $722,250, contingent upon the Board's 
approval of the 2024-2025 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign; 

C) Authorize the Public Works Director to execute all other project contract documents, 
including contract change orders, to the extent permitted by Public Contract Code 
Section 20142 and other applicable laws; and 

D) Approve the revised Plan & Specifications for the project with modifications that 
arose during bidding. 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Public Works – 
Snow Plow Purchase  
 

Moved by Supervisor Marcellin and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to: 
 

A) Ratify and approve Amendment No. 3 to the agreement between the County of Inyo 
and Armstrong Consultants, whose name has changed to Lochner, of Grand 
Junction, CO, increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $222,372, 
contingent upon the Board's approval of the 2024-2025 Budget, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign; 

B) Declare Wausau Equipment of New Berlin, WI the successful bidder for the 
procurement of an airport snow plow vehicle per the bids received on July 17, 2024; 
and 

C) Authorize the purchase of one airport snow removal vehicle from Wausau Equipment 
of New Berlin, WI, at an amount not to exceed $396,775. 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Public Works – 
CA Indian Day Road 
Closures 
 

Moved by Supervisor Marcellin and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to approve road 
closures on North See Vee, Diaz, and North Barlow Lanes with detours between the hours 7 
a.m. and 12 p.m. on Friday, September 27, 2024, for the purpose of the annual Bishop 
Paiute Tribe and Toiyabe Indian Health Project California Indian Day Parade/Run. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

Public Works – 
Big Pine Animal 
Shelter Project N.O.C./ 
Reso. No. 2024-27 
 

The agenda item was moved from the Consent Agenda to the Regular Agenda for further 
discussion. Supervisor Roeser asked for and received confirmation that certain issues with 
the project have been remedied to the satisfaction of Building & Safety and the Sheriff’s 
Office. 
 
Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve Resolution 
No. 2024-27, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of 
California Authorizing the Recording of a Notice of Completion for the Big Pine Animal 
Shelter Project," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously.  
 

CAO – 
FY 24-25 CAO 
Recommended Budget 
Public Hearing  
 

Chairperson Kingsley opened the public hearing at 9:33 a.m. 
 
CAO Greenberg introduced the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 budget and recognized the following 
Budget Team members and contributors: Assistant CAO Denelle Carrington, Auditor-
Controller Amy Shepherd, Assistant Personnel Director Keri Oney, Deputy CAO Meaghan 
McCamman, and Administrative Analyst Miquela Beall.  
 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  3                                                                                                                                     September 10, 2024       

Assistant CAO Carrington provided a detailed overview of the budget, which highlighted 
County revenues and expenses and presented visual comparisons of General Fund versus 
non-General Fund monies. CAO Greenberg followed-up with information on employee costs 
and personnel actions expected to affect the budget as well as Funded Deferred 
Maintenance and Parks Capital Improvement projects.  
 
Auditor-Controller Shepherd provided information on Reserves, Contingencies, and Fund 
Balance monies and the Budget Team collectively provided recommendations and answered 
Board member questions. Auditor-Controller Shepherd certified the Fund Balance at 
$5,173,633 – $973,633 in excess of the amount used to balance the budget. 
 

Recess/Reconvene 
 

Chairperson Kingsley recessed the hearing at 10:37 a.m. and reconvened the hearing at 
10:51 a.m. with all Board members present. 
 

CAO – 
FY 24-25 CAO 
Recommended Budget 
Public Hearing 
(Continued) 
 

Chairperson Kingsley asked if there were any departments wishing to provide feedback 
and/or Board members with questions on the proposed individual budgets. Additional 
information was provided to the Board by the following department heads: District Attorney 
Tom Hardy, Environmental Health Director Jerry Oser, Health and Human Services Director 
Anna Scott, Planning Director Cathreen Richards, Public Works Director Mike Errante, 
Sheriff Stephanie Rennie, and Probation Chief Jeff Thomson. 
 
Chairperson Kingsley asked that it be on record that he feels money from Contingencies 
should be used to start abatement proceedings out of the Code Enforcement Office (in 
Planning) to demonstrate that the County is serious about property owners fixing code 
violations. 
 
Board members requested that the following topics be agendized at a future date for 
additional discussion: Emergency Management Services Systems, Commercial Air Service 
Subsidy, a comprehensive assessment of the County Parks facilities, and the future of the 
Juvenile Hall Facility and its potential uses.  
 
Chairperson Kingsley asked if there was anyone from the public who would like to provide 
comment and there was no one wishing to speak. 
 
The Board continued discussion with staff on the best use of the excess Fund Balance and 
ultimately decided to allocate the monies in the following manner: $400,000 to Accumulated 
Capital Outlay for facility projects; $500,000 to Contingencies; and $73,633 to Parks 
Improvements.  
 
Supervisor Griffiths recommended the Board make a concerted effort to spend money from 
Contingencies when needed, noting that most years it goes untouched. 
 
The Chairperson closed the public hearing at 12:08 p.m. 
 
 Moved by Supervisor Marcellin and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to: 

A) Adopt the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget as recommended by the County 
Administrator; 

B) Prescribe the following allocation for use of the Excess Fund Balance: $400,000 to 
Accumulated Capital Outlay, $500,000 to Contingencies, with the remaining balance 
of $73,633 going to the Parks Fund; and 

C) Set adoption of the Final Budget for September 24, 2024. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Recess/Reconvene 
 

The Chairperson recessed the regular meeting for a break at 12:10 p.m. and reconvened the 
meeting at 1:08 p.m. with all Board members present. 
 

Board of Supervisors – 
Response to 23-24 
Grand Jury Report 
 

CAO Greenberg introduced the item and Chairperson Kingsley asked if there was anyone 
who would like to provide input on the Grand Jury Report.  
 
Discussion ensued between Board members, the CAO, and Treasurer Tax-Collector Alisha 
McMurtrie regarding the jury’s report on “Problematic Implementation of the New Property 
Tax Management System” between the County and contractor Aumentum, which currently 
provides a program utilized by the Assessor, the Tax Collector, and the Auditor’s offices.  



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  4                                                                                                                                     September 10, 2024       

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve the 
response to the 2023-2024 Grand Jury Final Report and accompanying transmittal letter and 
authorize the County Administrator to sign the letter. Motion carried unanimously. 
           

Personnel – 
CCOA Side Letter 
 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to approve the Side 
Letter between the Inyo County Correctional Officers Association and the County of Inyo, to 
be implemented starting in the pay period beginning November 21, 2024, with benefit 
changes effective January 1, 2025. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Department Reports  
 

HHS Director Anna Scott said that Public Health will offer roaming flu clinics during the month 
of October throughout the County and provided a handout with additional information. Scott 
also gave a status report on the recent implementation of the Mobile Crisis Unit and thanked 
local law enforcement agencies for their support. 

Public Works Director Mike Errante said the department would be hosting the State of 
California Local Transportation Commission meeting September 25-26.  

Treasurer Tax-Collector Alisha McMurtrie announced her retirement, thanked Board 
members and constituents, and said her final day will be on September 30. Board members 
expressed gratitude for her 26 years of dedicated service to the County of Inyo. 

Public Comment  
 

Chairperson Kingsley asked for public comment related to items not calendared on the 
agenda and comment was received from Linda Chaplin and Chelsea Benbrook. 
 

Board Member & Staff 
Reports 
 

Supervisor Roeser said she attended the Emergency Medical Care Committee meeting and 
thanked Public Works Director Mike Errante for hosting the upcoming CTC meeting.  

Supervisor Marcellin said he had been working with the Bishop Tribal Council regarding 
traffic safety issues on the Bishop Reservation and thanked CAO Greenberg, Deputy Public 
Works Director Shannon Platt, and Road Maintenance Supervisor Dale Renfro for assistance 
in working to set up road safety features to slow down traffic through that area. 

Supervisor Orrill said she attended a Drug Court graduation. 

Recess/Reconvene 
 

The Chairperson recessed the regular meeting to return to closed session at 2:09 p.m. and 
reconvened the meeting in open session at 2:13 p.m. with all Board members present. 
 

Report on Closed 
Session 
 

No action was taken during closed session that is required to be reported. 

Adjournment The Chairperson adjourned the meeting at 2:14 p.m. to 8:30 a.m. Tuesday, September 24, 
2024, in the County Administrative Center in Independence.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                    Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
 
Attest:   N A T E  G R E E N B E R G  
         C l e r k  o f  t h e  B o a r d  
               
            
   
 
 by:       _____________________________________ 
  Darcy Ellis, Assistant  



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-719  

 

Support for Reconnecting Communities Grant and 
Resolution Authorizing Application Submittal 

County Administrator 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Elaine Kabala, Executive Director, Eastern Sierra 
Council of Governments 

Elaine Kabala, Executive Director, Eastern Sierra 
Council of Governments 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) Adopt Resolution No. 2024-28, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State 
of California, Authorizing the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments to Submit an Application for the 
U.S. Department of Transportation Reconnecting Communities Pilot Program;" and  
B) approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a letter of support for the grant application. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Caltrans District 9 has approached the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments (ESCOG) to serve a 
regional partner to prepare an application for the U.S. Department of Transportation Reconnecting 
Communities funding opportunity, which is the federal counterpart to the grant prepared last year under 
the Caltrans Highways-to-Boulevards program. The proposed scope would be reduced to reflect the 
investment Caltrans has made to advance the scope developed in the 2023 Highways-to-Boulevards 
submission to develop a Project Initiation Document (PID) funded for the 395 corridor to plan for 
infrastructure improvements.  
 
The goal of the application would be to expand community engagement in developing a vision Eastern 
Sierra corridor to plan for infrastructure improvements, pedestrian safety improvements, and 
placemaking features and get community plans shovel-ready for implementation. The scope of work 
would building upon the phase of planning and engineering each community has already completed. The 
application would not include scope for environmental review or construction. The application is due on 
September 30th, 2024 and represents the last opportunity to apply under this funding program.  
 
Description of Proposed Project Scope 
 
The scope is broadly proposed as the following: 
 
Phase 1: Consolidate already completed plans into a single corridor plan. Staff has been working with 
Caltrans and regional partners to develop a library of existing planning documents and previous visioning 
efforts.  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

• Confirm public support for the concepts proposed in past planning efforts. The ESCOG and its 
consultants will work with partner agencies to confirm the adopted plans are still relevant and 
desirable.  

• Identify planning gaps for achieving the broader corridor vision. Several communities do not have 
plans in place documenting the communities’ concerns regarding Highway 395 and a vision to 
mitigate those concerns in their central business district. These communities include 
Independence, Big Pine, and some Tribal communities. 

• Identify common themes for incremental project implementation. Analysis of existing plans has 
identified similar traffic-calming solutions identified in each community, including standardized 
gateway signage for each community with a consistent Eastern Sierra branding, consistent 
speeds coming into communities, enhanced crosswalk visibility, streetscaping, and street trees. 

 
Phase 2: Conduct planning studies for identified gaps. Several communities do not have individual 
downtown community or specific plans in place documenting the community’s vision. The ESCOG and 
its consultants will work with partner agencies to develop a vision specific to the scope of this funding 
opportunity to address Main Street enhancements.  
 
This phase can also be leveraged to implement identified next steps from other planning efforts if desired 
by the community in Phase 1 without committing to full design and engineering. For instance, the Bishop 
Area Access and Circulation Feasibility Study includes recommendations for an alternative truck route 
and improved City circulation which can be advanced by determining community support for a preferred 
alignment and conducting initial feasibility studies.  
 
Phase 3: Prepare design / engineering for projects identified for near-term and long-term implementation. 
This phase will be informed by the Community Readiness Phase and Phase 1 to determine the status of 
existing planning projects and development of an implementation plan including budget requirements, 
required maintenance agreements between Caltrans and local jurisdictions, an implementation schedule 
aligning with Caltrans PID development schedules.  
 
If ESCOG and D9 are awarded U.S. Department of Transportation funding, the moneys would be used 
to hire supplement ESCOG capacity with a dedicated project manager, and contracting consultants to 
refine and advance select ideas previously explored and identified in the many planning studies and 
bring them to a “shovel-ready” status. The scope of the project will be developed in partnership with 
member agency planning and LTC staff. 
 
Partner Agency Support 
ESCOG has received preliminary support to submit the application from all jurisdictions and will continue 
to work with them to define the scope of work. Subsequent Resolutions of Authority will be required from 
Member Agencies to receive funding. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
No budget impacts are associated with the preparation of the grant application. Caltrans has generously 
provided staff to assist with writing and coordinating the application.  
 
Staff estimate a grant budget of approximately $1.5 million. The project will require a 20% match. The 
local matching share may consist partially or entirely of in-kind contributions, as well as contributions 
from the private sector and/or philanthropic organizations. Matching funds can include cost-share as 
appropriate. In limited circumstances, DOT may establish “pre-award” authority for recipients. If 
approved by DOT, pre-award authority permits DOT, after a grant agreement is executed, to pay for or 
count toward cost sharing or matching funds specific, identified costs that were incurred before that grant 
agreement was executed.  
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Do not attempt to apply for the grant. If the Inyo County Board of Supervisors provides direction to apply 
for the grant, ESCOG will work with Caltrans staff and member agency partners to prepare an 
application. Submittal and receipt of funds will require an authorizing resolution from the ESCOG Board, 
as well as each Member Agency.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Mono County; City of Bishop; Town of Mammoth Lakes; Caltrans District 9 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
Thriving Communities I Community Revitalization Through Effective Planning 
Thriving Communities I Community Supporting Infrastructure Improvements 
Thriving Communities I Enhanced Health, Social, & Senior Services 
Thriving Communities I Quality Parks and Recreation Amenitiies 
Thriving Communities I Enhanced Transportation Services 
Economic Enhancement I Local Businesses, Organizations, and Workforce 
Economic Enhancement I Collaborative Regional Economic Development 
High Quality Services I High-Quality County Government Services 
 
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 9/17/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/17/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/17/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 9/17/2024 
 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft Resolution 2024-28 - Reconnecting Communities 
2. Letter Supporting Reconnecting Communities Grant 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-____

A RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 
COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,

AUTHORIZING THE EASTERN SIERRA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS TO 
SUBMIT AN APPLICATION FOR THE U.S DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION RECONNECTING COMMUNITIES PILOT PROGRAM

WHEREAS, on January 7, 2020, the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments convened as 
an established Joint Powers Authority as ratified by the votes of the governing bodies of 
its individual Member Agencies, understanding that it is necessary and desirable for the 
Eastern Sierra Council of Governments as a Joint Powers Authority to speak and to 
function on behalf of the region and to collectively identify and deliver opportunities to 
benefit the interests of Member Agencies’ constituents; and

WHEREAS the Member Agencies agreed that the creation of a regional Joint Powers 
Authority that functions as a separate and discreet legal entity from individual Member 
Agencies would enable the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments to maximize and take 
advantage of opportunities for the region; and

WHEREAS, the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments Joint Powers Authority was 
organized to identify and apply for funding resources and receive funding for the 
planning and implementation of programs of regional impact or significance, and to 
implement such programs upon approval of the governing bodies of each Member 
Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments is an eligible applicant for the 
U.S Department of Transportation Reconnecting Communities Pilot Program funding 
opportunity; and

WHEREAS, the U.S Department of Transportation Reconnecting Communities Pilot 
Program would have inter-jurisdictional benefits in Inyo and Mono Counties, which 
would enhance regional collaboration, advance the vitality of Eastern Sierra 
communities, and reinforce the regional identity of the iconic Eastern Sierra; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors, County of 
Inyo, State of California, that the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments is authorized to 
submit a U.S Department of Transportation Reconnecting Communities Pilot Program on 
behalf of the Eastern Sierra.

PASSED AND ADOPTED 24th day of September, 2024 by the following vote:

AYES:    
NOES:
ABSTAIN:



ABSENT:

_______________________
Matt Kingsley, Board Chair

ATTEST: Nate Greenberg
        Clerk of the Board

By:_________________________
   Assistant Clerk of the Board



            

September 24, 2024

Reconnecting Communities Pilot Discretionary Grant Program
Office of the Secretary of Transportation
U.S. Department of Transportation
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
Washington, DC 20590

Dear Reconnecting Communities Grant Selection Committee,

For more than half a century, U.S. Highway 395 in Inyo and Mono counties has prioritized moving goods and 
tourism traffic quickly through the Eastern Sierra. While serving as Main Street for many small towns, its four-
lane design has compromised pedestrian safety, alternative transportation, and overall livability. Decades of 
widening projects have bifurcated Eastern Sierra Tribal communities and towns from Bridgeport to Lone Pine, 
leaving cyclists and pedestrians without dedicated spaces. Community-centered streets have become vehicle-
centric corridors, leading to hazardous pedestrian school crossings, higher traffic speeds, increased collisions, 
noise, and pollution. These changes have reduced the livability of our towns, making properties along U.S. 395 
undesirable for commerce and residential use.

Our communities seek to reclaim these spaces by transforming our Main Streets from mere thoroughfares back 
into thriving community hubs by creating vibrant multimodal streetscapes that invite residents and visitors to 
linger, shop, and connect. These changes will promote healthier lifestyles, encourage local businesses and 
mixed-use development, and foster a sense of place that reflects the unique character and history of each town.
For these reasons and more, Inyo County supports the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments (ESCOG) in its 
application for a U.S. Department of Transportation Reconnecting Communities Grant. Our communities – from 
Bishop to Lone Pine – have borne the brunt of these widening projects, experiencing the negative impacts 
firsthand. We seek this opportunity to advance our vision for safer, more vibrant downtown areas. 

This is a catalytic opportunity for our region, and we are excited to work with ESCOG and our communities to 
envision and design solutions that address these concerns. As a partner, Inyo County is committed and fully 
prepared to offer support through staff resources, project engagement, meeting space, volunteer time, technical 
support and more throughout the duration of the project if awarded. We believe this grant will help the Eastern 
Sierra U.S. 395 communities transform into safe, beautiful neighborhoods with vibrant, prosperous downtowns.

Sincerely,

Supervisor Matt Kingsley
Chair, Inyo County Board of Supervisors

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-700  

 

Authorization to Apply for Cybersecurity Grant 
County Administrator - Emergency Services 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Mikaela Torres, Emergency Services Manager Mikaela Torres, Emergency Services Manager 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve submission of Inyo County's grant application for the FY 2024 State and Local Cybersecurity 
Grant Program (SLCGP), and authorize the County Administrative Officer to sign.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The FY 2024 State and Local Cybersecurity Grant Program (SLCGP) is a federal initiative designed to 
enhance the cybersecurity practices and resilience of state, local, and territorial governments. Funded 
through the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA), the program aims to make targeted 
investments in cybersecurity to protect critical infrastructure and ensure the continuity of essential 
services. The SLCGP encourages recipients to address cybersecurity risks, strengthen governance 
structures, improve their cybersecurity posture, and implement security protections that align with 
national priorities and best practices. 
 
Inyo County is seeking approval from the Board of Supervisors to submit an application for the full 
$250,000 in funding through this program. At a minimum, the County is requesting $200,000 to address 
critical cybersecurity challenges and strengthen its infrastructure against evolving threats. The proposed 
projects include conducting annual cybersecurity exercises, sending staff to cybersecurity conferences, 
updating the County’s cybersecurity plan, and investing in necessary hardware and software. 
 
As a remote and rural county, Inyo faces unique challenges with limited resources and relies heavily on 
its technology infrastructure to provide essential services across a vast geographical area. The proposed 
projects will help the County improve its ability to prevent, detect, and respond to cybersecurity incidents 
while ensuring continuity of critical government functions. By securing this grant, Inyo County will be 
better positioned to protect its network, support public safety, and maintain the reliability of its 
government services. 
 
Approval of this grant application will allow the County to strengthen its cybersecurity capabilities and 
ensure a more resilient future for its operations and community. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding  
Source 

General Fund / Non-General Fund / Grant 
Funded (list grant funding sources here) 

Budget Unit TBA on Award 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Budgeted? Budget will updated upon a successful 
application 

Object Code  

Recurrence One-Time Expenditure Sole Source? N/A 
If Sole Source, provide justification below 
 
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Up to $250,000 for the current fiscal year 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 N/A 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to apply for this funding. This is not recommended as the grant will allow 
Inyo County to continue strengthening its cybersecurity posture, address identified gaps, and improve 
the security and continuity of essential government services.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Information Services. 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
High Quality Services I Public Safety and Emergency Response 
 
APPROVALS: 
Mikaela Torres Created/Initiated - 9/17/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/17/2024 
Mikaela Torres Approved - 9/17/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/17/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 9/17/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 9/17/2024 
 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-547  

 

Local Area Technical Assistance Grant Phase 2-A 
Contract with Onward 

County Administrator 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Scott Armstrong, Regional Broadband Coordinator Scott Armstrong, Regional Broadband Coordinator 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Inyo Networks, Inc., doing business as Onward, 
of Rancho Cucamonga, CA, for the provision of detailed network engineering design services as part of 
the LATA Grant (Phase 2-A) in an amount not to exceed $220,000 for the period of September 24, 2024 
through January 25, 2025, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The County of Inyo was awarded a $1,000,000 grant ($500,000 per year for two years) in January 2023 
under the California Public Utilities (CPUC) Local Area Technical Assistance (LATA) program to develop 
shovel-ready plans for last-mile broadband projects throughout underserved portions of the County. This 
contract is for LATA Grant Design Work for Phase 2-A, the third of four phases in the 2-year grant. 
 
The County posted a Request for Proposals (RFP) on May 3, 2024 on the Inyo County website and 
identified our budget of $255,000 for this phase. We also sent the RFP to six known companies that 
could reasonably conduct the design work. Responses to our RFP were due five weeks after the RFP 
was posted.  Inyo Networks, d.b.a. Onward, was the sole respondent, the response indicated that they 
could satisfy all of our requirements, and the response indicated that they would be able to do this design 
work for $220,000. 
 
The deliverables from this agreement will be detailed, last-mile network design plans that the County will 
submit to the CPUC for reimbursement. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Grant Funded -- California Public Utilities 
Commission Local Agency Technical Assistance 

Budget Unit 612200 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5265 

Recurrence This is the third of four expected contracts in the two-
year grant performance period 

 

Current Fiscal Year Impact 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Up to $500,000 for the current calendar year starting January 26, 2024, based on reimbursable work 
products. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
N/A 
Additional Information 
This is a reimbursement grant based on actual expenditures and costs incurred, therefore budget 
numbers are provided for the upper limit of the grant. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose to not approve this grant. This is not recommended as Onward possesses 
unique knowledge in this region and has a proven track record delivering this type of work. Doing so 
would hinder use of grant funds to develop engineering plans for broadband deployment that supports 
future broadband construction projects. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT:  
 
APPROVALS: 
Scott Armstrong Created/Initiated - 8/10/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/12/2024 
Keri Oney Approved - 8/12/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 9/17/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/17/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 9/17/2024 
 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Request for Proposals/Broadband Expansion Projects: Phase 2A - Design 
2. LATA Phase 2A Contract - 151 Design Professional Consultant - Onward  
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

 

   

 

 
 

 

County of Inyo 
Request for Proposals (RFP) 

RFP-2024-LATA-2A-Inyo 
 

County of Inyo  

Broadband Expansion Projects: Phase 2A 
To create detailed, shovel-ready, last-mile network construction engineering designs to 

connect the unserved and underserved remote and rural population centers and cities in Inyo 

County to symmetrical 100Mbps or better broadband Internet service. 

 

Submit Proposals to: 

County of Inyo, Clerk of the Board 
P.O. Drawer N 

224 North Edwards Street 
Independence, CA 93526 

Attn:  RFP-2024-LATA-2A-Inyo 
 

 

Date Released:   

April 25, 2024 

 

Submittal Deadline: 

June 6, 2024, 4:30 p.m. 

  



 

County of Inyo RFP-2024-LATA-2A-Inyo  Broadband Expansion Projects 

 

Page 2 of 11 

Table of Contents 
 

I. Introduction .......................................................................................................................................... 3 

County of Inyo LATA-Funded Broadband Expansion Projects .............................................................. 3 

II. Background ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

The County of Inyo is a Governmental Organization ............................................................................ 3 

Description of the current Internet service in Inyo County .................................................................. 4 

Purpose of the Broadband Expansion Projects ..................................................................................... 4 

III.    Project Scope of Work........................................................................................................................... 4 

Project Deliverables .............................................................................................................................. 4 

Subprojects List ..................................................................................................................................... 5 

IV.    County Information and Responsibilities.............................................................................................. 6 

Administrative Information .................................................................................................................. 6 

Inquiries and County Project Contact ................................................................................................... 6 

Rights of the County .............................................................................................................................. 6 

V. Responsive Proposal ............................................................................................................................. 7 

Deadline ................................................................................................................................................ 7 

Proposal Format and Requirements ..................................................................................................... 7 

Use of Proposals and Respondent Guarantees .................................................................................... 8 

Standard County Contract .................................................................................................................... 8 

Obligations Assumed by Submitting a Proposal ................................................................................... 8 

Failure to Execute Contract ................................................................................................................... 9 

Insurance and Bonds ............................................................................................................................. 9 

Respondent Competency ...................................................................................................................... 9 

Prime Contractor Responsibility ........................................................................................................... 9 

Legal Address ...................................................................................................................................... 10 

VI.    Evaluation and Selection ..................................................................................................................... 10 

Selection and Award of Contract ........................................................................................................ 10 

Ranking ................................................................................................................................................ 10 

Evaluation Criteria ............................................................................................................................... 10 

VII.   Funding and Timeline for the Broadband Expansion Projects ........................................................... 11 

 



 

County of Inyo RFP-2024-LATA-2A-Inyo  Broadband Expansion Projects 

 

Page 3 of 11 

I. Introduction 

County of Inyo LATA-Funded Broadband Expansion Projects 

The County of Inyo is soliciting proposals from firms with demonstrated experience in designing fiber-

optic network solutions to develop and deliver detailed engineering plans to be used for future 

construction projects of high-speed, last-mile broadband infrastructure to communities, households, 

and businesses in specified project areas.  

This project, funded by a California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) Local Agency Technical Assistance 

(LATA) grant, is intended to create shovel-ready, last-mile, detailed network construction engineering 

designs for network infrastructure to connect the unserved and underserved remote and rural 

population centers and cities in Inyo County to symmetrical 100Mbps or better, preferably 1Gbps or 

better, broadband Internet service.  This project will also result in shovel-ready construction engineering 

designs for any middle-mile network extensions to support the last-mile construction plans in regions 

where there is no current middle-mile network and where there are no current plans for State-funded 

middle-mile construction. 

This project is for pre-construction work only, as the LATA Grant will not fund any construction.  The 

detailed engineering plans generated by this project are expected to be used for future construction 

projects funded by anticipated CPUC Last-Mile Federal Funding Account (FFA) grants and other grant 

programs.  This phase is the third of four phases (1-A, 1-B, 2-A and 2-B), each of which will focus on 

several location-specific subprojects.  Requests for Proposals for the fourth phases (2-B) will be posted 

later in 2024 as part of the second grant year activities of our LATA grant. 

II. Background 

The County of Inyo is a Governmental Organization 

Inyo County, California was organized in 1866 from land set aside from Mono and Tulare Counties.  The 

County was originally named Coso County, and the town of Independence is designated as the County 

seat. The County is characterized as rural and frontier and is in the central-eastern part of the state.  At 

10,227 square miles, Inyo County is geographically the second largest county in California.  The 

governmental agency was organized, in part, to provide safety and services to its population. 

According to 2020 census information, the population of Inyo County 

is 19,016, up from 18,546 in the 2010 census.  Census data also 

indicates 7,954 Inyo County households in 2020. 

While the County seat is located in Independence, the largest 

population center of the County is approximately 45 miles to the 

north in Bishop, California.  The City of Bishop is the County’s only 

incorporated city and covers an area of approximately two-square 

miles with a population of nearly 4,000 residents.  Bishop and its 

immediate suburbs host a population of approximately 12,000. 

The County of Inyo governmental organization is the County’s largest 

employer with approximately 460 employees. 



 

County of Inyo RFP-2024-LATA-2A-Inyo  Broadband Expansion Projects 

 

Page 4 of 11 

Description of the current Internet service in Inyo County 

The successful completion of the ambitious Digital 395 project in late 2013 that was funded by the 

American Reinvestment and Recovery Act project equipped the Owens Valley with a middle-mile 

broadband network capable of providing practically limitless broadband capacity for generations.  While 

the Digital 395 network has the potential to deliver high-speed broadband Internet service to most of 

the residents and businesses in Inyo County, many of our population centers are very remote and too 

small to provide a reliable return on investment for an Internet Service Provider (ISP), offering very little 

Incentive for ISPs to construct and operate wireline broadband Internet networks in those areas. 

A large portion of our County is several miles from the Digital 395 middle-mile network and is essentially 

unserved by wireline Internet Service Providers.  These rural areas require significant investment in 

middle-mile network infrastructure to support last-mile broadband Internet service. 

Several of our smaller population centers do not offer enough return on investment for ISPs to be 

interested in constructing last-mile networks to provide services to those areas, even if they are close to 

the Digital 395 middle-mile network. 

Purpose of the Broadband Expansion Projects 

This project will develop shovel-ready, detailed engineering designs to deliver synchronous broadband 

Internet service at 100Mbps or better, preferably 1Gbps or better, to several unserved or underserved 

communities, households, and businesses throughout the County of Inyo.  For the purposes of this 

grant, “unserved and underserved households or businesses” means one or more households or 

businesses that are not currently served by a wireline connection that reliably delivers at least 25 Mbps 

download speed and 3 Mbps upload speed. 

III. Project Scope of Work 

Project Deliverables 

Shovel-ready, last-mile detailed engineering designs that can be used by any reasonably capable and 

qualified network construction company to construct last-mile fiber-to-the-premise network 

infrastructure. 

● For each of the subprojects identified in the Subprojects List below that the contractor choses to 

propose, provide separate, detailed, shovel-ready, engineering designs for last-mile network 

infrastructure that is capable of providing 100Mbps symmetrical Internet service or better, 

preferably 1Gbps symmetrical Internet service. 

● For any of the subprojects that the contractor responds to that can be bundled as a single, 

larger, combined project that results in cost savings, describe the larger, combined project, and 

detail the savings and the changes to the associated standalone project descriptions. 

● Engineering designs should include network infrastructure connections from existing or planned 

open-access middle-mile network1 to all unserved communities, households and businesses 

 
1 The State’s Middle-Mile Broadband Network (MMBN) will consist of the current Digital 395 open-access middle-
mile network, as well as new construction.  Information on the future MMBN can be found at https://middle-mile-
broadband-initiative.cdt.ca.gov/pages/statewide-middle-mile-network-map and an ArcGIS map of the planned 
network can be found at https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/e2540ace2ac248ee8c3350aa39395342. 

https://middle-mile-broadband-initiative.cdt.ca.gov/pages/statewide-middle-mile-network-map
https://middle-mile-broadband-initiative.cdt.ca.gov/pages/statewide-middle-mile-network-map
https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/e2540ace2ac248ee8c3350aa39395342


 

County of Inyo RFP-2024-LATA-2A-Inyo  Broadband Expansion Projects 

 

Page 5 of 11 

associated with each subproject.  Unserved locations for the purposes of this grant are those 

with wireline Internet service speeds less than 25Mbps download and 3Mbps upload. 

● If your designs include middle-mile network to support your last-mile designs, identify those 

network segments as such in your designs. 

● Describe the networking technology and equipment proposed for both the potential network 

operator and the subscriber.  

● Describe any critical engineering design issues associated with the design project. 

● Describe any additional equipment needed to support the designed project. 

● Describe any critical environmental issues associated with the project and how to address these. 

● Describe any additional steps beyond the solution being proposed that could reduce costs and 

shorten future construction timelines. 

● Coordinate with the appropriate County Departments regarding design routes and potential 

environmental or permitting challenges. Ensure that the project design documents account for 

environmental clearance and any required regulatory agency permits.   

● Designs must comply with:  Federal laws; State laws; local laws; rules and regulations of 

governing utility districts; and rules and regulations of other authorities with jurisdiction over 

the construction of network infrastructure. 

● Deliver the final designs in high-resolution PDF format and provide a shapefile for the project 

area.  

● All deliverables for this project, Phase 2-A, must be submitted to the County of Inyo by January 

20, 2025, at the latest in order to allow for timely submission to the CPUC for reimbursement. 

Subprojects List 

The list of subprojects by name for Phase 2-A is below: 

o Inyo-05-Big Pine* 

o Inyo-06-Bishop* 

o Inyo-14-Darwin 

o Inyo-16-Death Valley Junction (two businesses) 

o Inyo-17-Deep Springs (design to the Nevada border) 

o Inyo-18-Dixon Lane-Meadow Creek* 

o Inyo-25-Independence 

o Inyo-29-Lone Pine* 

o Inyo-30-Mesa 

o Inyo-31-Millpond 

o Inyo-41-Shoshone 

o Inyo-45-Tecopa 

o Inyo-48-West Bishop* 

 

*Communities with several locations that are identified as "served” locations—design only to the groups 

of unserved locations2 in the CPUC broadband map. 

 
2 Populated areas with ISPs currently providing services.  Designs should include only the groups of those locations 
identified as Unserved or Priority Unserved as well as locations in passing to reach those locations, but not the 
entire community.  Individual unserved locations that are surrounded by served locations that can reasonably be 
expected to have access to Internet service need not be included in the designs. 

https://www.broadbandmap.ca.gov/


 

County of Inyo RFP-2024-LATA-2A-Inyo  Broadband Expansion Projects 

 

Page 6 of 11 

 

This is the third of four phases of projects that are grouped based on the availability of middle-mile 

network, incumbent providers’ plans to upgrade existing services, and existing broadband expansion 

priorities.  The census blocks associated with these subprojects are in the attached spreadsheet (LATA 

Census Blocks - 20220824 - County of Inyo.xlsx) and the County of Inyo GIS system at the following link:  

https://gis.inyoco.com/arcgis/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=e12ef7446c4e4923be659565a744266

8.   

 

Additional sources to verify eligible locations within census blocks include: 

● CPUC Infrastructure Map:  California Interactive Broadband Map  

● FFA Broadband Map:  Federal Funding Account - California Public Utilities Commission (vetro.io) 

● FCC Broadband Map:  Home | FCC National Broadband Map 

IV. County Information and Responsibilities 

Administrative Information 

The County of Inyo through the Office of the County Administrator is sponsoring this project, and the 

Regional Broadband Coordinator is managing the project.  Respondents are specifically instructed to not 

contact any elected officials or other County employees for meetings, conferences or discussions related 

to this RFP.  Unauthorized contact with elected officials or County personnel may result in rejection of 

the respondent’s RFP response.   

Inquiries and County Project Contact 

County of Inyo, CAO – Regional Broadband Coordinator 
1360 N. Main Street 
Bishop, California  93514 
 
Email:  sarmstrong@inyocounty.us 

 

All inquiries should be directed in writing via email to Scott Armstrong, Regional Broadband Coordinator, 

County of Inyo.  The closing time for inquiries related to this RFP is June 4, 2024, 4:30 p.m.  All inquiries 

and the associated County responses will be posted on the County website.  Interested parties are 

cautioned that the opportunity to obtain additional information should not be viewed as a sales 

presentation opportunity. 

Rights of the County 

The County retains sole discretion regarding every aspect of the RFP evaluation and selection process.  

The County reserves the right to, but is not limited to: 

● Select all, some or none of the proposed solutions for individual subprojects or groups of 

subprojects from a proposal for contract award 

● Accept other than lowest offer 

● Reject any or all responses without cause 

● Reject all responses and seek new responses when such action is judged to be in the best 

interest of the County 

https://gis.inyoco.com/arcgis/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=e12ef7446c4e4923be659565a7442668
https://gis.inyoco.com/arcgis/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=e12ef7446c4e4923be659565a7442668
https://broadbandmap.ca.gov/
https://federalfundingaccountmap.vetro.io/map#5.65/37.393/-116.87
https://broadbandmap.fcc.gov/home


 

County of Inyo RFP-2024-LATA-2A-Inyo  Broadband Expansion Projects 

 

Page 7 of 11 

● Request and receive additional information as the County believes is necessary, and disqualify 

any respondent and reject any responses for failure to promptly provide such additional 

information 

● Request additional information or clarification from respondents, or allow corrections of errors 

or omissions 

● Postpone or extend the RFP deadline for its own convenience or benefit 

● To disregard all non-conforming, non-responsive or conditional proposals 

● Approve or disapprove sub-contractors 

● Waive technical defects in responses and to accept the response which, in the sole judgment of 

the County, is in its best interest 

● Negotiate with any and all respondents 

● Change the amount of funding available 

● Enter into a contract with another respondent in the event the originally selected respondent 

fails to execute a contract with the County 

● Reject any or all proposals or portions thereof, and to reduce the scope of the Project 

V. Responsive Proposal 

Deadline 

The deadline for submitting a proposal for the Broadband Expansion Projects Phase 2-A is June 6, 2024, 

4:30 p.m. 

Proposal Format and Requirements 

Use the following format and requirements in developing a proposal in response to our request for 

proposals.  You can include additional information that you feel is relevant, but the evaluation team will 

evaluate your proposal based on the specific criteria and requirements identified in this RFP. 

● Identify clearly on the cover that your proposal is for RFP-2024-LATA-2A-Inyo for the County of 

Inyo, California. 

● Include a name and email address for a point of contact with your company. 

● Include your company’s legal address.  

● Include your California Contractor License Number (cslb.ca.gov)  

● Identify any subcontractors that you will use for this project. 

● Indicate whether your company can construct the network infrastructure that you are 

proposing.  

● Indicate whether you are currently a network operator, and if so, identify any areas or towns in 

Inyo County where you provide last-mile services. 

● Include a Scope of Work statement to summarize your proposal and the project deliverables. 

● Describe in detail how you will satisfy the project deliverables in the Project Scope of Work. 

● Detail the costs associated with the project deliverables in your proposal, including job titles and 

hourly rates for any labor costs.  Please note that the design work is subject to prevailing wage. 

● Identify the name of each of the subprojects included in your proposal. 

● Identify any groupings of subprojects included in your proposal that you feel should be 

considered as a single project area. 



 

County of Inyo RFP-2024-LATA-2A-Inyo  Broadband Expansion Projects 

 

Page 8 of 11 

● Indicate the average cost of the anticipated network construction per subscriber location for 

each subproject or grouping of subprojects. 

● Estimate the rough-order-of-magnitude construction costs associated with the subprojects or 

groupings of subprojects in your proposal. 

● Identify the spreadsheet filename of the data that you used to prepare your proposal.  

● For each subproject or grouping of subprojects, describe the Internet service speeds that will be 

attainable with this solution, including the following: 

o Meets 100Mbps / 20Mbps 

o Meets 100Mbps synchronous 

o Meets 1Gbps synchronous 

o Exceeds 1Gbps synchronous 

● Indicate whether the proposed solution will support open-access, last-mile network 

infrastructure. 

● Indicate whether the proposed solution will connect to an open-access, middle-mile network. 

● Indicate whether the proposed solution will include additional middle-mile network, and if so, 

whether that middle-mile network will be designed to be operated as an open-access, middle-

mile network. 

● Develop a project plan with staff resource scheduling and a timeline. 

● Demonstrate qualifications and experience by providing examples and descriptions of network 

infrastructure design projects for at least three customers that demonstrate the understanding 

of, and the ability to design last-mile network infrastructure solutions. 

● Include at least 3 customer references with email addresses and phone numbers. 

● Identify your company’s proximity to the County of Inyo for the purposes of understanding our 

region’s unique and challenging geography for this project. 

● Describe your financial, operational and technical capacity to execute the project successfully 

within the specified timeframe. 

● State whether you will be able to enter into a County of Inyo Contract #151 (Exhibit A to this 

RFP). 

● The proposal should be delivered to the Clerk of the Board.  The proposal should include two 

paper copies and a high-resolution, digitally readable file, preferably in PDF format. 

Use of Proposals and Respondent Guarantees 

The respondent’s proposal submitted in reply to this RFP acknowledges that the rights have been 

reserved to include the selected respondent’s proposal or any part or parts of the selected respondent’s 

proposal in the final contract.  Submission of any proposal indicates acceptance of the conditions 

contained in the RFP.  All proposals submitted shall be valid for a period of 120 calendar days from the 

date of proposal opening. 

Standard County Contract 

The respondent selected for contract award will be required to enter into a contract with the County of 

Inyo using the County of Inyo Contract #151 (Exhibit A to this RFP).  Identify any requested exceptions to 

the contract in the response to this RFP.  Only exceptions identified in the submittal responses to this 

RFP will be considered during contract negotiations with the selected vendor. 

Obligations Assumed by Submitting a Proposal 

By submitting a proposal, the respondent certifies that: 



 

County of Inyo RFP-2024-LATA-2A-Inyo  Broadband Expansion Projects 

 

Page 9 of 11 

● Those submitting proposals do so entirely at their expense.  There is no expressed or implied 

responsibility on the part of the County to reimburse respondents for any expenses incurred for 

preparing or submitting proposals, providing additional information when requested by the 

County, or participating in any selection interviews. 

● The respondent thoroughly understands the terms of the specifications and has successful 

experience in each area of the proposed work. 

● The respondent has made themselves familiar with all Federal and State Laws, local laws, 

ordinances, and regulations which in any manner affect the project work or the delivered 

product. 

● The prices in this proposal have been arrived at independently and without consultation, 

communication, or agreement, for the purpose of restricting competition as to any matter 

relating to such prices, with any other respondent. 

● The respondent has not paid or agreed to pay any fee or commission, or any other item of value 

contingent on the award of this contract to any employee, official, or current contracting 

consultant of the County of Inyo. 

No contract shall be considered binding upon the County until the County Board of Supervisors has 

made a final award and executed the contract.  The County is interested in working with a respondent 

able to initiate the project immediately following successful contract negotiations. 

Failure to Execute Contract 

Failure to properly execute and deliver the contract within thirty (30) days as specified, at the County’s 

discretion, may be cause for cancellation of the award. 

In the event the award to the successful respondent is cancelled, the award may then be made to the 

next highest ranked responsive and responsible respondent, and such respondent shall fulfill every 

stipulation embraced herein as if the original party to whom the award was made; or the County may 

reject all of the proposals, as its interest may require. 

Insurance and Bonds 

The successful respondent shall procure and maintain insurance as specified in Attachment D to the 

County of Inyo Contract #151, and with the provisions specified in said Attachment D. 

Respondent Competency 

The County may make such investigation as it deems necessary to determine the ability of the 

respondent to perform the work.  The County may require the respondent to present satisfactory 

evidence that it has sufficient experience and skilled workers to complete the work.  The County will use 

the forgoing information, if required, as an aid to selecting a proposal for contract award.  Nothing 

contained in this section shall be construed as depriving the County of its discretion in the matter of 

selecting a proposal for contract award.  The County reserves the right to reject any proposal if the 

evidence submitted by the respondent or an investigation of such respondent fails to satisfy the County 

that such respondent is properly qualified to carry out the obligations of the Project. 

Prime Contractor Responsibility 

Any respondent’s proposal that includes equipment, software or services that are marketed, supported 

or supplied by other companies or individuals must contain a statement that the respondent will act as 

the prime contractor for the entirety of project, not limited to the development, design and delivery of 

the project. 



 

County of Inyo RFP-2024-LATA-2A-Inyo  Broadband Expansion Projects 

 

Page 10 of 11 

Legal Address 

The address given in the proposal is hereby designated as the legal address of the Respondent.  Such 

address may be changed at any time by notice in writing via email delivered to the County Project 

Contact.  The delivering at such legal address or the depositing in any post office, in a postpaid, 

registered wrapper, directed to the above-named address of any notice, letter, or other communication 

to the Respondent shall be deemed to be a legal and sufficient service upon the Respondent. 

VI. Evaluation and Selection 

Selection and Award of Contract 

The Contract award will be based on “best value.”  The County’s evaluation team will evaluate all of the 

relevant factors, including responsiveness to the proposal requirements, qualifications of the proposer, 

the proposer’s history in providing the service and any other reasonably established factor necessary to 

determine what proposer will provide the “best value” to the County.  The County may select a subset 

of your proposed solutions for subprojects or groupings of subprojects. 

As soon as practicable after evaluation and ranking of the proposals, selection of the top finalist, and 

contract negotiations resulting in a signed contract with the vendor, the contract will be presented to 

the Board of Supervisors for award at its sole discretion, contingent on funding.  The contract 

instrument will be a County of Inyo Contract #151. 

In the event the County is unable to negotiate a contract with the top finalist, the County may, at its sole 

discretion, negotiate a contract with another respondent, or choose not to award the contract, or put 

the proposal out to bid again.  

Ranking 

A team selected by the County will evaluate all proposals deemed responsive to the request.  The 

proposals will be ranked based on an analysis conducted by the evaluation team.   The top ranked 

respondents will be deemed finalists and may be asked to meet in person as a means of further 

evaluating the respondent’s claims provided in the proposed solution.     

Discussions and product demonstrations requested by the County may take place with the finalists to 

clarify the proposal and obtain a best and final offer.  Any award granted will be granted to the 

respondent proposing the best solution for the County as determined solely by the County. 

Evaluation Criteria 

No commitment will be made to select a respondent’s proposal solely on the basis of price.  Cost is a 

consideration but is not in the evaluation criteria. The County will evaluate the detail substantiating the 

general estimated costs provided as part of your response to this RFP. 

The primary basis for selection will be the proposed solution’s ability to meet the County’s project goal 

and associated requirements; however, consideration will also be given to overall value, as well as to the 

respondent’s reputation and ability to be a strong business partner. 

  



 

County of Inyo RFP-2024-LATA-2A-Inyo  Broadband Expansion Projects 

 

Page 11 of 11 

Responses to this RFP will be evaluated according to the following criteria for the overall proposal: 

Evaluation Criteria for the overall RFP Response  

Completeness of Response Pass/Fail 

Ability to Satisfy the Scope of Work 25 

Experience and Qualifications 25 

Financial, Technical, and Operational Capacity 25 

Contractor’s proximity to and familiarity with the region 25 

Ability to enter into County of Inyo Contract #151 Pass/Fail 

Last-mile solution meets 100Mbps/20Mbps bandwidth speeds Pass/Fail 

Last-mile solution meets 100Mbps synchronous bandwidth speeds 10 

Last-mile solution meets 1Gbps synchronous bandwidth speeds 10 

Last-mile solution exceeds 1Gpbs synchronous bandwidth speeds 10 

Design uses fiber-optic cable for last-mile network designs 10 

Design supports open-access, last-mile network infrastructure 10 

Design uses existing or planned open-access, middle-mile network 20 

Project Plan with Staff Resource Scheduling and Timeline 10 

Any middle-mile designs proposed will be open access Pass/Fail 

Proposed design solution includes CPUC eligible locations Pass/Fail 

Total 180 

 

VII. Funding and Timeline for the Broadband Expansion Projects 

This project is funded by a CPUC LATA grant.  The County of Inyo was awarded $1,000,000 for this grant.  

We have budgeted up to $255,000 total for subprojects associated with this Phase 2-A.  Project work to 

develop the detailed engineering designs is expected to begin as soon as the RFP has been awarded.  

The proposal selection and award timeline may take up to 2 months and will include 30 days for CPUC 

review and approval before the County can award the contract.  The full scope of work for this project 

must be completed and delivered to the County of Inyo by January 20, 2025.  The final project 

deliverables, once completed, will be presented to the CPUC as a Work Product for reimbursement 

through the County of Inyo. 

 

*** 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 151 (Independent Design Professional/Consultant)  

Page 1 

7/25/2023 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND INYO NETWORKS, INC D/B/A ONWARD 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF DETAILED NETWORK ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES 

 
 INTRODUCTION 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") has the need for the detailed 
network engineering design services of Onward (hereinafter referred to as (“Design Professional / 
Consultant”), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter 
contained, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 
 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. SCOPE OF WORK. 
 
 The Design Professional/Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and 
work set forth in Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County 
to the Design Professional/Consultant to perform under this Agreement will be made by the Regional 
Broadband Coordinator. Requests to the Design Professional/Consultant for work or services to be performed 
under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.  The County makes no 
guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested 
of the Design Professional/Consultant by the County under this Agreement.  County by this Agreement incurs 
no obligation or requirement to request from Design Professional/Consultant the performance of any services 
or work at all, even if County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this 
Agreement. 
 
 Services and work provided by the Design Professional/Consultant at the County's request under this 
Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by 
applicable federal, state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. 
 

2. TERM. 
 
 The term of this Agreement shall be from September 24, 2024 to January 25, 2025 unless sooner 
terminated as provided below. 

 
 

3. CONSIDERATION. 
 
 A. Compensation. County shall pay Design Professional/Consultant in accordance with the 
Schedule of Fees (set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are 
performed by Design Professional/Consultant at the County's request. 
 B. Travel and per diem. County shall reimburse Design Professional/Consultant for the 
travel expenses and per diem which Design Professional/Consultant incurs in providing services and work 
requested by County under this Agreement.  Design Professional/Consultant shall request approval by the 
County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses.  Requests by Design Professional/Consultant for 
approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to the Regional Broadband Coordinator.  
Travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set forth in the Schedule of 
Travel and Per Diem Payment (Attachment C).  County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Design 
Professional/Consultant for travel or per diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may 
be paid under the rates set forth in Attachment C, or which are incurred by the Design 
Professional/Consultant without the prior approval of the County. 
 C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Design 
Professional/Consultant shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, 
compensation, salary, wages, or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 151 (Independent Design Professional/Consultant)  

Page 2 

7/25/2023 

Specifically, Design Professional/Consultant shall not be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration 
in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, 
vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 
 D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the 
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed  
$ 220,000  (hereinafter referred to as "Contract Limit").  County expressly reserves the right to deny any 
payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed which is in excess of the 
contract limit. 
 E. Billing and payment. Design Professional/Consultant shall submit to the County, once a 
month, an itemized statement of all hours spent by Design Professional/Consultant in performing services 
and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request.  This statement will be 
submitted to the County not later than the fifth (5th) day of the month.  The statement to be submitted will 
cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last day of the 
preceding month.  This statement will identify the date on which the hours were worked and describe the 
nature of the work which was performed on each day. This information will be used to provide the California 
Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) the required Contractor Reporting updates.    
 Upon receipt of the completed project designs from the Design Professional/Consultant, County shall 
submit those designs to the CPUC for reimbursement.  Upon receipt of a reimbursement from the CPUC, 
County will remit the full amount of the reimbursement up to the Contract Limit to the Design 
Professional/Consultant within ten (10) business days. 
 Design Professional/Consultant understands and agrees that, despite the submission of monthly 
invoices to County, it shall receive no payment under this agreement until County receives a reimbursement 
from the CPUC at the end of the Term of this Agreement.  Design Professional/Consultant further agrees that 
final payment to the Design Professional/Consultant shall be based solely on the reimbursement amount 
received by the County from the CPUC, not on the invoices submitted to the County throughout the life of this 
Agreement.   
 F. Federal and State taxes. 
  (1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal 
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Design 
Professional/Consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
  (2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this 
Agreement to non-California resident independent Design Professional/Consultant’s when it is anticipated 
that total annual payments to Design Professional/Consultant under this Agreement will exceed one thousand 
four hundred ninety-nine dollars ($1,499.00). 
  (3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or 
payments from sums paid by County to Design Professional/Consultant under this Agreement.  Payment of 
all taxes and other assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Design Professional/Consultant. 
County has no responsibility or liability for payment of Design Professional/Consultant's taxes or assessments. 
(4) The total amounts paid by County to Design Professional/Consultant, and taxes withheld from 
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the 
California State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Design Professional/Consultant shall 
complete and submit to the County an Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing this 
Agreement. 

 
4. WORK SCHEDULE. 

 
 Design Professional/Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and 
work identified in Attachment A, which are requested by the County.  It is understood by Design 
Professional/Consultant that the performance of these services and work will require a varied schedule.  
Design Professional/Consultant will arrange his/her own schedule but will coordinate with County to ensure 
that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be performed within the time frame 
set forth by County. 
 

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS. 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 151 (Independent Design Professional/Consultant)  

Page 3 

7/25/2023 

 A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal 
governments for Design Professional/Consultant to provide the services and work described in Attachment A 
must be procured by Design Professional/Consultant and be valid at the time Design Professional/Consultant 
enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required. Further, during the term of this Agreement, 
Design Professional/Consultant must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect.  
Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, professional licenses 
or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured and maintained 
in force by Design Professional/Consultant at no expense to the County. Design Professional/Consultant will 
provide County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates 
and permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute 
between Design Professional/Consultant and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are 
required to perform the services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such 
determinations for purposes of this Agreement. 
 B. Design Professional/Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, 
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered 
transactions by any federal department or agency.  Design Professional/Consultant also warrants that it is 
not suspended or debarred from receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal 
Procurement or Non-procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: 
http://www.sam.gov. 
 

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC. 
 
 Design Professional/Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, 
reference materials, and telephone service as is necessary for Design Professional/Consultant to provide the 
services identified in Attachment A to this Agreement.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Design 
Professional/Consultant, for any expense or cost incurred by Design Professional/Consultant in procuring or 
maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by Design Professional/Consultant 
in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Design 
Professional/Consultant. 
 

7. COUNTY PROPERTY. 
 
 A. Personal Property of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective 
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Design Professional/Consultant by 
County pursuant to this Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and 
exclusive property of County.  Design Professional/Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard 
and maintain such items while they are in Design Professional/Consultant's possession.  Design 
Professional/Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, 
which is the result of Design Professional/Consultant's negligence. 
 B. Products of Design Professional/Consultant's Work and Services. Any and all 
compositions, publications, plans, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, 
video tapes, computer programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio 
recordings, films, audio-visual presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, 
trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, 
compiled by, or are the result, product, or manifestation of, Design Professional/Consultant 's services or work 
under this Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property 
of the County.  At the termination of the Agreement, Design Professional/Consultant will convey possession 
and title to all such properties to County. 
 

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. 
 
 For the duration of this Agreement Design Professional/Consultant shall procure and maintain 
insurance of the scope and amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that 
attachment. 
 

9. STATUS OF DESIGN PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTANT. 

http://www.sam.gov/


County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 151 (Independent Design Professional/Consultant)  

Page 4 

7/25/2023 

 
 All acts of Design Professional/Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the 
performance of this Agreement, shall be performed as independent Design Professional/Consultant’s, and 
not as agents, officers, or employees of County.  Design Professional/Consultant, by virtue of this Agreement, 
has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of County.  Except as expressly provided in 
Attachment A, Design Professional/Consultant has no authority or responsibility to exercise any rights or 
power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the Design Professional/Consultant is to be 
considered an employee of County. It is understood by both Design Professional/Consultant and County that 
this Agreement shall not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-
employee relationship or a joint venture.  As an independent Design Professional/Consultant: 
 

A. Design Professional/Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of 
performing the work and services to be provided by Design Professional/Consultant under this Agreement. 

B. Design Professional/Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and 
results specified in this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected 
to County's control with respect to the physical action or activities of Design Professional/Consultant in 
fulfillment of this Agreement. 

C. Design Professional/Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times 
during the term of this Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Design 
Professional/Consultant’s, and not as employees of County. 
 

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 
 
Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees 

and volunteers from and against liability, loss, damage, expense, costs arising out of or in connection with 
Contractor’s performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in 
the agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the County. 
 

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 
 
 A. Records. Design Professional/Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records 
required by the various provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, 
regulations, and directions. Design Professional/Consultant shall maintain these records for a minimum of 
four (4) years from the termination or completion of this Agreement.  Design Professional/Consultant may 
fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by substitute photographs, 
microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records. 
 B. Inspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any 
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Design 
Professional/Consultant, which County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of 
making audit, evaluation, examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be 
maintained by Design Professional/Consultant. Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, 
inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work performed or being performed under this Agreement. 
 

12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 
 
 During the performance of this Agreement, Design Professional/Consultant, its agents, officers, and 
employees shall not unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any 
employee, or applicant for employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, 
religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. 
Design Professional/Consultant and its agents, officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of 
the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable 
regulations promulgated thereunder in the California Code of Regulations. Design Professional/Consultant 
shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) and all amendments thereto, and all 
administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 151 (Independent Design Professional/Consultant)  

Page 5 

7/25/2023 

13. CANCELLATION. 
 
 This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 
Design Professional/Consultant thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel.  Design 
Professional/Consultant may cancel this Agreement without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel to County. 
 

14. ASSIGNMENT. 
 
 This is an agreement for the services of Design Professional/Consultant. County has relied upon the 
skills, knowledge, experience, and training of Design Professional/Consultant as an inducement to enter into 
this Agreement.  Design Professional/Consultant shall not assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part 
of it, without the express written consent of County.  Further, Design Professional/Consultant shall not assign 
any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written consent of County. 
 

15. DEFAULT. 
 
 If the Design Professional/Consultant abandons the work or fails to proceed with the work and 
services requested by County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and 
services as required by County, County may declare the Design Professional/Consultant in default and 
terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written notice to Design Professional/Consultant. Upon such 
termination by default, County will pay to Design Professional/Consultant all amounts owing to Design 
Professional/Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination. 
 

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 
 
 Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below. 
 

17. CONFIDENTIALITY. 
 
 Design Professional/Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, 
state, and county laws, regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, 
or accessible by Design Professional/Consultant in the course of providing services and work under this 
Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, or confidential.  Design Professional/Consultant agrees to keep 
confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such confidential, privileged, or protected 
information shall be made by Design Professional/Consultant only with the express written consent of the 
County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Design Professional/Consultant without the County’s 
written consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Design Professional/Consultant in all 
respects. 
 
 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure. 
 

18. CONFLICTS. 
 
 Design Professional/Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct 
or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under 
this Agreement. 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 151 (Independent Design Professional/Consultant)  

Page 6 

7/25/2023 

19. POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 
 
 Design Professional/Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged 
information which is gained from the County in the course of providing services and work under this 
Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain, or enhancement.  Further, Design Professional/Consultant agrees 
for a period of two years after the termination of this Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with 
any County, association, corporation, or person who, during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse 
or conflicting interest with the County, or who has been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and 
concerning such, Design Professional/Consultant by virtue of this Agreement has gained access to the 
County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 
 

20. SEVERABILITY. 
 
 If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be declared 
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or county 
statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application thereof, shall 
not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the provisions of this 
Agreement are severable. 
 

21. FUNDING LIMITATION. 
 
 The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying 
Design Professional/Consultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any 
reduction or modification of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the 
requirements of paragraph twenty-two (22) (Amendment). 
 

22. AMENDMENT. 
 
 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 
 

23. NOTICE. 
 
 Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including change 
of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Design Professional/Consultant or County 
shall be required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid 
first-class mail to, the respective parties as follows: 
 

County of Inyo: 
  County Administrator – Broadband Coordinator  
  1360 N. Main Street 
  Bishop, CA 
 
  Design Professional/Consultant: 
  Inyo Networks, Inc., dba Onward 
  10621 Church Street, Suite 100 
  Rancho Cucamonga, CA City 
 

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 
 
 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 151 (Independent Design Professional/Consultant)  

Page 7 

7/25/2023 

reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto. 
 

#       # 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 151 (Independent Design Professional/Consultant)  

Page 8 

7/25/2023 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND ONWARD NETWORKS, INC D/B/A ONWARD 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF DETAILED NETWORK ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES 

 

 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 
_______ DAY OF _________________________, _________. 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     DESIGN PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTANT  
 
 
By: _____________________________   By: _________________________________ 
  Signature       Signature 

 
________________________________   ____________________________________ 
        Print or Type Name      Print or Type Name 

 
Dated: ___________________________   Dated: ______________________________ 
 
        
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
        
_____________________________________________  
County Counsel  

 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 
 
_____________________________________________ 
County Auditor 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
______________________________________________ 
Personnel Services  

 
 
APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 
 
______________________________________________ 
County Risk Manager  

 

Nicolas Keeler (Sep 10, 2024 10:31 PDT)
Nicolas Keeler

Nicolas Keeler

Sep 10, 2024

Christie Martindale (Sep 10, 2024 11:26 PDT)
Christie Martindale

John-Carl Vallejo (Sep 10, 2024 11:38 PDT)
John-Carl Vallejo



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 151 (Independent Design Professional/Consultant)  

Page 9 

7/25/2023 

ATTACHMENT A 
  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND ONWARD NETWORKS, INC D/B/A ONWARD 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF DETAILED NETWORK ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES 

 

TERM: 
 
 

FROM: September 24, 2024 TO: January 25, 2025 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF WORK: 
 

Project Deliverables 

Shovel-ready, last-mile detailed engineering designs that can be used by any reasonably capable and 

qualified network construction company to construct last-mile fiber-to-the-premise network 

infrastructure. 

● For each of the subprojects identified in the Subprojects List below, provide, detailed, shovel-

ready, engineering designs for last-mile network infrastructure that is capable of providing 

100Mbps symmetrical Internet service or better, preferably 1Gbps symmetrical Internet service. 

● Engineering designs shall include network infrastructure connections from existing or planned 

open-access middle-mile network to all unserved communities, households and businesses 

associated with each subproject.  Unserved locations for the purposes of this grant are those 

with wireline Internet service speeds less than 25Mbps download and 3Mbps upload. 

● Designs that require middle-mile network to support last-mile designs shall identify those 

required middle-mile network segments in the designs. 

● Describe the networking technology and equipment proposed for both the potential network 

operator and the subscriber.  

● Describe any critical engineering design issues associated with the design project. 

● Indicate the type, and if possible, the current brand and model of the in-home or premise 

equipment that will be required to connect to this network. 

● Coordinate with the appropriate County Departments regarding design routes and potential 

environmental or permitting challenges.  Identify any known environmentally sensitive areas 

that will be crossed or impacted by the routes and indicate land ownership for all routes. 

● Describe any known critical environmental issues associated with the project and how to 

address these. 

● Describe any additional steps beyond the solution being proposed that could reduce costs and 

shorten future construction timelines. 

● Designs must comply with:  Federal laws; State laws; local laws; rules and regulations of 

governing utility districts; and rules and regulations of other authorities with jurisdiction over 

the construction of network infrastructure. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 151 (Independent Design Professional/Consultant)  

Page 10 

7/25/2023 

● Deliver the final designs in high-resolution PDF format and provide a shapefile for the project 

area.  

● TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE FOR THIS SCOPE OF WORK.  All deliverables for this project, Phase 2-A, 

must be submitted to the County of Inyo by January 20, 2025, at the latest in order to allow for 

timely submission to the CPUC for reimbursement. 

Subprojects List 

The list of subprojects by name for Phase 2-A is below: 

o Inyo-05-Big Pine* 

o Inyo-06-Bishop* 

o Inyo-14-Darwin 

o Inyo-16-Death Valley Junction (two businesses) 

o Inyo-17-Deep Springs (design to the Nevada border) 

o Inyo-18-Dixon Lane-Meadow Creek* 

o Inyo-25-Independence 

o Inyo-29-Lone Pine* 

o Inyo-30-Mesa 

o Inyo-31-Millpond 

o Inyo-41-Shoshone 

o Inyo-45-Tecopa 

o Inyo-48-West Bishop* 

 

*Communities with several locations that are identified as "served” locations—design only to the groups 

of unserved locations and locations “in passing” in the CPUC broadband map. 

 

 

https://www.broadbandmap.ca.gov/


County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 151 (Independent Design Professional/Consultant)  

Page 11 

7/25/2023 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND ONWARD NETWORKS, INC D/B/A ONWARD 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF DETAILED NETWORK ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES 

 

 
 TERM: 
 
 

FROM: September 24, 2024 TO: January 25, 2025 
 
 
 
 SCHEDULE OF FEES: 
 
The Local Agency Technical Assistance grant is a reimbursement grant.  The completed project deliverables 
will be presented to the CPUC as a completed work product for reimbursement through the County of Inyo. 
 
Design Engineering work to be billed at $150 per hour. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 151 (Independent Design Professional/Consultant)  

Page 12 

7/25/2023 

 ATTACHMENT C 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND ONWARD NETWORKS, INC D/B/A ONWARD 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF DETAILED NETWORK ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES 

 
 
 TERM: 
 
 

FROM: September 24, 2024 TO: January 25, 2025 
 
 
 
 SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT: 
 
No travel or per diem to be paid under this contract. 

 
 

 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 151 (Independent Design Professional/Consultant)  

Page 13 

7/25/2023 

ATTACHMENT D 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND ONWARD NETWORKS, INC D/B/A ONWARD 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF DETAILED NETWORK ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES 

 
 TERM: 
 
 

FROM: September 24, 2024 TO: January 25, 2025 
 

 
SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS   

 



Attachment: 2024 Insurance Requirements for  
Design Professionals, including Architects, Engineers, and Surveyors  

County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Design Professionals 20240311/ah 

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries 
to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 
work hereunder and the results of that work by the Consultant, their agents, representatives, or 
employees.  

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an 
“occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury 
and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence. If a general 
aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 
project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required 
occurrence limit.  

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering any auto (Code 
1), or if Consultant has no owned autos, covering hired (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code 9), 
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, 
and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 
injury or disease.  

4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions): Insurance appropriate to the Consultant’s 
profession, with limit no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate. 

If the Consultant maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, Inyo 
County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained by the 
Consultant. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and 
coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 
Additional Insured Status: Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered 
as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in 
connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an 
endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or if not 
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if a later 
edition is used).  

Primary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo County, 
its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.  



Attachment: 2024 Insurance Requirements for  
Design Professionals, including Architects, Engineers, and Surveyors  

County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Design Professionals 20240311/ah 

Notice of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to Inyo County.  

Umbrella or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability 
limits as required in this agreement. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true “following 
form” or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the underlying 
Commercial General liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional Insureds, 
whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called upon to 
contribute toa loss until the Contractor’s primary and excess liability policies are exhausted.  

Waiver of Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation 
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss 
under such insurance. The contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect 
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  

Self-Insured Retentions: Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo 
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability 
to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention. 
The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be 
satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County. The CGL and Professional Liability policies must 
provide that defense costs, including ALAE, will satisfy the SIR or deductible.  

Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the 
state with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  

Claims Made Policies: If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:  
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning of 

contract work.  
2. Insurance must be maintained, and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years 

after completion of the contract of work.  
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with 

a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase “extended 
reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.  

 
Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original certificates and amendatory 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause. All 
certificates and endorsements and copies of all Declarations and Endorsements pages are to be received 
and approved by Inyo County before work commences. However, failure to obtain the required 
documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s obligation to provide them. Inyo 
County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including 
endorsements required by these specifications, at any time.  
 
Special Risks or Circumstances: Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including 
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-697  

 

Approval of Renewal of Land Mobile Radio Site Leases 
on Cerro Gordo 

County Administrator - Information Services 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Noam Shendar, Chief Information Officer Noam Shendar, Chief Information Officer 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the amendments to the leases between the County of Inyo and Mountain Investments, 
extending the leases by 10 years to August 2034, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future 
budgets, and authorize the Chief Information Officer to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Approve the amendment to the lease agreements between the County of Inyo and Mountain Investments 
for tower and rack space on Cerro Gordo for use by the Inyo County Sheriff's Office, Roads Department, 
and EMS, extending the lease by 10 years to August 2034, contingent upon the Board’s approval of 
future budgets, and authorize the Chief Information Officer to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding  
Source 

General Fund Budget Unit 011810 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5291 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure Sole Source? Yes 
If Sole Source, provide justification below 
The lessor is the only facility available on Cerro Gordo. 
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Continue the monthly charges as follows: 
ICSO: $1,198.19 ($14,378.28 annually) 
EMS: $948.19 ($11,378.28 annually) 
Roads: $474.08 ($5,688.96 annually) 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
The lease will continue for 10 years, totaling just under $314,500. 
Additional Information 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board may choose not to extend the leases in question, in which case, the County would be 
required to remove all radio equipment from Cerro Gordo. This is not recommended as it would result in 
reduced or no radio coverage in Lone Pine, Cartago, Olancha, and Coso Junction. In addition, 
equipment removal is labor-intensive and will result in additional costs. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
High Quality Services I Public Safety and Emergency Response 
 
APPROVALS: 
Noam Shendar Created/Initiated - 9/5/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/6/2024 
Noam Shendar Approved - 9/10/2024 
Keri Oney Approved - 9/10/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 9/11/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/11/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 9/13/2024 
 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. First Amendment to Antenna Site Agreement/Inyo County Road  
2. Second Amendment to Antenna Site Agreement/Inyo County EMS 
3. Second Amendment to Antenna Site Agreement/Inyo County Sheriff 
4. Sole Source Authorization Form 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



lnyo County Road Cerro Gordo

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE ANTENNA SITE AGREEMENT

This First Amendment to the Antenna Site Agreement ("First Amendment"), dated as

of July 1, 2024 for reference purposes only, is by and between Western Summit Enterprises,

lnc., i California corporation d.b.a. Mountain lnvestments ("Lessor") and County of lnyo

("Lessee")

RECITALS

A. Pursuant to that certain Antenna Site Agreement dated December 1, 2003

("Agreement"), Lessor has leased to Lessee and Lessee has leased from Lessor, the right

io install and operate certain "Site Equipment" within the "Building" and on the "Antenna

Site," (as such terms are defined in the Agreement) which are located at Cerro Gordo Peak,

near Keeler, in lnyo County, California.

B. The Agreement is set to expire on August 1,2024. Lessor and Lessee desire

to amend the Agreement to extend the term of the Agreement on the terms and conditions

set fourth herein

AGREEMENTS

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set

forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

i. Par. 3 of the Agreement is hereby replaced in its entirety with the Par. 3 that

follows:

"3. Term. The term of this Agreement (the "lnitial Term") shall be ten (10) years

commencing on August 1,2024. Lessee shall have the right to extend the Term of this

Agreementior onelt; aOOitional term of ten (10) years. The Term will be automatically

eitended unless Lessee notifies Lessor in writing of Lessee's intention not to extend this

Agreement at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the lnitial Term.

This Agreement shall be deemed subordinate to the BLM Grant and in the event of any

conflicibetween the terms and provisions of the BLM Grant and the terms and provisions of

the Agreement, the terms and provisions of the BLM Grant shall control. Notwithstanding

anything to the contrary set forth herein, expiration of the BLM Grant, or termination of the
gL'M Ciant for any reison beyond the reasonable control of Lessor shall terminate this

Agreement."

2. This First Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be

deemed an original as against the party signing such counterpart, but together

shall constitute one and the same instrument.

3. Other Terms and Conditions Remain. ln the event of any inconsistencies

between the Agreement and this Amendment, the terms of this Amendment shall control.

Except as expressly set forth in this Amendment, the Agreement othenrvise is unmodified

and iemains in full force and effect. Each reference in the Agreement to itself shall be

deemed also to refer to this Amendment.

1



lnyo County Road Cerro Gordo

4. Capitalized Terms. All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall

have the same meanings as defined in the Agreement

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this First Amendment to the

Antenna Site Agreement as of the date first written above.

LESSOR: MOUNTAIN INVESTMENTS

Name: LL

Title:

Date

LESSEE COUNTY OF INYO

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

By:

2



lnyo County EMS Cerro Gordo

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE ANTENNA SITE AGREEMENT

This Second Amendment to the Antenna Site Agreement ("Second Amendment"),

dated as of July 1, 2024 for reference purposes only, is by and between Western Summit

Enterprises, lnb., a California corporation d.b.a. Mountain lnvestments ("Lessor") and

County of lnyo ("Lessee")

RECITALS

A. Pursuant to that certain Antenna Site Agreement dated December 1, 2003

and First Amendment to the Antenna Site Agreement dated June 1 ,2015 (collectively, the
"Agreemnet"), Lessor has leased to Lessee and Lessee has leased from Lessor, the right to

ins-tall and operate certain "Site Equipment" within the "Building" and on the "Antenna Site,"

(as such terms are defined in the Agreement) which are located at Cerro Gordo Peak, near

Keeler, in lnyo County, California.

B. The Agreement is set to expire on August 1,2024. Lessor and Lessee desire

to amend the Agreement to extend the term of the Agreement on the terms and conditions

set fourth herein

AGREEMENTS

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set

forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Par. 3 of the Agreement is hereby replaced in its entiretywith the Par.3 that

follows:

"3. Term. The term of this Agreement (the "lnitial Term") shall be ten (10) years

commencing on August 1,2024. Lessee shall have the right to extend the Term of this

Agreementior onelt; aOOitional term of ten (10) years. The Term will be automatically

eitended unless Lessee notifies Lessor in writing of Lessee's intention not to extend this

Agreement at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the lnitial Term.

This Agreement shall be deemed subordinate to the BLM Grant and in the event of any

conflicibetween the terms and provisions of the BLM Grant and the terms and provisions of

the Agreement, the terms and provisions of the BLM Grant shall control. Notwithstanding

anything to the contrary set forth herein, expiration of the BLM Grant, or termination of the
gli/ Ciant for any reison beyond the reasonable control of Lessor shall terminate this

Agreement."

2. This Second Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which

shall be deemed an original as against the party signing such counterpart, but together

shall constitute one and the same instrument.

3. Other Terms and Conditions Remain. ln the event of any inconsistencies
between the Agreement and this Amendment, the terms of this Amendment shall control'

Except as e*p6ssly set forth in this Amendment, the Agreement otherwise is unmodified

and iemains in full force and effect. Each reference in the Agreement to itself shall be

deemed also to refer to this Amendment.

1



lnyo County EMS Cerro Gordo

4. Capitalized Terms. All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall
have the same meanings as defined in the Agreement

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Second Amendment to the
Antenna Site Agreement as of the date first written above.

LESSOR: MOUNTAIN INVESTMENTS

Name

Title:

Date:

LESSEE: COUNTY OF INYO

By

Name

Title:

Date:

By:

2



lnyo County Sheriff Cerro Gordo

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE ANTENNA SITE AGREEMENT

This Second Amendment to the Antenna Site Agreement ("Second Amendment"),

dated as of July 1 , 2024 for reference purposes only, is by and between Western Summit

Enterprises, lnc., a California corporation d.b.a. Mountain lnvestments ("Lessor") and

County of lnyo ("Lessee")

RECITALS

A. Pursuant to that certain Antenna Site Agreement dated December 31, 2003

and First Amendment to the Antenna Site Agreement dated July 22,2004 (collectively, the
"Agreement"), Lessor has leased to Lessee and Lessee has leased from Lessor, the right to

install and operate certain "Site Equipment" within the "Building" and on the "Antenna Site,"

(as such terms are defined in the Agreement) which are located at Cerro Gordo Peak, near

Keeler, in lnyo County, California.

B. The Agreement is set to expire on September 1, 2024. Lessor and Lessee

desire to amend the Agreement to extend the term of the Agreement on the terms and

conditions set fourth herein

AGREEMENTS

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set

forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Par. 3 of the Agreement is hereby replaced in its entirety with the Par. 3 that

follows:

'3. Term. The term of this Agreement (the "lnitial Term") shall be ten (10) years

commencing on September 1 ,2024. Lessee shall have the right to extend the Term of this

Agreement for one (1) additional term of ten (10) years. The Term will be automatically
eitended unless Lessee notifies Lessor in writing of Lessee's intention not to extend this

Agreement at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the lnitial Term.

This Agreement shall be deemed subordinate to the BLM Grant and in the event of any

conflicibetween the terms and provisions of the BLM Grant and the terms and provisions of
the Agreement, the terms and provisions of the BLM Grant shall control. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary set forth herein, expiration of the BLM Grant, or termination of the

ALM Ciant for any reason beyond the reasonable control of Lessor shall terminate this

Agreement."

2. This Second Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which

shall be deemed an original as against the party signing such counterpart, but together

shall constitute one and the same instrument.

3. Other Terms and Conditions Remain. ln the event of any inconsistencies
between the Agreement and this Amendment, the terms of this Amendment shall control.

Except as expressly set forth in this Amendment, the Agreement othenivise is unmodified

and iemains in full force and effect. Each reference in the Agreement to itself shall be

deemed also to refer to this Amendment.

1



lnyo County Sheriff Cerro Gordo

3. This Second Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which

shall be deemed an original as against the party signing such counterpart, but together

shall constitute one and the same instrument.

4. Other Terms and Conditions Remain. ln the event of any inconsistencies

between the Agreement and this Amendment, the terms of this Amendment shall control.

Except "r ""prlrtly 
set forth in this Amendment, the Agreement otherwise is unmodified

and remains in full force and effect. Each reference in the Agreement to itself shall be

deemed also to refer to this Amendment.

S. Capitalized Terms. All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall

have the same meanings as defined in the Agreement

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Second Amendment to the

Antenna Site Agreement as of the date first written above-

LESSOR: MOUNTAIN INVESTMENTS

Name

By:

Title:

Date: 4/ 6 I ztt

- 

/ /

LESSEE COUNTY OF INYO

By:

Name

Title:

Date.

2



County of Inyo
Sole Source Authorization Form

Required Action 
Compliance with the competitive process is not required, but price shopping 

is encouraged.

Three informal bids (e.g. printouts from websites showing prices or quotes 
solicited from vendors) must be obtained.

 Informal bids received
Three informal bids (e.g. printouts from websites showing prices or quotes 

solicited from vendors) must be obtained.
 Informal bids received

A formal RFP or RFQ must be prepared and publicized, with sealed 
submissions opened on a predetermined date.

 RFP/RFQ Received by Board Clerk on ________________
A formal RFP or RFQ must be prepared and publicized, with sealed 

submissions opened on a predetermined date.       
 Board Approval Required 

Sole source procurements are the exception, not the norm. They are to be used sparingly and shall not be used 
in lieu of any competitive process simply because the department failed to allot sufficient time to engage in the 

competitive process or because the department finds the competitive process to be onerous.

A sole source procurement may be justified in the following situations: Section II.D.1 (located on page 6)

Vendor:

Date:

Select one of the following:

The proposed contractor has a substantial investment that would have to be duplicated at the County’s 
expense by another contractor entering the field.

A critical proposed schedule for the service and/or product that only one proposed contractor can meet.

A lack of competition because of the existence of patent rights, copyrights, trade secrets, and/or location.

The capability of the proposed contractor is critical to the specific effort and makes the contractor clearly 
unique compared to other contractors in the general field.

The proposed contractor has prior experience of a highly specialized nature that is vital to the proposed 
effort.

The proposed contractor has facilities, staffing, or equipment that are specialized and vital to the services 
being requested.

Over $75,000

Amount

Less than or equal to $5,000

$5,001 to $10,000

$10,001 to $25,000

$25,001 to $75,000

Page 1 of 2

Mountain Investments - T019698
Sep 5, 2024

✔



County of Inyo
Sole Source Authorization Form

Department Head Signature

Sole Source Approval

Purchasing Agent Signature

County Counsel Signature

Auditor-Controller Signature

Sole Source Justification:

Page 2 of 2

Noam Shendar (Sep 5, 2024 23:58 PDT)
Noam Shendar

Denelle Carrington (Sep 6, 2024 06:57 PDT)
Denelle Carrington

John-Carl Vallejo (Sep 12, 2024 12:14 PDT)
John-Carl Vallejo

Christie Martindale (Sep 16, 2024 15:20 PDT)
Christie Martindale



Purchasing Policy form-Sole Source-Mtn
Investments
Final Audit Report 2024-09-16

Created: 2024-09-12

By: Noam Shendar (nshendar@inyocounty.us)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAmUIONTmZybm6QyIOWjd60cey_Lm0toVQ

"Purchasing Policy form-Sole Source-Mtn Investments" History
Document created by Noam Shendar (nshendar@inyocounty.us)
2024-09-12 - 7:02:02 PM GMT

Document emailed to John-Carl Vallejo (jcvallejo@inyocounty.us) for signature
2024-09-12 - 7:02:42 PM GMT

Email viewed by John-Carl Vallejo (jcvallejo@inyocounty.us)
2024-09-12 - 7:13:56 PM GMT

Document e-signed by John-Carl Vallejo (jcvallejo@inyocounty.us)
Signature Date: 2024-09-12 - 7:14:15 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Document sent to Christie Martindale (cmartindale@inyocounty.us) and inyoauditor@inyocounty.us for
signature. One of them to sign
2024-09-12 - 7:14:16 PM GMT

Email viewed by inyoauditor@inyocounty.us
2024-09-12 - 9:08:12 PM GMT

Document e-signed by Christie Martindale (cmartindale@inyocounty.us)
Signature Date: 2024-09-16 - 10:20:46 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Agreement completed.
2024-09-16 - 10:20:46 PM GMT



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-698  

 

Approval of Purchase of Land Mobile Radios for the 
Sheriff's Office 

County Administrator - Information Services 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Noam Shendar, Chief Information Officer, Tim 
Bachman, Assistant Sheriff 

Noam Shendar, Chief Information Officer 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Authorize two purchase orders in an amount not to exceed $155,000 and $65,000, respectively, payable 
to BlackPoint LLC of Gardnerville, NV, for in-vehicle and handheld radios (respectively) for the Sheriff's 
Office. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Inyo County Sheriff's Office (ICSO), along with other allied public safety departments and agencies, 
rely on reliable radio communication systems to ensure the safety of personnel and efficiency of 
operations. Over the past year, the department has been actively working with Inyo County Information 
Services and Administration to upgrade the agency's legacy Very High Frequency (VHF) radio system to 
ensure that it functions appropriately and meets operational needs.  
 
As part of this effort, the department needs to replace a number of aging and poorly functioning 
"subscriber" radios which are used by personnel in the field. A significant number of these radios are at 
the end of their useful life and are at the point where they are beginning to fail, and replacement parts 
are no longer available for the purpose of repair. This necessitates purchasing a current model which is 
supported by the manufacturer and can be serviced appropriately during its life cycle.  
 
The selection of the new radios proposed for acquisition under this item is guided by three principles: 
ruggedness/reliability, analog VHF for long-term interoperability, and consideration of the future needs 
and trajectory of the system. After a thorough review process, ICSO leadership determined Bendix King 
to be the vendor of preference, with an appropriate unit type for both in-vehicle (mobile) and on-belt 
(portable) usage. 
 
This item is requesting approval of the Sole Source determination (more fully described in the financial 
section below) as well as the Purchase Order necessary to move this acquisition forward.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding  
Source 

General Fund Budget Unit 011810 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5232 
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure Sole Source? Yes 
If Sole Source, provide justification below 
The vendor is uniquely situated to program the radios based on our own operational procedures, as well 
as those of key partner agencies such as the Bishop Police Department. In addition, the vendor is the 
only one able to service these radios on site on sufficiently short notice. 
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
A total of $140,785.76 + $56,981.12 = $197,766.88 + 7.75% tax = $213,093.81 (with not-to-exceed 
amounts slightly higher, in the event that manufacturer prices fluctuate). 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
Maintenance in future years is estimated at $4,140 per year for all the radios purchased herein. 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to approve this purchase. This is not recommended as it would result in the 
Sheriff's Office to continue using its existing, aging radios, for which there is no reliable source of 
replacement parts, and a growing number of which are experiencing issues ranging from poor audio 
quality to failure. In addition, the existing radios would not be compatible with State mandates regarding 
encrypting Personally Identifiable Information (PII) transmitted over these radios. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
High Quality Services I Public Safety and Emergency Response 
 
APPROVALS: 
Noam Shendar Created/Initiated - 9/5/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/6/2024 
Noam Shendar Approved - 9/10/2024 
Keri Oney Approved - 9/10/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 9/11/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/12/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 9/15/2024 
 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. BlackPoint L.L.C. Quote/Handheld Radio Equipment 
2. BlackPoint L.L.C. Quote/Kng M-150 Remote Mount 
3. Sole Source Authorization Form  
  

 
 

 
 
 
 



QUOTE 

BlackPoint L.L.C.
1407 Arlen Ln
Gardnerville Nv 89410
760-258-5389
BlackPointcorp@yahoo.com                     DATE:  8/26/2024

                       

TO: INYO COUNTY SHERIFF
550 S. CLAY ST,
INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526

                     
JOB: BK  HANDHELD RADIO EQUIPMENT 

QUOTE GOOD FOR 30 DAYS 

P.O.#     

DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE LINE TOTAL

BKR5000 HANDHELDPort, VHF 136-174MHz, 5000Ch, 6W,T3, BLK, Ch Stop, 
BT W/ENCRYPTION/DESKTOP CHARGER/SPEAKER MIC 

23 $2,477.44 $56,981.12

SHIPPING TO BE DETERMINED AT TIME OF SHIPMENT           $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

SUBTOTAL $56,981.12

SALES TAX      

TOTAL $56,981.12

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!



QUOTE 

BlackPoint L.L.C.
1407 Arlen Ln
Gardnerville Nv 89410
760-258-5389
BlackPointcorp@yahoo.com                     DATE:  8/26/2024

                       

TO:  INYO COUNTY SHERIFF
550 S. CLAY ST,
INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526

                     
JOB: KNG M-150 REMOTE MOUNT 

QUOTE GOOD FOR 30 DAYS 

P.O.#     

DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE LINE TOTAL

 KNG M-150HPE REMOTE MOUNT HIGH POWER Mobile, Trunk Mount, P25, 
136-174 MHz, 5000Ch, 110 WATT, w/Encryption, Integrated GPS

23 $2,380.97 $54,762.31

KAA0636 17' REMOTE MOUNT CABLE 23 $101.64 $2,337.72

KAA0660 REMOTE HEAD 23 $922.68 $21,221.64

KAA0276S STANDARD MIC  23 $180.83 $4,159.09

PYRAMID SVR350V Vehicular Repeater 150-174 MHz 15 KHz/NON-P25 23 $1,620.00 $37,260.00

BPF-1604-A Pre-selector (150-169) MHz, Factory Tuned 23 $286.00 $6,578.00

BRF-1602-A Dual Notch Filter (150-160) MHz, Factory Tuned 23 $286.00 $6,578.00

TCK-203 3' TNC Cable Kit 23 $78.00 $1,794.00

LAIRD WIDE SPEC ANTENNA 23 $75.00 $1,725.00

LAIRD SKU 461105 PHANTOM ANTENNA 156-174 23 $130.00 $2,990.00

LAIRD ANTENNA MOUNT WITH CONNECTOR 46 $30.00 $1,380.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

               $0.00

SUBTOTAL $140,785.76

SALES TAX      

TOTAL $140,785.76

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!



County of Inyo
Sole Source Authorization Form

Required Action 
Compliance with the competitive process is not required, but price shopping 

is encouraged.

Three informal bids (e.g. printouts from websites showing prices or quotes 
solicited from vendors) must be obtained.

 Informal bids received
Three informal bids (e.g. printouts from websites showing prices or quotes 

solicited from vendors) must be obtained.
 Informal bids received

A formal RFP or RFQ must be prepared and publicized, with sealed 
submissions opened on a predetermined date.

 RFP/RFQ Received by Board Clerk on ________________
A formal RFP or RFQ must be prepared and publicized, with sealed 

submissions opened on a predetermined date.       
 Board Approval Required 

Sole source procurements are the exception, not the norm. They are to be used sparingly and shall not be used 
in lieu of any competitive process simply because the department failed to allot sufficient time to engage in the 

competitive process or because the department finds the competitive process to be onerous.

A sole source procurement may be justified in the following situations: Section II.D.1 (located on page 6)

Vendor:

Date:

Select one of the following:

The proposed contractor has a substantial investment that would have to be duplicated at the County’s 
expense by another contractor entering the field.

A critical proposed schedule for the service and/or product that only one proposed contractor can meet.

A lack of competition because of the existence of patent rights, copyrights, trade secrets, and/or location.

The capability of the proposed contractor is critical to the specific effort and makes the contractor clearly 
unique compared to other contractors in the general field.

The proposed contractor has prior experience of a highly specialized nature that is vital to the proposed 
effort.

The proposed contractor has facilities, staffing, or equipment that are specialized and vital to the services 
being requested.

Over $75,000

Amount

Less than or equal to $5,000

$5,001 to $10,000

$10,001 to $25,000

$25,001 to $75,000

Page 1 of 2

V004579 - BlackPoint LLC
Aug 30, 2024

✔

✔



County of Inyo
Sole Source Authorization Form

Department Head Signature

Sole Source Approval

Purchasing Agent Signature

County Counsel Signature

Auditor-Controller Signature

Sole Source Justification:

Page 2 of 2

Noam Shendar (Aug 30, 2024 13:51 PDT)
Noam Shendar

Denelle Carrington (Aug 30, 2024 15:36 PDT)
Denelle Carrington

John-Carl Vallejo (Sep 3, 2024 10:27 PDT)
John-Carl Vallejo

Christie Martindale (Sep 5, 2024 16:16 PDT)
Christie Martindale



Sole Source Approval for BlackPoint LLC
Final Audit Report 2024-09-05

Created: 2024-09-05

By: Noam Shendar (nshendar@inyocounty.us)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAyRhD-2UBxte-Yoiv1bxNu_PMbp8Vt993

"Sole Source Approval for BlackPoint LLC" History
Document created by Noam Shendar (nshendar@inyocounty.us)
2024-09-05 - 11:14:04 PM GMT

Document emailed to Christie Martindale (cmartindale@inyocounty.us) for signature
2024-09-05 - 11:14:39 PM GMT

Email viewed by Christie Martindale (cmartindale@inyocounty.us)
2024-09-05 - 11:16:13 PM GMT

Document e-signed by Christie Martindale (cmartindale@inyocounty.us)
Signature Date: 2024-09-05 - 11:16:24 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Agreement completed.
2024-09-05 - 11:16:24 PM GMT



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-618  

 

Electrical Cost Sharing Agreement with Caltrans for the 
Installation, Operations, Maintenance, Repair, and 

Replacement of Meadow Farms Pedestrian Lighting 
Public Works 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Justine Kokx, Transportation Planner Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the cost sharing agreement between the County of Inyo and the Department of Transportation 
of California (Caltrans) for the electrical sharing costs of 47 pedestrian scale lights on U.S. 395 from See 
Vee Lane to 0.1 mile north of Barlow Lane, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
California Streets and Highways Code Sections 114 and 130 allow the Department of Transportation to 
enter into cooperative agreements to share costs of improving and maintaining state highways located in 
whole or in part within the limits of a county. 
 
The proposed agreement is regarding sharing electrical costs of pedestrian scale lighting upgrades on 
US 395 from See Vee Ln. to 0.1 mile north of Barlow Ln., also referred to as the Meadow Farms 
project.  The Meadow Farms project will construct 10-foot wide sidewalks and pedestrian scale lighting 
on both sides of US 395, between See Vee Lane and Barlow Lane.  
 
Caltrans has prepared an agreement with Inyo County as a mechanism to share electrical costs. 
Specifically, Caltrans will provide the full capital cost for the purchase and installation of the 47 light 
poles. If a light pole is damaged by an errant vehicle, vandalism, act of God, normal wear and tear, or 
system failure, Caltrans will replace the lighting pole. Inyo County will be responsible for electricity costs 
on a reimbursement basis. The anticipated electricity costs are estimated to be under $2,000 annually. 
The project is scheduled for construction in March-April 2025. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund Budget Unit 011100 

Budgeted? No Object Code 5351 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

$2000 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
$2000 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board of Supervisors could choose not to approve the Agreement for cost sharing of electrical 
facilities with the State. This is not recommended because the costs associated with the project are not 
overly burdensome, and the State has the option to seek cooperative agreements such as this for 
segments of state highways containing intersections with County roads. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Caltrans; Inyo County Counsel 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
Thriving Communities | Community Supporting Infrastructure Improvements 
 
APPROVALS: 
Justine Kokx Created/Initiated - 9/12/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/13/2024 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 9/13/2024 
Michael Errante Approved - 9/17/2024 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 9/17/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/17/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 9/17/2024 
 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Meadow Farms Lighting Agreement  
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



REV 01/2023 

1 

 

ELECTRICAL FACILITIES COST SHARING AGREEMENT 

WITH COUNTY OF INYO  

 

THIS ELECTRICAL FACILITIES COST SHARING AGREEMENT (“AGREEMENT”) is made 

by and between the State of California, acting by and through the Department 

of Transportation ("STATE") and the County of Inyo (“LOCAL AGENCY”), 

individually referred to as a “PARTY” and joint as “PARTIES.” 

 

RECITALS 

 

1. This AGREEMENT will specify the LOCAL AGENCY’s and STATE’s respective 

costs associated with the installation, operation, maintenance, repair and 

replacement of electrical facilities, including pedestrian scale street  

lighting US 395 within the jurisdictional limits of the LOCAL AGENCY. 

 
 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 

 

1. Updates to Exhibits. Changes to PARTIES’ electrical facilities cost sharing 

arrangement, resulting from future additions, improvements or alterations 

to the electrical facilities covered in this AGREEMENT may be made by 

PARTIES attaching amended Exhibit(s) or addendum to the Exhibit(s). 

 

2. Amendment to Agreement.  Except as provided in the preceding Section 

concerning Exhibit amendments, the terms of the AGREEMENT can be 

changed only by a mutual written amendment by PARTIES. 

 

3. Successors. This AGREEMENT shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 

of each of the PARTIES and their respective successors-in-interest including, 

any subsequently incorporated city or other municipality established within 

the LOCAL AGENCY’s jurisdictional limits. If the successor city or municipality 

fails to accept the obligations of the LOCAL AGENCY by entering into a 

new agreement with STATE, LOCAL AGENCY shall continue to be 

contractually bound by the terms of this AGREEMENT.  

 

4. Permits STATE can enter the LOCAL AGENCY jurisdiction to perform any 

maintenance or work to the facilities covered by this AGREEMENT, without 

permits from LOCAL AGENCY. When feasible STATE shall provide advance 

notification by phone call or email to LOCAL AGENCY contact.  

 

5. Electrical Facilities.  This AGREEMENT specifies the LOCAL AGENCY’s and 

STATE’s respective costs associated with the operation, maintenance, 

repair and replacement of the electrical facilities specifically listed in Exhibit 

A under two categories one for STATE Owned and Maintained and another 

for LOCAL AGENCY owned. 

 



REV 01/2023 

2 

 

 

 

6.  Cost Sharing and Apportionment.  Exhibit A lists the percentage of electrical 

facilities costs apportioned to each PARTY and shall be based on STATE’s 

actual costs.  

 

7. Reimbursement of Actual Costs.  

A. STATE shall pay for all the expenses stated in the “Basis for Billing” section 

below, for all the electrical facilities listed under STATE Owned and 

Maintained table shown in Exhibit A and seek reimbursement from 

LOCAL AGENCY as per the percentage stated in that table in Exhibit A.  

When a lighting pole identified on Exhibit A is damaged from an errant 

vehicle, vandalism, act of God, normal wear and tear, or system failure 

STATE will replace the lighting pole at the STATE’s expense. 

 

8. Costs 

 

A. Basis for Billing 

 

a. Total maintenance costs for pedestrian scale street lighting shall 

be based on actual costs, including but not limited to the 

following: 

 

i. Electrical energy 

 

B. STATE will bill LOCAL AGENCY quarterly, in arrears, for LOCAL AGENCY’s 

share of electrical facilities costs listed in Exhibit “A” and shown on Exhibit 

“B.” 

 

9.   Budget Contingency.  STATE’s obligation under this Agreement is 

contingent upon the Legislature appropriating sufficient funds under the 

Budget Act, and the encumbrance of funding to the STATE’s District Office. 

 

10.  Legal Relations and Responsibilities. 

 

A. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This AGREEMENT is not intended to create 

duties, obligations, or rights of third parties beyond the PARTIES to the 

AGREEMENT.  Nor does this AGREEMENT affect a PARTY’s legal liability by 

imposing any standard of care for the operation and maintenance of 

STATE highways and LOCAL AGENCY facilities different from the 

standard of care imposed by law. 

 

B. Indemnification.  Neither LOCAL AGENCY nor any of its officers or 

employees is responsible for any injury, damage or liability occurring by 

reason of anything done or omitted to be done by STATE, under or in 

connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction conferred upon STATE  



REV 01/2023 

3 

 

 

arising under this AGREEMENT. STATE, pursuant to Government Code 

Section 895.4, shall fully defend, indemnify, and save harmless LOCAL 

AGENCY and its officers and employees from all claims, suits or actions 

of every kind occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be 

done by STATE under this Agreement. 

  

Neither STATE nor any of its officers or employees is responsible for any 

injury, damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or 

omitted to be done by LOCAL AGENCY, under or in connection with any 

work, authority or jurisdiction conferred upon LOCAL AGENCY arising 

under this AGREEMENT.  LOCAL AGENCY, pursuant to Government 

Code Section 895.4, shall fully defend, indemnify, and save harmless 

STATE and its officers and employees from all claims, suits or actions of 

every kind occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done 

by LOCAL AGENCY under this AGREEMENT. 

 

11.  Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by a formal agreement. 

 

12. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the last date 

each PARTY’s authorized representative has executed this AGREEMENT. 

 

13. Authority.  Each individual executing this AGREEMENT on behalf of each   

PARTY represents and warrants that he/she is duly authorized to execute 

this AGREEMENT. LOCAL AGENCY represents and certifies that it has, 

through its regular political process, authorized the execution of this 

AGREEMENT by appropriate resolution, delegation, or plenary authority as 

required. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



REV 01/2023 

4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THE LOCAL AGENCY OF Inyo County   

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

       

          

Dated: 
     

 

 
  

Matt Kingsley 

Chairman   
 

INITIATED AND APPROVED: 
  

  

Dated:    
  

Dated: 
   

 
  

Michael Errante  

Public Works Director 

     

Bryan Winzenread 

Deputy District Director 

Maintenance District  

Dated: 
     

 
   

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND PROCEDURE  

Dated: 
    

   

Grace Weitz  

Assistant County 

Counsel  

 
    

Michael Errante (Sep 10, 2024 17:08 PDT)
Michael Errante09/10/24

Grace Weitz (Sep 11, 2024 12:43 PDT)
Grace Weitz09/11/24

09/12/24



REV 01/2023 

5 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 

Effective ___________________, 20____ 

 

BASIS OF COST DISTRIBUTION 

 

STATE Owned and Maintained 

Electrical Energy Cost Share Billed by STATE 

 

 

Route and 

PM   

Location                                                                                                          Type of Facility           Cost Distribution  

   STATE LOCAL 

AGENCY 

US 395 PM 

117.3/117.9 

Near Bishop 

from See 

Vee Ln to 0.1 

mile north of 

Barlow Ln. 

47 pedestrian 

scale lights 

CT ID’s: 

09483950117480L, 

09483950117481L 

0% 100% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



REV 01/2023 

6 

 

 

Exhibit B 

 

 

Map of Agreement Area 

 

 

 

 
 

 

US 395 – County of Inyo 

Electrical Facilities Cost Sharing Agreement 

 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-618  

 

Electrical Cost Sharing Agreement with Caltrans for the 
Installation, Operations, Maintenance, Repair and 

Replacement of Meadow Farms Pedestrian Lighting 
Public Works 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Justine Kokx, Transportation Planner Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the electrical cost sharing agreement between the County of Inyo and the Department of 
Transportation of California (Caltrans) for the electrical sharing costs of 47 pedestrian scale lights on US 
395 from See Vee Ln to 0.1 mile north of Barlow Ln, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent 
upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
California Streets and Highways Code Sections 114 and 130 allow the Department of Transportation to 
enter into cooperative agreements to share costs of improving and maintaining state highways located in 
whole or in part within the limits of a county. 
 
The proposed agreement is regarding sharing electrical costs of pedestrian scale lighting upgrades on 
US 395 from See Vee Ln. to 0.1 mile north of Barlow Ln., also referred to as the Meadow Farms 
project.  The Meadow Farms project will construct 10-foot wide sidewalks and pedestrian scale lighting 
on both sides of US 395, between See Vee Lane and Barlow Lane.  
 
Caltrans has prepared an agreement with Inyo County as a mechanism to share electrical costs. 
Specifically, Caltrans will provide the full capital cost for the purchase and installation of the 47 light 
poles. If a light pole is damaged by an errant vehicle, vandalism, act of God, normal wear and tear, or 
system failure, Caltrans will replace the lighting pole. Inyo County will be responsible for electricity costs 
on a reimbursement basis. The anticipated electricity costs are estimated to be under $2,000 annually. 
The project is scheduled for construction in March-April 2025. 
 
  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund / Non-General Fund  Budget Unit  

Budgeted? No Object Code  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
$2000 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
$2000 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board of Supervisors could choose not to approve the Agreement for cost sharing of electrical 
facilities with the State. This is not recommended because the costs associated with the project are not 
overly burdensome, and the State has the option to seek cooperative agreements such as this for 
segments of state highways containing intersections with County roads. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Caltrans  
Inyo County Counsel 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT:  
 
APPROVALS: 
Justine Kokx Created -  
Darcy Ellis 

 

Breanne Nelums 
 

Michael Errante 
 

Grace Chuchla 
 

Amy Shepherd 
 

Nate Greenberg 
 

 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-643  

 

Amendment No. 2 to the Contract between the County of 
Inyo and Stantec (formerly Cardno, Inc.) of Zephyr Cove, 

NV 
Public Works 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Travis Dean, Engineering Assistant Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Amendment No. 2 to County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 146.1 between the County of Inyo 
and Stantec (formerly Cardno, Inc.) of Zephyr Cove, NV for the provision of Environmental and 
Engineering Services, changing the end date of the contract from October 31, 2024 to December 31, 
2025 for the Lone Pine Town Streets Project, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
On March 15, 2022, your Board approved the Consultant Contract with Cardno, Inc. for the provision of 
Environmental and Engineering Consultant Services in support of the State Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP) Lone Pine Town Streets Project. The Lone Pine Town Streets STIP Project consists of 
preserving, extending life, and improving the quality of ride on various streets in Lone Pine. There are 
also project elements intended to improve access for public transit, pedestrians, and bicycles. There are 
13 streets identified in the Project Study Report included in the scope of the project. New bike lanes are 
proposed to be added to Post Street, Lone Pine Ave., and Lake View Street and improved Eastern 
Sierra Transit Authority (ESTA) bus loading will be delineated on East Muir Street. Crosswalk and 
pedestrian/vehicle flow will be evaluated and changed or reinstalled according to best practices. Non-
compliant curb ramps in the project area should be brought up to ADA standards when warranted. 
Amendment No.1 of this contract also added Whitney Portal Road from the end of the recent Federal 
Lands Access Program (FLAP) Project west to highway 395 and Hay Street from Locust St. to Muir St. to 
the scope of the project. 
 
Public Works is proposing extending the end of contract date from October 31, 2024, to December 31, 
2025, as the funding for construction for this project is scheduled for Fiscal Year 2025-2026. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding  
Source 

Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Program Budget Unit 034601 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5709 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Recurrence Ongoing expenditure through contract 
completion 

 

Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Up to $339,412.54 for the period between 10/31/2024 and 06/30/2025 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
Depends on remaining balance from FY 23/24 
Additional Information 
This contract is fully encumbered 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to approve this Contract Amendment to Cardno’s Contract. This is not 
recommended, as the plans and specifications will not be completed by the end date of the current 
contract. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
Thriving Communities I Community Supporting Infrastructure 
Improvements 
Thriving Communities I Enhanced Transportation Services 
 
APPROVALS: 
Travis Dean Created/Initiated - 9/12/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/13/2024 
Kevin Rainbolt Approved - 9/16/2024 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 9/16/2024 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 9/16/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/16/2024 
Aaron Holmberg Approved - 9/16/2024 
Shannon Platt Approved - 9/17/2024 
Michael Errante Approved - 9/17/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 9/17/2024 
 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Cardno Inc. Contract Amendment No. 2 
2. Cardno Inc. Contract Amendment No. 1 
3. Budget Amendments/Cardno Inc. Contract  
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 146.1 
Amendment No. 2 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 
To 

Agreement Between COUNTY OF INYO and 
Stantec Consulting Services 

For 
Environmental and Engineering Services  

 
WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and Stantec Consulting Services of Zephyr 
Cove, Nevada (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), have entered into an Agreement for the provision of 
environmental and engineering services dated    April 28, 2022    , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 
146.1, for the term from    April 1, 2022        to    October 31, 2024          . That Standard Contract was assigned to 
Stantec Consulting Services Inc. ("Stantec") effective January 1, 2023.  Stantec is the "Consultant" under the 
Standard Contract for all purposes. 
 

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below: 
  
WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted 

from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and executed 
with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 
 

County and Consultant hereby amend such Agreement as follows: 
 

1. The contract term is extended from October 31, 2024, to December 31, 2025. 

2. Update staff and rate table to reflect 2025 rates and staff 
 

The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is 10/31/2024. 
 
All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 146.1 
Amendment No. 2 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 
To 

Agreement Between COUNTY OF INYO and 
Cardno, Inc. 

For 
Environmental and Engineering Services  

 
 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
            DAY OF                                  , 2024. 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     CONSULTANT 
 
 
By:        By:        
 
Dated:        Dated:        
 
        
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND    
LEGALITY:  
 
 
       
County Counsel 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING 
FORM: 
 
       
County Auditor 

 
  

Katie Ross-Smith (Sep 11, 2024 12:26 PDT)
Katie Ross-Smith

Grace Weitz (Sep 11, 2024 12:45 PDT)
Grace Weitz



C
ontract Staff N

am
e

C
ontract C

lassification 
C

urrent C
lassification

C
urrent Staff N

am
e

C
ontract 

C
ost 2022

C
urrent 
C

ost      
2023

C
urrent 
C

ost      
2024

D
iscounted Sr 

C
onsultant only 
3%

 increase 

Fully 
Loaded 

R
ate      

2023

R
evised 
2024

 B
ill R

ate 

R
evised 2024

D
iscounted Sr 

C
onsultant only 3%

 
increase 

2025 B
ill R

ates
 (3%

 increased)

S
tephen P

eck *
S

r. C
onsultant

S
r. C

onsultant
$68.56

$70.62
$104.37

$72.74
$210.03

$216.33
$222.82

B
rian M

cR
ae *

S
r. C

onsultant
S

r. C
onsultant

$68.56
$70.62

$82.62
$72.74

$210.03
$216.33

$222.82
Jason D

ukes *
S

r. C
onsultant

S
r. C

onsultant
$68.56

$70.62
$84.19

$72.74
$210.03

$216.33
$222.82

C
rystal W

est 
S

r. C
onsultant

S
r. C

onsultant
$68.56

$70.46
$74.75

$72.74
$209.55

$216.33
$222.82

G
rant S

chm
itz

S
r. P

roject E
ngineer

S
r. P

roject E
ngineer

$55.29
$58.88

$67.40
$175.11

$200.45
$206.46

P
atricia S

ussm
an

S
r. P

roject S
cientist

S
r. P

roject S
cientist

$49.52
$54.60

$57.33
$162.38

$170.50
$175.62

M
elanie G

reene
S

r. P
roject S

cientist
S

r. P
roject S

cientist
$51.51

$57.55
$60.43

$171.15
$179.72

$185.11
Jennifer C

hase
S

r. P
roject S

cientist
S

r. P
roject S

cientist
$46.32

$50.12
$55.76

$149.06
$165.83

$170.81
S

haun B
uckm

an
P

roject E
ngineer

P
roject E

ngineer
$50.49

$57.90
$172.20

Ivan T
rujillo

P
roject E

ngineer
P

roject E
ngineer

$42.17
$55.28

$68.66
$164.40

$204.20
$210.32

P
arker Johnson

P
roject E

ngineer
P

roject E
ngineer

$41.35
$52.88

$55.53
$157.27

$165.15
$170.10

W
illiam

 T
hom

as
A

utoC
A

D
 T

echnician
A

utoC
A

D
 T

echnician
$29.60

$32.67
$33.98

$97.16
$101.06

$104.09
N

iel K
auffm

an
T

echnician
S

taff S
cientist

$28.00
$30.00

$35.00
$89.22

$104.09
$107.21

A
nna C

lare
G

IS
 T

echnician
G

IS
 T

echnician
$32.42

$36.71
$42.48

$109.18
$126.34

$130.13
Lori B

row
ning

S
r. P

roject C
oordinator

S
r. P

roject C
oordinator

$36.83
$37.94

$52.66
$112.83

$156.61
$161.31

M
alini K

ochhar-R
oberts

T
echnical E

ditor
 T

echnical E
ditor

$28.85
$36.00

$41.19
$107.06

$122.50
$126.17

M
elissa T

eoh
S

r. S
taff S

cientist
K

irk S
chm

itz
$37.50

S
arah H

off-P
hillips

S
r. S

taff S
cientist

$33.51
E

rin E
lliot

S
taff S

cientist
Julia B

eals
$29.12

John W
hitefield

A
ssistant S

taff S
cientist

M
atthew

 T
om

aszew
ski

$27.00
H

olly S
terling

P
roject C

oordinator
A

nastasia A
ntal

$24.04
A

nastasia A
ntal

P
roject C

oordinator
 

 
$26.44

$33.85
$78.63

$100.67
$103.69

M
eghan B

rock
S

taff E
ngineer

$35.33
$37.45

$105.07
$111.38

$114.72
K

irk S
chm

itz
S

r. S
taff S

cientist
$38.47

$46.13
$114.41

$137.19
$141.31

Julia B
eals

S
taff S

cientist
$31.03

$35.20
$92.28

$104.69
$107.83

M
atthew

 T
om

aszew
ski

S
taff S

cientist
$28.62

$36.90
$85.12

$109.74
$113.03

C
onnor M

cR
ae

S
taff E

ngineer
$28.62

$35.10
$85.12

$104.39
$107.52

R
ose K

eeler
S

r. P
roject C

oordinator
$37.94

$37.87
$112.83

$112.63
$116.00

Jazm
ine Lopez 

S
taff E

ngineer
$35.01

$35.01
$104.12

$104.12
 A

dd R
equest 05/2024

$107.24
* S

r. C
onsultant rates have been discounted for Inyo C

ounty
S

taff have left the com
pany

A
dditional S

taff



Amendment #2
Final Audit Report 2024-09-12

Created: 2024-09-11

By: Travis Dean (tdean@inyocounty.us)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAX8sO-If51lo-5NQryZAGJuX-NNgLIvWS

"Amendment #2" History
Document created by Travis Dean (tdean@inyocounty.us)
2024-09-11 - 6:26:52 PM GMT

Document emailed to Breanne Nelums (bnelums@inyocounty.us) for approval
2024-09-11 - 6:29:31 PM GMT

Email viewed by Breanne Nelums (bnelums@inyocounty.us)
2024-09-11 - 7:14:20 PM GMT

Document approved by Breanne Nelums (bnelums@inyocounty.us)
Approval Date: 2024-09-11 - 7:14:54 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Document emailed to katie.ross-smith@stantec.com for signature
2024-09-11 - 7:14:55 PM GMT

Email viewed by katie.ross-smith@stantec.com
2024-09-11 - 7:25:15 PM GMT

Signer katie.ross-smith@stantec.com entered name at signing as Katie Ross-Smith
2024-09-11 - 7:26:11 PM GMT

Document e-signed by Katie Ross-Smith (katie.ross-smith@stantec.com)
Signature Date: 2024-09-11 - 7:26:13 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Document emailed to Grace Weitz (gweitz@inyocounty.us) for signature
2024-09-11 - 7:26:14 PM GMT

Email viewed by Grace Weitz (gweitz@inyocounty.us)
2024-09-11 - 7:43:45 PM GMT

Document e-signed by Grace Weitz (gweitz@inyocounty.us)
Signature Date: 2024-09-11 - 7:45:21 PM GMT - Time Source: server



Document emailed to Amy Shepherd (ashepherd@inyocounty.us) for signature
2024-09-11 - 7:45:22 PM GMT

Email viewed by Amy Shepherd (ashepherd@inyocounty.us)
2024-09-11 - 8:17:28 PM GMT

Document e-signed by Amy Shepherd (ashepherd@inyocounty.us)
Signature Date: 2024-09-12 - 4:25:31 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Document emailed to Kevin Rainbolt (krainbolt@inyocounty.us) for approval
2024-09-12 - 4:25:32 PM GMT

Email viewed by Kevin Rainbolt (krainbolt@inyocounty.us)
2024-09-12 - 4:26:54 PM GMT

Document approved by Kevin Rainbolt (krainbolt@inyocounty.us)
Approval Date: 2024-09-12 - 4:27:38 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Agreement completed.
2024-09-12 - 4:27:38 PM GMT



In tlte Rrcms of tlte Board of Supewircrs
County of Inyo, State of California

l, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at ameeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, held

in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 7th day of February 2023 an order was duly made and

entered as follows:

Public Works -
Cardno, lnc. Contract
Amendment No. 1

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve Amendment
No. 1 to the contract between the County of lnyo and Cardno, lnc of Zephyr Cove, NV,
increasing the "Do Not Exceed" amount from $402,545.86 to $508,736.67, amending
Attachment "A" Scope of Work, amending Attachment "B" Schedule of Fees, and amending
Section 2 to change the end date of the contract from June 30, 2023 to October 31, 2024,
for the Lone Pine Town Streets Project, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent
upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

trl4TNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 7th

oay oTFebruaryt, 2023

NATHAN GREENBERG
Clerk ofthe Board ofSupervisors

t,n

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Other: PubhWorks
DATE: February 8,2023

By:



INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL. JEFF GRIFFITHS r SCOTT MARCELLIN . JENNIFER ROESER . MATT KINGSLEY

NATE GREENBERG DARCY ELLIS
CoUNTY ADMtNtsfRAftvF oFFtaFp AssT. CLERK oF THE BoAnD

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM

February 7,2023 Reference lD:
2023-3465

Amendment No. 1 to Cardno, lnc. Gontract
Public Works

ACTION REQUIRED

ITEM SUBMITTED BY
Travis Dean, Engineering Assistant

ITEM PRESENTED BY
Michael Errante, Public Works Director

RECOMMENDED AGTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of lnyo and Cardno, lnc
of Zephyr Cove, NV, increasing the "Do Not Exceed" amount from $402,545.86 to $508,736.67,
amending Attachment "A" Scope of Work, amending Attachment "B" Schedule of Fees, and amending
Section 2 to change the end date of the contract from June 30, 2023 to October 31,2024, for the Lone
Pine Town Streets Project, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate
signatures being obtained.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION:
On March 15,2022, your Board approved the Consultant Contract with Cardno, lnc. for the provision of
Environmental and Engineering Consultant Services in support of the State Transportation lmprovement
Program (STIP) Lone Pine Town Streets Project. The Lone Pine Town Streets STIP Project consists of
preserving, extending the life, and improving the ride quality on various streets in Lone Pine. There are
also project elements intended to improve access for public transit, pedestrians, and bicycles. There are
13 streets identified in the Project Study Report included in the scope of the project. New bike lanes are
proposed to be added to Post Street, Lone Pine Ave., and Lake View Street, improved Eastern Sierra
Transit Authority (ESTA) bus loading will be delineated on East Muir Street. Crosswalk and
pedestrian/vehicle flow will be evaluated and changed or reinstalled according to best practices. Non-
compliant curb ramps in the project area should be brought up to ADA standards when warranted.

Public Works is proposing adding two additional streets to Cardno's scope. The change of scope
includes Whitney Portal Road from the end of the recent Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) Project
west to Highway 395 and Hay Street from Locust St. to Muir St. This change of scope requires an
amendment to update our Contract with Cardno, lnc. to update their "Do Not Exceed" amount from
$402,545.86 to $508,736.67, their Scope of Work to include the new streets, their Schedule of Fees to
include the additional work, and extend the end of contract date from June 30, 2Q23, to October 31,
2024. The additional work will be paid for with RMRA funds.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding lRoadSgqrce I

Maintenance and Rehabilitation Program
lauoset

Unit
loo+oor

louiect CouE lszogudgeted? lYes / No

P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street I lndependence, CA 93526
17601 878-0292



Recurrence One-Time Expenditure

Gurrent Fiscal Year lmpact
This is a project that will be ongoing for approximalely 2 years.

Future Fiscal Year Impacts

Additional lnformation

The Public Works Department will pay for the additional consultant costs with RMRA funds

ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve this Contract Amendment to Cardno's Contract. This is not
recommended, as including these streets with this contract will be significantly cheaper than doing them
in the future.

OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Auditor

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Amendment 1 - Cardno Lone Pine Streets

APPROVALS:
Travis Dean
Darcy Ellis
Travis Dean
Grace Chuchla
Shannon Platt
Breanne Nelums
Amy Shepherd
Michael Errante

Created/lnitiated - 1 12512023
Approved - 112612023
Approved - 113012023
Approved - 113012023
Approved - 113012023
Approved - 113112023
Approved - 113112023
Final Approval - 113112Q23

P. O. Drawer N I 224 N. Edwards Street I lndependence, CA 93525
17601 878-0292



County of Inyo Standard Contract  -  No 146.1 
Page 1 

 04/30/2020   

  

AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND  
CARDNO, INC. FOR THE PROVISIONS OF CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and Cardno, Inc., have 
entered into an Agreement for the Provision of Consultant Services dated  March 15, 2022, on County of 
Inyo Standard Contract No. 146.1, for  the term from  April 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. 
 
 WHEREAS, effective January 1, 2023, Cardno, Inc. assigned Standard Contract No. 146.1 to 
Stantec Consulting Services Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”): 
 
 WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth 
below; 
 
 WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity.  
 
 County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:  
 
Amend section 4(H) to adjust the “Do Not Exceed” amount of the contract, in the amount of $402,545.86, 
to a new “Do Not Exceed” amount of $508,736.67. 
 
Amend Attachment A to add the document titled “Amendment #1 Attachment A” to the Scope of Work of 
the contract.  “Amendment #1 Attachment A” is attached hereto. 
 
Amend Attachment B to add the document “Amendment #1 Attachment B” to the Schedule of Fees of the 
contract.  “Amendment #1 Attachment B” is attached hereto. 
 
Amend section 2 to change the end date of the contract from June 30, 2023 to October 31, 2024. 
 
 
 

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is  ________. 
 

 All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.  
 
  
 
 

tdean
Typewritten Text
March 13, 2023



Page 2 
  

 04/30/2020 

 

AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND  
CARDNO, INC. FOR THE PROVISIONS OF CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
16th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2023. 
 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 
 

By: ____________________________________              By: ___ _______ 
                Signature  
Dated:_________________________________         
             __Stephen Peck_____________________ 
                 Type or Print  
        
       Dated: _2/16/2023_______________________ 
        
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
County Counsel  
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:  
 
 
_________________________________________ 
County Auditor 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Personnel Services  
 
APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
County Risk Manager  
 
 
 

N/A

03/13/2023



 

 
 

 

 
 
621 West Line Street 
Suite 205 
Bishop, CA 93514 
USA 

Phone +1 760 784 8521 
 
www.cardno.com 
www.stantec.com 

December 16, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Travis Dean 
Engineering Assistant 
Inyo County Public Works 
168 N. Edwards 
PO Drawer Q 
Independence, CA 93526 

 

RE: Contract Amendment Request for State Transportation Improvement 
Programs (STIP) Lone Pine Town Streets Project; State Funded Project: 
RPL-5948(101); County Project: ZP-21-010 

Dear Travis, 

Per our previous discussions during the initial site visit and email correspondence I am 
providing this request to amend the above referenced Contract to incorporate Whitney 
Portal Road and Hay Street into our project scope, extend the contract end date and to 
provide Surveys and Mapping services (Task 6) through Triad/Holmes Associates, Inc. 
(Triad) in replace of Eastern Sierra Land Surveys (ESLS). During coordination with 
ESLS on the revised schedule and expanded area/scope, ESLS notified Cardno (now 
Stantec) that they would not be able to perform the work and requested to be removed 
from the team, resulting in the Triad replacement. 

Cardno (now Stantec) agrees to perform the following additional service(s): 

 Include additional 1.0 miles of roadway in the project scope. The roadway 
extents cover Whitney Portal Road from Highway 395 west to the recent FLAP 
project (just east of the aqueduct) and Hay Street from Locust St. to Muir St. 
See Additional Scope Map for extents. 

 No additional scope items, or modifications to the existing scope, are included 
or proposed with this amendment; the original scope will stay as-is. The 
modifications to the contract per this amendment include additional fees for the 
below tasks to account for the increased area of the project per this 
amendment. 

o Task 1: Project Management; Task 2: Preliminary Engineering Studies; 
Task 3: Concept Plan; Task 6: Surveys and Mapping; Task 7: 
Geotechnical Investigation; Task 8: School Circulation Plan; Task 9: 
Utility Coordination; Task 10: Right-of-Way Phase and Determination; 
Task 11: Design 

 Perform Task 7: Geotechnical Investigation as a part of the ES&P Phase in 
order to incorporate the findings into Task 3: Concept Plan. 

 Extend contract duration; new end date of October 31, 2024. Per our previous 
discussion with the County, the project schedule has been delayed for both the 
Lone Pine School summer break and again to complete this Amendment 1 
prior to continuing with the ES&P Phase work. For this reason, we proposed to 
extend the contract duration. 

tdean_1
Text Box
Amendment #1Attachment A



December 16, 2022 

S:\0PEN PROJECTS\2-Roads Projects\Lone Pine Town Streets ZP-21-010\000-Consultant\010-PE Consultant Contract\012-Contract Amendments\From Cardno\Amendment1_LonePine_12-16-
2022.docx 

www.cardno.com 

2 

We thank you for all your efforts in facilitation of this project and look forward to continued progress. Please contact me 
if you have any questions or commend on this proposed amendment.  

 

Sincerely,  

 
 
 
 
Stephen Peck PE 
Principal 
for Cardno now Stantec 
Direct Line: +1 775 339 3321 
Email: Stephen.Peck@cardno.com 

 
 
 
 
Grant Schmitz PE 
Senior Project Engineer 
for Cardno now Stantec 
Direct Line: +1 760 784 8521 
Email: Grant.Schmitz@cardno.com 

 
Enc: Amendment 1 Fee Proposal 
 Additional Scope Map 
cc: Lori Browning – Project Coordinator 

tdean_2
Text Box
Amendment #1Attachment A



CO
ST

 E
ST

IM
AT

E
Am

en
dm

en
t 1

Lo
ne

 P
in

e 
To

w
n 

St
re

et
s 

Pr
oj

ec
t

D
IR

EC
T 

LA
BO

R 
RA

TE
$7

0.
62

$7
0.

62
$7

0.
62

$5
8.

88
$5

5.
28

$3
2.

67
$3

7.
94

IT
EM

 O
F 

W
O

RK
 D

ES
CR

IP
TI

O
N

1
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
em

en
t

2
0

0
8

0
0

8
91

5.
80

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

em
en

t
2

8
8

91
5.

80
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

St
ud

ie
s

0
0

0
4

4
2

0
52

1.
98

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Re
vi

ew
 E

xi
st

in
g 

M
at

er
ia

ls
2

2
22

8.
32

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Ba
se

m
ap

2
2

2
29

3.
66

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3
Co

nc
ep

t P
la

n
2

2
4

8
6

15
0

1,
85

7.
73

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
De

ve
lo

p 
D

ra
ft

 C
on

ce
pt

 P
la

n
1

2
2

4
4

12
1,

20
1.

78
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

De
ve

lo
p 

Fi
na

l C
on

ce
pt

 P
la

n
1

2
2

2
36

4.
28

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Co
st

 E
st

im
at

e
2

2
1

29
1.

67
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
6

Su
rv

ey
s 

an
d 

M
ap

pi
ng

0
1

0
6

4
8

0
90

6.
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Su
rv

ey
 C

on
tr

ol
 E

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t

2
11

7.
76

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Fi
el

d 
Su

rv
ey

in
g

2
11

7.
76

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Fi
na

l B
as

em
ap

1
2

4
8

67
0.

86
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
7

G
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l I
nv

es
tig

at
io

n
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

11
7.

76
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
G

eo
te

ch
ni

ca
l I

nv
es

tig
at

io
n

2
11

7.
76

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

8
Sc

ho
ol

 C
irc

ul
at

io
n 

Pl
an

0
2

0
5

8
12

0
1,

26
9.

92
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Dr
af

t S
ch

oo
l C

irc
ul

at
io

n 
Pl

an
1

4
6

10
96

4.
52

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Fi
na

l S
ch

oo
l C

irc
ul

at
io

n 
Pl

an
1

1
2

2
30

5.
40

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

9
U

til
ity

 C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n
0

0
1

5
2

6
0

67
1.

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Co

or
di

na
tio

n 
w

ith
 U

til
iti

es
1

4
1

2
42

6.
76

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

U
pd

at
e 

Fi
na

l B
as

em
ap

1
1

4
24

4.
84

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
Ri

gh
t o

f W
ay

 P
ha

se
 &

 D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n

1
0

0
2

0
2

0
25

3.
72

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Ri
gh

t-
of

-W
ay

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t

1
2

2
25

3.
72

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
D

es
ig

n
9

11
14

10
0

12
2

15
4

0
20

,0
64

.4
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

In
iti

al
 D

es
ig

n 
Co

or
di

na
tio

n 
(u

til
iti

es
, f

ut
ur

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
, e

tc
.)

1
1

2
25

9.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
%

 D
es

ig
n 

Pl
an

s
4

4
4

40
60

80
9,

13
3.

04
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
%

 C
os

t E
st

im
at

e
1

1
2

19
4.

84
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
60

%
 S

ite
 R

ev
ie

w
 M

ee
tin

g
2

11
7.

76
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
60

%
 T

ec
hn

ci
al

 S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

n 
O

ut
lin

e
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

90
%

 D
es

ig
n 

Pl
an

s
2

4
4

30
30

40
5,

43
7.

80
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

90
%

 S
pe

ci
al

 P
ro

vi
si

on
s

12
66

3.
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

90
%

 C
os

t E
st

im
at

e
1

1
2

19
4.

84
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Fi

na
l D

es
ig

n 
Pl

an
s

2
2

4
24

20
30

4,
06

3.
78

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Fi

na
l S

pe
ci

al
 P

ro
vi

si
on

s
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Fi
na

l B
id

 L
is

t/
Co

st
 E

st
im

at
e

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
SU

B-
TO

TA
L 

H
O

U
RS

14
16

19
14

0
14

6
19

9
8

54
2

Di
re

ct
 L

ab
or

 C
os

ts
$9

88
.6

8
$1

,1
29

.9
2

$1
,3

41
.7

8
$8

,2
43

.2
0

$8
,0

70
.8

8
$6

,5
01

.3
3

$3
03

.5
2

$2
6,

57
9.

31
La

bo
r E

sc
al

at
io

n
$3

98
.6

9
To

ta
l D

ire
ct

 L
ab

or
 C

os
ts

* 
Sr

. C
on

su
lta

nt
 ra

te
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
di

sc
ou

nt
ed

 fo
r I

ny
o 

Co
un

ty
$2

6,
97

8.
00

O
ve

rh
ea

d 
Co

st
s

an
d 

ar
e 

a 
3%

 in
cr

ea
se

 fr
om

 2
02

1 
ra

te
s 

pe
r e

sc
al

at
io

n 
18

3.
24

%
49

,4
34

.4
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Fe
e 

Co
st

al
lo

w
an

ce
 in

 th
e 

10
-H

 E
sc

5%
3,

82
0.

62
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

TO
TA

L 
LA

BO
R 

CO
ST

S
$8

0,
23

3.
11

O
TH

ER
 D

IR
EC

T 
CO

ST
 (N

on
-L

ab
or

 C
os

ts
)

**
 u

pd
at

ed
 ra

te
s 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
1/

1/
20

23
25

,9
57

.7
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

TO
TA

L 
N

O
T-

TO
-E

XC
EE

D
$1

06
,1

90
.8

1

Ca
rd

no
, I

nc
.

TO
TA

L 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

T 
CO

ST
Lo

ri 
Br

ow
ni

ng
 

**
IT

EM
S 

O
F 

W
O

RK

Br
ia

n 
M

cR
ae

 
*

G
ra

nt
 

Sc
hm

itz
 *

*
ST

AF
F 

N
AM

E-
TI

TL
E/

CA
TE

G
O

RY
St

ep
he

n 
Pe

ck
 *

Ja
so

n 
Du

ke
s 

*
Iv

an
 T

ru
jil

lo
 

**
W

ill
ia

m
 

Th
om

as
 *

*

A
m

en
dm

en
t 1

 -
 A
tta

ch
m

en
t B



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHBIT 10-H1    
Cost Proposal

Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed

Consultant

Project No. Contract No.  Date 12/16/2022

DIRECT LABOR

Hours
14
16
19

140

146
199

8

LABOR COSTS

a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs
b) Anticipated Salary Increases

c) Total Direct Labor Costs [(a) + (b)]  26,978.00$      
INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits ( Rate: 70.23% )        e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)] 18,946.65$      

   f) Overhead ( Rate: 113.01% ) 30,487.84$      
h) General and Administrative ( Rate: 0.00% ) i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)] -$                 

j) Total Indirect Costs [(e) + (g) + (i)] 49,434.49$      

FIXED FEE

k) TOTAL FIXED FEE [(c) + (j)]* fixed fee 5% ] 3,820.62$        

Quantity Unit

l) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS -$                 

Sierra Geotechnical Services, Inc. 3,683.00$        
LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc. 7,074.70$        
Triad/Holmes Associates, Inc. 15,200.00$      

25,957.70$      

25,957.70$      
106,190.81$    

NOTES:

Sr. Consultant Jason Dukes * $70.62 1,341.78$              

-$                       

Project Engineer Ivan Trujillo ** $55.28 8,070.88$              

(m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANS' COSTS

(n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS [(l) + (m)]
TOTAL COST [(c) + (j) + (k) + (n)]

1.  Key Personnel must be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are object to prevailing wage must be marked 
     with two asterisks (**). All costs must comply with the Federal costs principles. Subconsultants will provide their own 
     cost proposals.

2.  The cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with 
     the consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or excepted by Caltrans.

3.  Anticipated salary increases calculation must accompany.

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)

g) Overhead [(c) x (f)

l) CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS (ODC)  - ITEMIZE (Add additional pages if necessary)

Description of Item Unit Cost Total

398.69$                         
26,579.31$                    

-$                       

Sr. Consultant Stephen Peck * $70.62 988.68$                 
Sr. Consultant Brian McRae * $70.62 1,129.92$              

Sr. Project Engineer Grant Schmitz ** $58.88 8,243.20$              

Total

Exhibit 10-H1 Cost Proposal
Actual Cost-Plus-Fixed Fee or Lump Sum (Firm Fixed Price) Contracts

(Design, Engineering and Environmental Studies)

Cardno, Inc.

ZP-21-010 N/A

Classification/Title Name Actual Hourly Rate

AutoCAD Technician William Thomas ** $32.67 6,501.33$              

** updated rates effective 1/1/2023
* Sr. Consultant rates have been discounted for Inyo County

Sr. Project Coordinator Lori Browning ** $37.94 303.52$                 

Prime Consultant Subconsultant 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Page 2 of 4
December 2022

Amendment 1 - Attachment B



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHBIT 10-H1    
Cost Proposal

Consultant Contract No.  N/A Date  12/16/2022

1. Calculate average hourly rate for 1st year of the contract (Direct Labor Subtotal divided by total hours)

Direct Labor 
Subtotal per 

Cost Proposal

Total Hours 
per Cost 
Proposal

Avg Hourly 
Rate

2 year Contract 
Duration

 $       26,579.31 / 542 = $49.04 Year 1 Avg Hourly Rate

Avg Hourly Rate 
Proposed 
Escalation 

Year 1 $49.04 + 3% = $50.51 
Year 2 $50.51 + 3% = $52.03 
Year 3 $52.03 + 3% = $53.59 Year 4 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 4 $53.59 + 3% = $55.19 Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate

Estimated % 
Completed Each 

Period

Total Hours 
per Cost 
Proposal

Total Hours 
per Period

Year 1 50.00% * 542 = 271 Estimated Hours Year 1
Year 2 50.00% * 542 = 271 Estimated Hours Year 2
Year 3 0.00% * 542 = 0 Estimated Hours Year 3
Year 4 0.00% * 542 = 0 Estimated Hours Year 4
Year 5 0.00% * 542 = 0 Estimated Hours Year 5

Total 100%   Total = 542  

4. Calculate Total Costs including Escalation (multiply average hourly rate by the number of hours)

Avg Hourly Rate
Estimated 

Hours
(calculated above) (calculated above)

Year 1 $49.04 * 271 = $13,289.66 Estimated Hours Year 1
Year 2 $50.51 * 271 = $13,688.34 Estimated Hours Year 2
Year 3 $52.03 * 0 = $0.00 Estimated Hours Year 3
Year 4 $53.59 * 0 = $0.00 Estimated Hours Year 4
Year 5 $55.19 * 0 = $0.00 Estimated Hours Year 5

= $26,978.00  
= $26,579.31  
= $398.69 Transfer to Page 1

NOTES:

3.  This assumes that one year will be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted.

4.  Calculations for anticipated salary escalation must be provided.

 Direct Labor Subtotal before escalation
Estimated total of Direct Labor Salary Increase 

1.  This is not the only way to estimate salary increases. Other methods will be accepted if they clearly indicate the % increase, the # of  years of 
the contract, and a breakdown of the labor to be performed each year.  

2.  An estimation that is based on direct labor multiplied by salary increase % multiplied by the # of years is not acceptable.  
     (i.e. $250,000 x 2%  x  5 yrs = $25,000 is not an acceptable methodology.)

 Cost 
Per Period

 Total Direct Labor Cost with Escalation

Exhibit 10-H1 Cost Proposal
Actual Cost-Plus-Fixed Fee or Lump Sum (Firm Fixed Price) contracts

(Calculations for Anticipated Salary Increases)

Cardno, Inc.

Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate

3. Calculate estimated hours per year (Multiply estimate % each period by total hours)

Page 3 of 4
December 2022

Amendment 1 - Attachment B



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHBIT 10-H1    
Cost Proposal

Name: Title*:

Signature: _______________________________________________       Date of Certification (mm/dd/yyyy): 12/16/2022

Email:        Phone Number:

Address:

List services the consultant is providing under the proposed contract:

*An individual executive or financial officer of the consultant’s or subconsultant’s organization at a level no 
lower than a Vice President or a Chief Financial Officer, or equivalent, who has authority to represent the 
financial information utilized to establish the cost proposal for the contract.

Project management; Design; Environmental; Utilities; ROW; Bid Support; Construction Support

Stephen H. Peck Principal

stephen.peck@cardno.com 775.339.3321

295 Highway 50, Suite 1, Zephyr Cove, Nevada 89448-1533

Prime Consultant or Subconsultant Certifying:

Exhibit 10-H1 Cost Proposal

Certification of Direct Costs:

I, the undersigned, certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that all direct costs identified on the cost proposal(s) in this 
contract are actual, reasonable, and allocable to the contract in accordance with the contract terms and the following 
requirements:

1.    Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
2.    Terms and conditions of the contract
3.    Title 23 United States Code Section 112 - Letting of Contracts
4.    48 Code of Federal Regulations Part 31 - Contract Cost Principles and Procedures
5.    23 Code of Federal Regulations Part 172 - Procurement, Management, and Administration of 
       Engineering and Design Related Service
6.   48 Code of Federal Regulations Part 9904 - Cost Accounting Standards Board {when applicable)

All costs must be applied consistently and fairly to all contracts.  All documentation of compliance must be retained in the 
project files and be in compliance with applicable federal and state requirements.  Costs that are noncompliant with the 
federal and state requirements are not eligible for reimbursement.

Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency approved or Caltrans accepted Indirect Cost Rate(s).

Page 4 of 4
December 2022

Amendment 1 - Attachment B



Amendment #l
Attachment A

December 16,2022

Mr. Travis Dean
Engineering Assistant
lnyo County Public Works
168 N. Edwards
PO Drawer Q
lndependence, CA 93526

RE: contract Amendment Request for state Transportation lmprovement
Programs (srlP) Lone Pine Town streets project; state Funded project:
RPL-5948(1 01); County Project: ZP-21-010

Dear Travis,

Per our previous discussions during the initial site visit and email correspondence I am
providing this request to amend the above referenced Contract to incorporate Whitney
Portal Road and Hay Street into our project scope, extend the contract end date and to
provide Surveys and Mapping services (Task 6) through Triad/Holmes Associates, lnc.
(Triad) in replace of Eastern Sierra Land Surveys (ESLS). During coordination with
ESLS on the revised schedule and expanded area/scope, ESLS notified Cardno (now
Stantec) that they would not be able to perform the work and requested to be removed
from the team, resulting in the Triad replacement.

cardno (now stantec) agrees to perform the following additional service(s):

. lnclude additional 1.0 miles of roadway in the project scope. The roadway
extents cover Whitney Portal Road from Highway 395 west to the recent FLAP
project fiust east of the aqueduct) and Hay Street from Locust St. to Muir St.
See Additional Scope Map for extents.

. No additional scope items, or modifications to the existing scope, are included
or proposed with this amendment; the original scope will stay as-is. The
modifications to the contract per this amendment include additional fees for the
below tasks to account for the increased area of the project per this
amendment.

o Task 1: Project Management; Task 2: Preliminary Engineering Studies;
Task 3: Concept Plan; Task 6: Surveys and Mapping; Task 7:
Geotechnical lnvestigation; Task 8: School Circulation plan; Task 9:
Utility Coordination; Task 10: Right-of-Way Phase and Determination;
Task 11: Design

. Perform Task 7: Geotechnical lnvestigation as a part of the ES&P Phase in
order to incorporate the findings into Task 3: Concept plan.

. Extend contract duration; new end date of October 31,2024. Per our previous
discussion with the County, the project schedule has been delayed for both the
Lone Pine school summer break and again to complete this Amendment 1

prior to continuing with the ES&P Phase work. For this reason, we proposed to
extend the contract duration.

(D Cardno

O Stantec

now

621 West Line Street

Suite 205

Bishop, CA 93514

USA

Phone +1 760 784 8521

www.cardno.com
www.stantec.com



Amendment #1

Attachment A

Decemberl6'2022 t (.D Gardtto'
We thank you for all your efforts in facilitation of this project and look fonruard to continued progress. Please contact me
if you have any questions or commend on this proposed amendment.

Sincerely,

il)A
Stephen Peck PE
Principal
for Cardno now Stantec
Direct Line: +1 775 339 3321
Email : Stephen. Peck@cardno.com

Grant Schmitz PE
Senior Project Engineer
for Cardno now Stantec
Direct Line: +1 760784 8521
Email : Grant.Schmitz@cardno.com

Enc: Amendment 1 Fee Proposal
AdditionalScope Map

cc: Lori Browning - Project Coordinator

SloPEN PROJECTSU-Roads Projects\Lone Pine Town Streets ZP-21-OlO\OOO-Consultant\o1o-PE Consultant
2022.docx

Contract\o12-ContractAmendments\From Cardno\Amendmet ww.cardno.com



I
B COST ESTIMATE

Amendment 1
Lone Pine Town Streets Project

TOTAT

CONSULTANT COST

s 9$.At
5 915.80

s 521.9a

22432
293.66

s Lf,,I7Jil
s 7.201.78

s 364.2A

5 29t.67
!lo53a
t17.76

s LL1.76

5 670.86

s 1L7.76
5 t17.76
s t269.92
s 964.52

s 305.40
671-60

426.76

s 244.84
2St.r2

5 253.72
20.',6/.42

s 259.00

9.133.()4

194.84

LL7.76

s
5 5,437-AO

5 663.36

s 794.84

s 4.063.74

s26.579.37
s398.69

s25.978.00
49.434-49
3.420.62s

s80.233.11
25.957-7lJ

s106.190-at

no, lnc.

Lori

Browning **

s37.94

8

8

0

o

0

o

0

0

o

0

8

s303.s2

743.24%

5%

William

Thomas **

532.67

0

2

2

15
t2
2

1

8

8
o

t2
10

2

6
2

4
2

2

154

80
2

40

2

30

199

S6,s01.33

lvan Trujillo

55s.28

o

4
2

2

6
4
2

4

4

0

8
6

2

2
T

r
0

7:r2

60

30
12

20

146
qa o7o RB

Grant
Schmitz +*

ss8.88

8

8

4
2

2

8
4
2

2

6
2

2

2

2
2

5
4
1

5

4

1

2
2

10(}

2

40
1

2

30

1

24

'.4tJsa.241.2A

Jason

Dukes *

570.62

0

0

4
2

2

0

o

0

1
T

o

t4

4
I

4

t
4

19
s7.34r.78

Brian

McRae *

57O.62

0

o

2
2

L

1

o

2

1

1

0

o

11

7

4

4

2

16

s'J..L29.92

Stephen
Peck *

s7O.62

2

2

0

2
1

L

o

o

o

0

1
1

9

1

4

2

2

74

s988.58

STAFF NAME.TITLE/CATEGORY

DIRECT TABOR RATE

ITEM OF WORI( DESCRIPTION

Prorest Management
Project Management

Preliminary EEineerint Studies
Review Existing Materials
Preliminary Basemap

Concept Plan

Develop Draft Concept Plan

Develop Final Concept Plan

Preliminary Cost Estimate

5uruey Control Establishment
Field Surveying

Beotechnl.al lnvestlxatlon
Geotechnical

lchool Clrculatlon f t{an

Draft School Circulation Plan

Final School Circulation Plan

Utlitv Coordination
Coordination with LJtilities

Update Final Basemap

ff:ht of Way Phase & Detemhradon
Riaht-of-Wav assessment

Deslm
lnitial Design Coordination (utilities, future
projects, etc.)
60% Design Plans

60% Cost Estimate

60% Site Review Meetins
50% Techncial Specification Outline
90% Desisn Plans

90% Special Provisions

90% Cost Estimate
Final Design Plans

Final Special Provisions

Final Bid List/Cost Estimate

SUB-TOTAL HOURS

Direct Labor Costs

Labor Escalation

Total Direct Labor Costs

Overhead Costs

Fee Cost

TOTAL IABOR COSTS

OTHER DIRECT COST (Non-Labor Costs

TOTAL NOT.TO.EXCEED

ITEMS OF

WORK

t

2

3

6

7

8

e

10

LI



In the Rooms of tlte Board of Superuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the l5'h day of March2022 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Public Works -
Budget
Amendments,
Cardno Contract

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to:
A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 State Funded Road Budget 034601 as follows: (1)

increase estimated revenue in State Other object code 4499 by $300,000 and (2)

increase estimated revenue in Operating Transfers ln object code 4998 by $100,000
and (3) increase appropriations in Lone Pine Streets Rehab object code 5709 by

$400,000 (4/5ths vote required);
B) Amend the Fiscal Year 202112022 Road Budget 034600 as follows: increase

appropriations in Operating Transfers Out object code 5801 by $100,000 (4/5ths vote
required);and

C) Approve the contract between the County of lnyo and Cardno, lnc. of Zephyr Cove,
NV for the provision of Environmental and Engineering services in an amount not to
exceed $402,545.86 forthe period of April 1,2022 through June 30,2023, contingent
upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, and authorized the
Chairperson to sign.

Motion carried unanimously.

IltlTN ESS my hand and the seal of said Board this I 5't'

o"y of-Mar!h-2-022

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk of the Board of Supenisors

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Other Public Works

DATE: March 28,2022
By:



County of Inyo

Public Works

DEPARTMENTAL . ACTION REQUIRED

MEETING: March 15,2022

FROM: Travis Dean

SUBJEGT: Consultant Contract for the Lone Pine Town Streets Project

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board:
A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 State Funded Road Budget 034601 as follows: (1) increase estimated
revenue in State Other object code 4499 by $300,000 and (2) increase estimated revenue in Operating Transfers
ln object code 4998 by $100,000 and (3) increase appropriations in Lone Pine Streets Rehab object code 5709
by $400,000 (4/5ths vote required);
B) Amend the FiscalYear 202112022 Road Budget 034600 as follows: increase appropriations in Operating
Transfers Out object code 5801 by $100,000 (4/5ths vote required); and
C) Approve the contract between the County of lnyo and Cardno, lnc. of Zephyr Cove, NV for the provision of
Environmental and Engineering services in an amount not to exceed $402,545.86 forthe period of April 1,2022
through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, and
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On September 1 , 2021 , lnyo County Public Works released a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Environmental
and Engineering Consultant Services in support of the State Transportation lmprovement Program (STIP) Lone
Pine Town Streets Project, with a due date of October 14,2021. Public Works received two (2) responses to our
RFP, one from Cardno, lnc. and one from Eastern Sierra Engineering. Each proposalwas scored by three (3)
Public Works employees, with each employee scoring Cardno, lnc. as having the best submittal.

The Lone Pine Town Streets STIP Project consists of preserving, extending the life, and improving the ride
quality on various streets in Lone Pine. There are also project elements intended to improve access for public
transit, pedestrians, and bicycles. There are 13 streets identified in the Project Study Report included in the
scope of the project New bike lanes are proposed to be added to Post Street, Lone Pine Ave., and Lake View
Street. lmproved Eastern Sierra Transit Authority (ESTA) bus loading will be delineated on East Muir Street.
Crosswalk and pedestrian/vehicle flow will be evaluated and changed or reinstalled according to best practices.
Non-compliant curb ramps in the project area should be brought up to ADA standards when warranted.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
ln November 2015,lnyo County Public Works submitted a Project Study Report to request Programming in the
2018 State Transportation lmprovement Program (STIP) for the Lone Pine Town Streets Project. On May 12,
2021,hhe California Transportation Commission (CTC) voted to award $2,725,000.00 to lnyo County for the Lone



Agenda Request
Page 2

Pine Town Streets Project. $61,000.00 was allocated for Project Approval and Environmental Documents,
$239,000.00 was allocated for Plans, Specifications, and Estimates, $1,000.00 was allocated for Right-of-Way,
and $2,725,000.00 was allocated for construction.

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
The Board could choose not to approve this contract. This is not recommended, as we would need to start the
request for proposals over, and ask for an extension of the funding from Caltrans.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Caltrans

FINANCING:
This contract will be paid out of State Funded Road budget 034601 object code 5709 Lone Pine Streets Rehab.
Please note that RMRA funds will match $100,000 of the contract amount as shown above in the budget
amendment for the Road Budget (034600). There is sufficient fund balance in the Road Budget to cover the
expenditure increase.

ATTAGHMENTS:
1. Cardno, lnc. Contract

APPROVALS:
Trevor Taylor
Darcy Ellis
Travis Dean
Denelle Carrington
Breanne Nelums
Michael Errante
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd
Michael Errante

Created/lnitiated - 121 1312021
Approved - 1211412021
Approved - 31212022
Approved - 31212022
Approved - 31212022
Approved - 31212022

Approved - 31212022
Approved - 31312022
Final Approval - 31 1 0 12022



CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF'INYO

AND Cardno, lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") has the need for
consultant services, and is heretofore entering this conhact with Cardno, lnc.

(hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"), in consideration of the mutual
promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as set forth
below.

Any Forms or Exhibits herein referred to may be located and downloaded at:

httn ://www.dot.ca. sov/hq/LocalPro eram s/lam/forms/lapmforms.htm

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. STATEMENT OF WORK

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth
in Attachment A attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Consultant to perform under this Contract will be made by the Public Works Director
Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under this Contract will be based

upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature,

that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the Consultant by the

County under this Contract. County by this Contract incurs no obligation or requirement to request

from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should have some need

for such services or work during the term of this Contract.

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the County's request under this Contract will
be performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable
Federal, State, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances,
regulations, and resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Contract
and, as applicable, as set forth, in Attachment E, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

2. PERFORMANCE PERIOD

(Choose Option I or Option 2)

I Optiott 1- Standard Contract
A. This Contract shall go into effect on contingent upon approval

by County, and Consultant shall cornmence work after notification to proceed by County's Contract
Administrator. The Contract shall end on June30.2023 , unless extended by Contract

County oflnyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Prqects)

Page I of2l

amendment.

070120r8



B. Consultant is advised that any recommendation for Contract award is not binding on

County until the Contract is fully executed and approved by County.

Option 2 - On-Call Contracts
A. This Contract shall go into effect on contingent upon approval

by County, and Consultant shall commence work after notification to proceed by County's Contract
Administrator. The Contract shall end on
amendment.

County oflnyo Contract No. 146. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page2 of2l

unless extended by Contract

B. Consultant is advised that any recommendation for Contract award is not binding on

County until the Contract is fully executed and approved by County.

C. The period of performance for each specific project shall be in accordance with the

Task Order for that project. If work on a Task Order is in progress on the expiration date of this
Contract, the terms of the Contract shall be extended by Contract amendment.

3. WORK SCHEDULE

Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified
in Attachment A which is requested by the County. It is understood by Consultant that the
performance of these services and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange

his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested

by County under this Contract will be performed within the time frame set forth by County. This
work schedule shall be included in Attachment A to the Contract, Scope of Work.

4. ALLOWABLE COSTS AND PAYMENTS

A. The method of payment for this contract will be based on actual cost plus a fixed fee.

County will reimburse Consultant for actual costs (including labor costs, employee benefits, travel,
equipment rental costs, overhead and other direct costs) incurred by Consultant in performance of the

work. Consultant will not be reimbursed for actual costs that exceed the estimated wage rates,

employee benefits, travel, equipment rental, overhead, and other estimated costs set forth in the
approved Consultant's Cost Proposal, found in Attachment B, unless additional reimbursement is
provided for by contract amendment. In no event, will Consultant be reimbursed for overhead costs

at arate that exceeds County's approved overhead rate set forth in the Cost Proposal. In the event

that County determines that a change to the work from that specified in the Cost Proposal and

contract is required, the contract time or actual costs reimbursable by County shall be adjusted by
contract amendment to accommodate the changed work. The maximum total cost as specified in
Paragraph "H" shall not be exceeded, unless authorized by contract amendment.

B. In addition to the allowable incurred costs, County will pay Consultant a fixed fee of
$15 736.57 The fixed fee is nonadjustable for the term of the contract, except in the event
of a significant change in the scope of work and such adjustment is made by contract amendment.

C. Reimbursement for transportation and subsistence costs shall not exceed the rates

specified in the approved Cost Proposal, Attachment B.

07012018



D. When milestone cost estimates are included in the approved Cost Proposal,

Consultant shall obtain prior written approval for a revised milestone cost estimate from the Contract
Administrator before exceeding such cost estimate.

E. Progress payments will be made monthly in affears based on services provided and

allowable incurred costs. A pro rata portion of Consultant's fixed fee will be included in the monthly
progress payments. If Consultant fails to submit the required deliverable items according to the
schedule set forth in the Statement of Work, County shall have the right to delay payment or
terminate this Contract in accordance with provisions of Item l7 - Termination.

F. No payment will be made prior to approval of any work, nor for any work performed
prior to approval of this Contract.

G. Consultant will be reimbursed, as promptly as fiscal procedures will permit upon
receipt by County's Contract Administrator of itemized invoices in triplicate. lnvoices shall be

submitted no later than 45 calendar days after the performance of work or which Consultant is billing.
Invoices shall detail the work performed on each milestone and each project as applicable. Invoices
shall follow the format stipulated for the approved Cost Proposal and shall reference this contract
number and project title. Final invoice must contain the final cost and all credits due County
including any equipment purchased under the provisions of Item 10 - Equipment Purchase of this
Contract. The final invoice should be submitted within 60 calendar days after completion of
Consultant's work. Invoices shall be mailed to County's Contract Administrator at the following
address:

Travis Dean
County of Inyo, Public Works Department
P.O. Drawer Q
Independence, CA 93526

$ 402
H. The total amount payable by County including the fixed fee shall not exceed

545.86

I. Salary increases will be reimbursable if the new salary is within the salary range

identified in the approved Cost Proposal, found in Attachment B, and is approved by County's
Contract Administrator.

For personnel subject to prevailing wage rates as described in the California Labor
Code, all salary increases, which are the direct result of changes in the prevailing wage rates are

reimbursable.

J. A Task Order is of no force or effect until retumed to County and signed by an

authorized representative of County. No expenditures are authorized on a project and work shall not
commence until a Task Order for that project has been executed by County.

County oflnyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(lndependent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 3 of21 07012018



5. STATE PREVAILING WAGE RATES

A. Consultant shall comply with the State of California's General Prevailing Wage Rate

requirements in accordance with Califomia Labor Code, Section 1770, and all Federal, State, and

local laws and ordinances applicable to the work.

B. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this contract, if for more than $25,000 for
public works construction, or more than $15,000 for the alternation, demolition, repair, or
maintenance of public works, shall contain all of the provisions of this Section, unless the awarding
agency has an approved labor compliance program by the Director of Industrial Relations.

C. When prevailing wages apply to the services described in the scope of work,
transportation and subsistence costs shall be reimbursed at the minimum rates set by the Department
of Industrial Relations (DIR) as outlined in the applicable Prevailing Wage Determination. See

http://www.dir.ca.sov.

6. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or
municipal governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Attachment A
must be procured by Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into this Contract or as

otherwise may be required. Further, during the term of this Contract, Consultant must maintain such
licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may
include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business

licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured and maintained in force by
Consultant at no expense to the County. Consultant will provide County, upon execution of this
Contract, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which are required to
perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute between Consultant and

County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in
Affachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Contract.

B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions
by any federal department or agency. Consultant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred
from receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or
Non-procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at;

http://www.sam.sov.

7. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION

A. Consultant's signature affixed herein, shall constitute a certification under penalty of
perjury under the laws of the State of California, that Consultant has complied with Title2 CRF, Part

180, "OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Govemment wide Debarment and Suspension (non-
procurement)", which certifies that he/she or any person associated therewith in the capacity of
owner, partner, director, officer, or manager, is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary
exclusion, or determination of ineligibility by any federal agency; has not been suspended, debarred,

voluntarily excluded, or determined ineligible by any federal agency within the past three (3) years;

County of Inyo Contract No. 146. 1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 4 of21 07012018



does not have a proposed debarment pending; and has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil
judgment rendered against it by a court of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or

official misconduct with the past three (3) years. Any exceptions to this certification must be

disclosed to County.

B. Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of recommendation for award, but will
be considered in determining Consultant's responsibility. Disclosures must indicate to whom
exceptions apply, initiating agency, and date of action.

C. Exceptions to the Federal Government Excluded Parties List System maintained by
the General Services Administration are to be determined by the Federal highway Administration.

8. STATUS OF CONSULTANT

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the perforrnance of this
Contract, shall be performed as independent Consultant's, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Consultant, by virtue of this Contract, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on

behalf of County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Consultant has no authority or
responsibility to exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, offtcer, or employee of
the Consultant is to be considered an employee of County. It is understood by both Consultant and

County that this Contract shall not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an

employer-employee relationship or a joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work
and services to be provided by Consultant under this Contract.

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results

specified in this Contract, and except as expressly provided in this Contract, shall not be subjected to

County's control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of this
Contract.

C. Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term

of this Contract shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultant's, and not as

employees of County.

9. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ET CETERA

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials,

and telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in Attachment

A to this Contract. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost

incurred by Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and

expenses incurred by Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility
and obligation of Consultant.

County of Inyo Contract No. 146. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 5 of2l 07012018



10. EQUIPMENT PURCHASE

A. Prior Authorization in writing, by County's Contract Administrator shall be required
before Consultant enters into any unbudgeted purchase order, or subcontract exceeding $5,000 for
supplies, equipment, or Consultant services. Consultant shall provide an evaluation of the necessity or
desirability incurring such costs.

B. For purchase of any item, service or consulting work not covered in Attachment B, the

Consultant's Cost Proposal, and exceeding $5,000 prior authorization by County's Contract
Administrator; three competitive quotations must be submitted with the request, or the absence of
bidding must be adequately justified.

C. Any equipment purchased as a result of this contract is subject to the following:
"Consultant shall maintain an inventory of all nonexpendable property. Nonexpendable property is

defined as having a useful replacement and is sold or traded in, County shall receive a proper refund
or credit at the conclusion of the contract, or if the contract terminated, Consultant may either keep

the equipment and credit County in an amount equal to its fair market value, or sell such equipment at

the best price obtainable at a public or private sale, in accordance with established County
procedures; and credit County in an amount equal to the sale price. If Consultant elects to keep the

equipment, fair market value shall be determined at Consultant's expense, on the basis of a competent

independent appraisal of such equipment. Appraisals shall be obtained from an appraiser mutually
agreeable by County and Consultant, if it is determined to sell the equipment, the terms and

conditions of such sale must be approved in advance by County." 49 CFR, Part 18 requires a credit to
Federal funds when participating equipment with a fair market value greater than $5,000 is credited

to the project.

11. COUNTY PROPERTY

A. Personal Prooertv of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to,

protective or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County
pursuant to this Contract are, and at the termination of this Contract remain, the sole and exclusive
property of County. Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such

items while they are in Consultant's possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss

or damage to such items, partial or total, which is the result of Consultant's negligence.

B. Products of Consultant's Work and Services. Any and all compositions,
publications, plans, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video
tapes, computer programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio
recordings, films, audio-visual presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions,
patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced,

assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or manifestation of, Consultant 's selices or work
under this Contract are, and at the termination of this Contract remain, the sole and exclusive property

of the County. At the termination of the Contract, Consultant will convey possession and title to all
such properties to County.

County of Inyo Contract No. 146. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 6 of2l 07012018



12. TNSURANCE REQUTREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVTCES

For the duration of this Contract Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope

and amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

13. SUBCONTRACTING

A. Nothing contained in this Contract or otherwise, shall create any contractual relation
between County and any subconsultant(s), and no subcontract shall relieve Consultant of its
responsibilities and obligations hereunder. Consultant agrees to be as fully responsible to County for
the acts and omissions of its subconsultant(s) and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by
any of them as it is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by Consultant.
Consultant's obligation to pay it subconsultant(s) is an independent obligation from County's
obligation to make payments to the Consultant.

B. Consultant shall perform the work contemplated with resources available within its
own organization and no portion of the work pertinent to this Contract shall be subcontracted without
written authorization by County's Contract Administrator, except that, which is expressly identified
in the approved Cost Proposal, Attachment B.

C. Consultant shall pay its subconsultants within ten (10) calendar days from receipt of
each payment made to Consultant by County.

D. All subcontracts entered into as a result of this Contract shall contain all the
provisions stipulated in this Contract to be applicable to subconsultants.

E. Any substitutions of subconsultan(s) must be approved in writing by County's
Contract Administrator prior to the start of work by the subconsultant(s).

14. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION

For professional services rendered under this Contract, Consultant agrees to indemniff,
including the cost to defend County and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and

against any and all claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out of or pertain to, or relate to the
negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Consultant and its employees or agents in the
performance of professional services under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply to
liability for damages arising from the sole negligence, active negligence, or willful acts of the County.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify County and its officers, officials,
employees, and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including
attorney fees arising out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in whole or in part

by any negligent act or omission of the Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly
employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused

by the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the County.

Consultant's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and

employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any

County of Inyo Contract No. I 46. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

PageT of2l 07012018



requirement in this Contract for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. If the

Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimum required on the Insurance attachment to this
Contract, the County requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the

Consultant.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemniff, and hold harmless

Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses,
judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attomey's fees, arising
out of, or resulting from, the active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

15. RETENTIONOF'RECORDS/ATJDIT

For the purpose of determining compliance with Public Contract Code l0l15, et seq. and

Title2l, Califomia Code of Regulations, Chapter 21, Section 2500 et seq., when applicable and other
matters connected with the performance of the contract pursuant to Government Code 8546.7;

Consultant, subconsultants, and County shall maintain and make available for inspection all books,

documents, papers, accounting records, and County shall maintain and make available for inspection
all books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the performance

of the contract, including but not limited to, the costs of administering the contract. All parties shall

make such materials available at their respective offices at all reasonable times during the contract
period and for three years from the date of final payment under the contract. The state, State Auditor,
County, FHWA, or any duly authorized representative of the Federal Government shall have access

to any books, records, and documents of Consultant and it's certified public accountants (CPA) work
papers that are pertinent to the Contract and indirect cost rates (ICR) for audit, examinations,

excerpts, and transactions, and copies thereof shall be furnished if requested.

16. AUDIT REVIEW PROCEDURES

A. Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under an interim or post audit of this
Contract that is not disposed of by Contract, shall be reviewed by County's Administrative Offrcer.

B. Not later than 30 days after issuance of the final audit report, Consultant may request a

review by County's Administrative Officer of unresolved audit issues. The request for review will be

submitted in writing.

C. Neither the pendency of a dispute nor its consideration by County will excuse

Consultant from full and timely performance, in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

D. Consultant and subconsultant contracts, including cost proposals and ICR, are subject

to audits or reviews such as, but not limited to, a contract audit, an incurred cost audit, an ICR Audit,
or a CPA ICR audit work paper review. If selected for audit or review, the contract, cost proposal

and ICR and related work papers, if applicable, will be reviewed to veriff compliance with 48 CFR,

Part 31 and other related laws and regulations. In the instances of a CPA ICR audit work paper

review it is Consultant's responsibility to ensure federal, state, or local govemment officials are

allowed full access to the CPA's work papers including making copies as necessary. The contract
cost proposal, and ICR shall be adjusted by Consultant and approved by County contract manager to
conform to the audit or review recommendations. Consultant agrees that individual terms of costs

County of Inyo Contract No. 146. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 8 of2l 07012018



identified in the audit report shall be incorporated into the contract by this reference if directed by
County at its sole discretion. Refusal by Consultant to incorporate audit or review recommendations,
or to ensure that the federal, state or local governments have access to CPS work papers, will be
considered a breach of contract terms and cause for termination of the contract and disallowance of
prior reimbursed costs.

E. Consultant Cost Proposal is subject to a CPA ICR Audit Work Paper Review by
Caltrans' Audit and Investigation (Caltrans). Caltrans, at its sole discretion, may review and/or audit
and approve the CPA ICR documentation. The Cost Proposal shall be adjusted by the Consultant and
approved by the County's Contract Administrator to conform to the Work Paper Review
recommendations included in the management letter or audit recommendations included in the audit
report. Refusal by the Consultant to incorporate the Work Paper Review recommendations included
in the management letter or audit recommendations included in the audit report will be considered a
breach of the contract terms and cause for termination of the contract and disallowance of prior
reimbursed costs.

During a Caltrans' review of the ICR audit work papers created by the Consultant's
independent CPA, Caltrans will work with the CPA andlor Consultant toward a
resolution of issues that arise during the review. Each parfy agrees to use its best
efforts to resolve any audit disputes in a timely manner. If Caltrans identifies
significant issues during the review and is unable to issue a cognizant approval letter,
County will reimburse the Consultant at a provisional ICR until a FAR complaint ICR
{e.g. 48 CRF, part 3l; GAGAS (Generally Accepted Auditing Standards); CAS (Cost
Accounting Standards), if applicable; in accordance with procedures and guidelines of
the American Association of State Highways and Transportation Offrcials Audit
Guide; and other applicable procedures and guidelines] is received and approved by
A&I. Provisional rates will be as follows:

If the proposed rate is less than 150% - the provisional rate reimbursed will
be 90Yo ofthe proposed rate.
If the proposed rate is between l50Vo and200% - the provisional rate will
be 85Yo of the proposed rate.
If the proposed rate is greater than200o/o - the provisional rate willbeT5Yo
of the proposed rate.

2. If Caltrans is unable to issue a cognizant letter per paragraph E. I . above, Caltrans may
require Consultant to submit a revised independent CPA-audited ICR and audit report
within three (3) months of the effective date of the management Letter. Caltrans will
then have up to six (6) months to review the Consultant's and/or the independent
CPA's revisions.

If the Consultant fails to comply with the provisions of this Section E, of if Caltrans
is still unable to issue a cognizant approval letter after the revised independent CPA-
audited ICR and audit report within three(3) months of the effective date of the
management letter. Caltrans will then have up to six (6) months to review the
Consultant's and/or the independent CPA's revisions.

County of Inyo Contract No. 146. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 9 of2l

I

a.

b.

c

aJ

07012018



Consultant may submit to County final invoice only when all of the following items
have occurred: (l) Caltrans approves or rejects the original or revised independent
CPA-Audited ICR; (2) all work under this contract has been completed to the
satisfaction of County; and (3) Caltrans has issued its final ICR review letter. The
Consultant MUST SUBMIT ITS FINAL INVOICE TO local agency no later than 60
days after occunence of the last of these items.

The provisional ICR will apply to this contract and all other contracts executed between
County and the Consultant, either as a prime or subconsultant, with the same fiscal period ICR.

17. TERMINATION

A. County reserves the right to terminate this contract upon thirty (30) calendar days' wriffen
notice to Consultant with the reasons for termination stated in the notice.

B. County may terminate this contract with Consultant should Consultant fail to perform the
covenants herein contained at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such

termination, County may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by County. If County
terminates this contract with Consultant, County shall pay Consultant the sum due to Consultant
under this contract prior to termination, unless the cost of completion to County exceeds the funds
remaining in the contract. In which case the overage shall be deducted from any sum due Consultant
under this contract and the balance, if any, shall be paid to Consultant upon demand.

18. COST PRINCIPLES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

A. Consultant agrees that the Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, 48 CFR, Federal
Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter l, Part 31.000 et seq., shall be used to determine the cost
allowability of individual items.

B. Consultant also agrees to comply with federal procedures in accordance with 49 CFR, Part 18,

Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local
Governments.

C. Any costs for which payment has been made to Consultant that are determined by subsequent
audit to be unallowable under 49 CFR, Part 18 and 48 CFR, Federal Acquisition Regulations System,

Chapter 1, Part 31.000 et seq., are subject to repayment by Consultant to County.

19. ASSIGNMENT

This is a Contract for the services of Consultant. County has relied upon the skills,
knowledge, experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Contract.
Consultant shall not assign or subcontract this Contract, or any part of it, without the express written
consent of County. Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this
Contract without the prior written consent of County.

4.

County oflnyo Contract No. i46. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page l0 of2l 07012018



20. DEFAULT

If the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested
by County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as

required by County, County may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Contract upon
five (5) days written notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to
Consultant all amounts owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date
of termination. Default shall also apply if the contract is terminated because of circumstances beyond
the control of consultant. The provisions of section 11.B "County Property," shall apply to any
partially completed work if the contract is terminated or abandoned.

2I. WAIVER OF'DEF'AULT

Waiver of any default by either party to this Contract shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Contract shall not be deemed to be a
waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms
of this Contract unless this Contract is modified as provided in Section 30 (thirty) below.

22. CONFIDENTIALITY OF DATA

A. All financial, statistical, personal, technical, or other data and information relative to
County's operations, which are designated confidential by County and made available to Consultant
in order to carry out this contract, shall be protected by Consultant from unauthorized use and
disclosure.

B. Permission to disclose information on one occasion, or public hearing held by County
relating to the contract, shall not authorize Consultant to further disclose such information, or
disseminate the same on any other occasion.

C. Consultant shall not comment publically to the press or any other media regarding the
contract or County's actions on the sirme, except to County's staff, Consultant's own personnel

involved in the performance of this contract, at public hearings or in response to questions from a
Legislative committee.

D. Consultant shall not issue any news release or public relations item of any nature,
whatsoever, regarding work performed or to be performed under this contract without prior review of
the contents thereof by County, and receipt of County's written permission.

E. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this contract shall contain all of the
provisions of this Article. (For PS&E contracts add paragraph F, below, to paragraphs A through E,
above).

F. All information related to the construction estimate is confidential, and shall not be

disclosed by Consultant to any entity other than County.

County oflnyo Contract No. 146. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page I 1 of2l 070120 I 8



23. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

A. Consultant shall disclose any financial, business, or other relationship with County
that may have an impact upon the outcome of this contract, or any ensuing County construction
project. Consultant shall also list current clients who may have a financial interest in the outcome of
this contract, or any ensuing County construction project, which will follow.

B. Consultant hereby certifies that it does not now have, nor shall it acquire any financial
or business interest that would conflict with the performance of services under this contract.

Check here if C and D DO NOT APPLY.
(C and D do not apply if contract is NOT for preparation of Plans, Specs and Estimates)

C. Consultant hereby certifies that neither Consultant, nor any firm affiliated with
Consultant will bid on any construction contract, or on any contract to provide construction
inspection for any construction project resulting from this contract. An affiliated firm is one, which is
subject to the control of the same persons through joint-ownership, or otherwise.

D. Except for subconsultants whose services are limited to providing surveying or
materials testing information, no subconsultant who has provided design services in connection with
this contract shall be eligible to bid on any construction contract, or on any contract to provide
construction inspection for any construction project resulting from this contract.

E Chect< here if E, F and G DO NOT APPLY.
@, F and G do not apply if Contract is NOT for Construction Contract Administration)

E. Consultant hereby certifies that neither Consultant, its employees, nor any firm
affiliated with Consultant providing services on this project, prepared the Plans, Specifications, and

Estimate for any construction project included within this contract. An affiliated firm is one, which
is subject to the control of the same persons through joint- ownership, or otherwise.

F. Consultant further certifies that neither Consultant, nor any firm afliliated with
Consultant, will bid on any construction subcontracts included within the construction contract.
Additionally, Consultant certifies that no person working under this contract is also employed by
the construction contractor for any project included within this contract.

G. Except for subconsultants whose services are limited to materials testing, no
subconsultant who is providing service on this contract shall have provided services on the design
of any project included within this contract.

H. If a Consultant is hired in a Management Position, complete and submit Caltrans
LPMA Exhibit lO-U "Consultant in Management Position Conflict of Interest Statement," to
County.

County of Inyo Contract No. 146. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 12 of21 0?0r2018



24. REBATES, KICKBACKS OR OTHER UI\LAWFUL CONSIDERATION

Consultant warrants that this contract was not obtained or secured through rebates kickbacks
or other unlawful consideration, either promised or paid to any County employee. For breach or
violation of this warranty, County shall have the right in its discretion; to terminate the contract
without liability; to pay only for the value of the work actually performed; or to deduct from the
contract price; or otherwise recover the full amount of such rebate, kickback or other unlawful
consideration.

25. PROHIBITION OF EXPENDING LOCAL AGENCY STATE OR FEDERAL FUNDS
F'OR LOBBYING

A. Consultant certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

No state, federal or local agency appropriated funds have been paid, or will be
paid by-or-on behalf of Consultant to any person for influencing or attempting
to influence an officer or employee of any state or federal agency; a Member
of the State Legislature or United States Congress; an officer or employee of
the Legislature or Congress; or any employee of a Member of the Legislature
or Congress, in connection with the awarding of any state or federal contract;
the making of any state or federal grant; the making of any state or federal
loan; the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension,
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any state or federal
contract, granl loan, or cooperative agreement.

If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid, or will be

paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any federal agency; a Member of Congress; an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress; in
connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement;
Consultant shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form
to Report Lobbying", andlor Caltrans Exhibit 10-Q in accordance with the
instructions.

B. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed

when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for
making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352,Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person

who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

C. Consultant also agrees by signing this document that he or she shall require that the
language of this certification be included in all lower-tier subcontracts, which exceed $100,000 and

that all such sub recipients shall certiff and disclose accordingly.

2.

County oflnyo ContractNo. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Prqects)

Page 13 of2l 07012018



26. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

A. Consultant's signature affixed herein, and dated, shall constitute a certification under
penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Califomia that Consultant has, unless exempt,
complied with, the nondiscrimination program requirements of Government Code Section 12990 and
Title 2, California Administrative Code, Section 8 103.

B. During the performance of this Contract, Consultant and its subconsultants shall not
unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for
employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability
(including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital
status, and denial of family care leave. Consultant and subconsultants shall insure that the evaluation
and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination
and harassment. Consultant and subconsultants shall comply with the provisions of the Fair
Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code $12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the 5 applicable regulations
promulgated there under (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The
applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Govemment
Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Califomia Code of
Regulations, are incorporated into this Contract by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in
full. Consultant and it subconsultants shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to
labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement.

El Check here as C and D DO NOT APPLY.
(If NO Federal Funds will be used for this project, C and D do not apply.)

C. The Consultant shall comply with regulations relative to Title VI (nondiscrimination
in federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation - Title 49 Code of Federal
Regulations , Part 2l - Effectuation of Title VI of the 1064 Civil Rights Act). Title VI provides that
the recipients of federal assistance will implement and maintain a policy of nondiscrimination in
which no person in the State of California shall, on the basis of race, color, nationality, origin,
religion, sex, age, disability, be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of or subject to
discrimination under any program or activity by the recipients of federal assistance or their assignees

and successors in interest.

D. The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it during the Agreement shall
act in accordance with Title VI. Specifically, the Consultant shall not discriminate on the basis of
race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, or disability in the selection and retention of
Subconsultants, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The Consultant shall
not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the U.S.
Dot's Regulations, including employment practices when the Agreement covers a program show goal
is employment.

27. POST CONTRACT COVENANT

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is
gained from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Contract, for any
personal benefit, gain, or enhancement. Further, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after the

County oflnyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 14 of2l 07012018



termination of this Contract, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association,
corporation, or person who, during the term of this Contract, has had an adverse or conflicting interest

with the County, or who has been an adverse parfy in litigation with the County, and concerning such,

Consultant by virtue of this Contract has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged,
protected, or proprietary information.

28. SEVERABILITY

If any portion of this Contract or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be

declared invalid
by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or county
statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Contract, or the application thereof,
shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Contract are severable.

29. FUNDING REQUIREMENTS

A. It is mutually understood between the parties that this contract may have been written
before ascertaining the availability of funds or appropriation of funds, for the mutual benefit of both
parties, in order to avoid program and fiscal delays that would occur if the contract were executed

after that determination was made.

B. This contract is valid and enforceable only, if sufficient funds are made available to
County for the purpose of this contract. In addition, this contract is subject to any additional
restrictions, limitation, conditions, or any statute enacted by the Congress State Legislature, or County
goveming board that may affect the provisions, terms, or funding of this contract in any manner.

C. It is mutually agreed that if sufficient funds are not appropriated, this contract may be

amended to reflect any reduction in funds.

D. County has the option to void the contract under the 30-day termination clause
pursuant to Article VI, or by mutual agreement to amend the contract to reflect any reduction of
funds.

30. AMENDMENT/CHANGE IN TERMS

A. This contract may be amended or modified only by mutual written agreement of the
parties

B. Consultant shall only commence work covered by an amendment after the amendment
is executed and notification to proceed has been provided by County's Contract Administrator.

C. There shall be no change in Consultant's Project Manager or members of the project
team, as listed in the approved Cost Proposal, which is a part of this contract without prior written
approval by County's Contract Administrator.

County of Inyo Contract No. 146. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(lndependent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Prqects)

Page l5 of2l 07012018



N/A

04/28/2002

Dan Totheroh

28th April 2022



AND

ATTACHMENT A

CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY OF IIWO
Cardno, lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF' CONSULTANT SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: TO:

SCOPE OF'WORK:

Cardno, lnc. of Zephyr Cove, NV will be providing the environmental and engineering design
services for the Lone Pine Town Streets Project, RPL-5948(101). The scope of work attached
includes the tasks and deliverables that will comprise the work.

The hourly rates, other direct costs and fees paid by the County for these services are shown in
Attachment B to the Contract.

County oflnyo Contract No. 146. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 17 of2l 07012018



Prepared for

lnyo County Department of Public Works

168 N. Edwards Street, PO Drawer Q
lndependence, CA 93526

Prepared by

C) Gardrto^
621 West Line Street, Suite 205

Bishop, CA 935'14

www.cardno.com



Scope of Work
Project Understanding
Cardno is excited to work on this important project that will improve and extend the service life of several
streets in Lone Pine, California. The final project will improve access for multiple forms of transportation
and eliminate continued major roadway maintenance in the area, with the intent of maximizing the extent
of the project with the available funding. The project area comprises a mix of school, residential, and
commercial uses with the state highway (Highway 395) bisecting the project area. The area currently
includes two-lane roadways with established and unestablished walking paths, crosswalks, and sidewalks
with multiple ingress/egress areas (driveways). The existing street condition requires ongoing major
roadway maintenance and does not promote pedestrian or bicycle traffic. This project will resolve these
issues and significantly improve the overall roadway condition for all users within the project limits.

Cardno recognizes the potential design challenges associated with possible driveway conflicts, utility
relocations, and storm drainage-and that each of these has the potential to affect the construction cost.
Through the development of the preferred alternative, and development of the design plans, these design
components will be analysed to maximize efficiency and reduce conflicts to provide the most cost-
effective construction project that not only meets the stated objectives but focuses on improved safety of
multiple users and reduced long-term maintenance costs.

Based on a thorough review of the project site and RFP understanding of implementing projects funded
with STIP funds (following the Caltrans LAPM), and coordination with lnyo County (County) we have
developed the following scope of work.

ES&P Phase - Project Tasks

Task 1: Project Management (ES&P Phase)

Subtask 1A: Proiect Manaqement

The Cardno project manager will coordinate with internal staff, sub-consultants and the County project
manager throughout the project. lnternal team communications will be led by the Cardno project
manager, who will coordinate closely with task leaders. They will be readily available and will coordinate
with the County project manager (and/or designee) and all other necessary parties involved to ensure a
successful project. Cardno project manager will ensure each task and subtask is completed to the
County's satisfaction, on time, to the scope, and on budget.

As part of these efforts, the Cardno project manager, along with select staff, will meet once monthly
(virtually, via Microsoft Teams meetings or conference calls) with the County's project manager to
coordinate the project deliverables, schedule status and design updates. Cardno will establish effective
communication among the parties involved, including the County's planning, maintenance, and
engineering staff; utilities; and the public, as well as funding, permitting, and regulatory agencies.

This subtask further includes internal Cardno team coordination and communication efforts required to
perform the work, such as monthly budgeting, invoicing, subconsultant coordination and invoicing, and
general project administration. A project coordinator will be assigned to facilitate these tasks from project
inception to completion.

Srrbtask 1B: Prrhlic M nqs and Public Outreach

Cardno will support the County in public outreach efforts at one meeting during project development, most
likely in the form of a public meeting/workshop. The meeting will provide a venue for facilitated
communications between County staff and business owners, residents, and other stakeholders. The
format of the public meeting will vary based on the meeting purpose and intended audience.

INYO COUNTY DPW I SCOPE OF WORK I December 6,2021 Page 1



2

For the public meeting, the Cardno team will support County staff in developing graphics for a PowerPoint
presentation, presentation materials, handouts, sign-in sheets, and other information and materials that
are easy to follow and understand.

Srrhtask 1C: Field Review Meetinos

Cardno will conduct one field review meeting at the project site with the design team and County in order
to review particular and specific elements of the project, discuss alternatives, and determine site-specific
approaches to designing and implementing the project most efficiently. The primary intent of this meeting
is to identify the preferred alternative for the project, to develop the conceptual design. The Cardno design
team and County staff will meet on-site to review the project area and coordinate/identify higher priority
areas. The field review meeting will be separate from the public meeting and will be a design-focused
meeting between the County and Cardno design team.

Task 1 Deliverables:

> Monthly invoicing (6)

> Monthly virtual meetings with the County (6)

> One agenda for the public meeting
> One meeting summary for the public meeting
> One PowerPoint presentation for the public meeting

Task 1 Assumptions;

> Task 1 is project management only for the ES&P phase, a separate task is allocated for project
management related to the PS&E Phase.

> The Caltrans LAPM submittals, coordination and project file will be maintained solely by the County.
> Cardno is not scoped to assist with any audit-related efforts.
> No regulatory or funding agency meeting are proposed.

- No regulatory permits are anticipated to be required for the project.

> Duration of the ES&P phase of the project will be 6 months
> There will be (1) one public meeting.
> For the public meetings, it is assumed that the County will provide a meeting recorder and

record/document the meeting and develop meeting notes/summary.
> The County will provide all meeting venues and will cover any costs associated with the venues.
> There will be (1) one field review meeting.

Task 2: Preliminary Engineering Studies
One of the first orders of work for the Cardno team will be performing the preliminary engineering efforts
to "define" the project specifics. The objective of this task will be to develop design concepts and related
activities needed to establish the parameters for the design of the project. This effort will commence at the
start of the projecUnotice to proceed and include the following efforts/subtasks.

Srrhtask 2A: Existins Materials

The Cardno team will coordinate with the County to obtain all project-related documents, including, but
not limited to, existing survey data (control, boundary, topography, etc.), existing environmental data,
grant application materials, and any other pertinent, Iocal, project-related materials. Key Cardno staff will
review these materials to obtain a detailed understanding of the project area, project requirements, and
other project-related components prior to commencing other project-related efforts.

To facilitate the exchange of data, as part of this initial effort and the long-term project-related efforts,
Cardno will establish a project-specific fileshare site or if the County uses Microsoft Teams, a Microsoft
Teams channel. This will enable large files to be transferred electronically, saving both time and money
Cardno uses these sites on all of our projects and has found them to be a successful approach to data
sharing.

www.cardno.com



Subtask 28: Preliminary Basemap

To make the most efficient use of the County's funding, Cardno will hold off on performing any land
surveying and detailed basemapping until the areas of improvements are cleady known and identified,
along with the level of data required to design and construct the project. To facilitate the preliminary
engineering efforts, Cardno will develop a preliminary basemap using Google Earth imagery, satellite-
based topography, and available parcel map/ROW mapping (existing available information, no data
collection, surveying, etc.). Accuracy of this basemap will be suitable for planning and concept plan
development purposes.

Srrbtask 2C: c Data Collection

While roadway traffic data has been collected recently, existing available bicycle/pedestrian and parking
data is very limited. Cardno will retain the services of LSC Transportation Consultants (LSC) to lead and
perform these related efforts. LSC will coordinate with the County, who will perform the bulk of the data
collection, unless otherwise noted. LSC will spend 1 person-days in Lone Pine performing an overview
traffic assessment and inventory of existing driver sight distance and bike/ped conditions and will then
direct the County in collecting the following data:

> Bicycle/pedestrian counts (County) - This will consist of half-hourly counts distributed across the 8

study streets and across the work day (7 AM to 6 PM). Counts will be scheduled to focus on locations
near the schools at bell times. Counts will be conducted both for pedestrians/bicyclists traveling along
the sides of the street (by side) as well as pedestrians crossing at specific crossing locations. School-
age children will be tallied separately from other travelers.

> Parking counts (County) - Over the course of the work day, counts of vehicles parked along the study
area roadways will be conducted on a roughly 2-hour frequency. This will be tallied by block face.

> Observation of school traffic/bus operations (LSC) - LSC will observe the traffic queue and bus
operations at the peak morning and afternoon bell times at both schools. As needed, counts of queue
lengths and occurrences of queue blocking will be conducted.

> lnventory of existing signing and striping (County) - County staff will collect data and prepare simple
summaries of existing striping and signing on the study roadways (as well as the side streets
approaching the study roadways).

> Review of existing safety conditions (LSC) - As part of the site visit, LSC will assess driver sight
distance issues, including the impact of on-street vehicle parking on sight distances. LSC will also
review Statewide lntegrated Traffic Record System (SWITRS) data for information on reported
crashes along the subject roadways. This will include an evaluate of crash severity, contributing
factors, and involvement of pedestrians or cyclists.

This data will be summarized in a brief technical memorandum. The technical memorandum will be
developed in a manner that supports the environmental review, potential project permitting (if necessary),
and the circulation plan.

SLrbtask 2D: Develon P relim inarv School Circulation Plan

Based on the data generated in Task 2C and other existing available data, LSC will prepare a school
circulation plan for both the Lone Pine High School, focusing on project roadways in the immediate
vicinity and with school access routes to the high school. This will reflect the guidance regarding safe
routes to school planning reflected in Caltrans Active Transportation Planning documents. lt will include a
summary of existing school circulation conditions, and present recommendations regarding appropriate
school access routes and physical improvements to enhance school access and safety. These may
include new sidewalks, crosswalk enhancements, bicycle lanes, modifications to parking, auto loading
and bus loading zones and access patterns.

A preliminary school circulation plan will be prepared for the environmental review phase as a part of the
Preliminary Engineering Studies phase. This document will include maps (one for each school) showing
access, bicycle and pedestrian routes and recommended signing/striping modifications. A technical
memo will be provided presenting the recommendations, including any management strategies.

INYO COUNTY DPW I SCOPE OF WORK I December 6,2021 Page 3



4

Task 2 Deliverables:

> Preliminary Basemap
> Traffic Data Technical Memorandum
> Preliminary School Circulation Plan

Task 2 Assurnptions:

> Land surveying will not commence untilthe concept plans have been approved.
> One integration of reviews/updates will occur for each deliverable identified.
> Geotechnical investigation will not occur until the PS&E phase. The concept plans will utilize the

County's initial study and the design team's review of existing information for pavement rehabilitation
recommendations.

> LSC will coordinate with the County, who will perform the traffic data collection, unless othenrvise noted
above. Traffic data collection will encompass the entire project study area.

> The schoolcirculation plan willfocus primarily on the Lone Pine High School and project roadways
with school access routes to the high school. These include Lone Pine Avenue, Mt. Whitney Drive,
Lake View Street and E. Muir Street.

Task 3: Concept Plan

The Cardno team will develop a concept plan for the project that will meet the project objectives within the
funding requirements. Prior to commencing the development of concept plans, Cardno will meet with the
County (field review meeting) to review the project area and coordinate/identify higher priority areas.
Traffic engineering (Task 2) will provide preliminary striping recommendations for the study area
roadways with school access routes, which will be incorporated into the concept plans. These plans will
be developed using existing available information (preliminary basemap, Task 2) and will feed into the
next phases of the project with the intent to target the surveying and geotechnical efforts to the areas
where they are most required and to avoid surveying/investigation in areas where it is not required, thus
reducing unneeded expense to the County.

A high-level cost estimate will be developed for the concept plan. The cost estimate will enable the
County and Cardno to determine the extent of work that can be performed within the limits of the funding.
The estimate will be developed based on unit costs of similar work on similar projects in the general
area/region (previous bid tabulations/construction bids) with escalations applied to account for project
work occurring at a future date. The concept plans and estimate will be based on the County's initial study
of the project needs, the design team's review of existing information, traffic studies, the field review
meeting results, and preliminary assessment of cost-efficient opportunities for the project.

Once the concept plans and cost estimate are developed, in draft form, Cardno will present to the County
for review, comments, and updates.

The concept plans will be finalized based on comments from the County and will be brought forward as
the project to be designed in the subsequent PS&E phase. The concept plans will be concept-level
drawings, prepared to a 10 percent design level, and will incorporate recommendations from the
preliminary school circulation plan. The concept plans will define the project design specifics and will
provide adequate information to perform PS&E tasks such as project survey, utility coordination and initial
environmental review.

Task 3 Deliverables

> Project Concept Plans and Cost Estimate

Task 3 Assumptions:

> Concept plans will be developed on the preliminary basemap, and no surveying willoccur until after
the concept plan is approved.

> One integration of reviews/updates will occur for each deliverable identified.

www.cardno.com



Task 4: Environmental Studies and Documentation
Our local and regional environmental staff will be performing the environmental compliance effort for this
project. Our approach is based on a straightfonruard, cost-effective process that produces sound and
defensible documents. We solicit and integrate agency and public issues and concerns early in the
project planning process to define the required level of environmental documentation. Cardno believes
that successful analysis of both basic and complex projects lies in the development of a complete and
accurate project description.

This project is currently in the planning stages and has not yet been totally defined. As a result, we cannot
precisely define the level of environmental compliance required for the project; however, based on the
proposed actions, the project area, and our knowledge and experience, we have confidence that there is
a high likelihood our recommended approach and level of documentation will be acceptable. This
approach will be confirmed with the County at the initiation of the environmental review, which will occur
after the completion of the concept plan (Task 3) when the project and project-related impacts can be
clearly understood and/or assumed.

Based on the existing project area conditions and conceptual concepts and areas provided in the RFP,
the project is assumed to rehabilitate 2.75 miles of Lone Pine's existing roadways and will not be located
in an area of critical concern, as the following are not anticipated to occur in, or in the vicinity of, the
project area:

> Special-statusspecies
> Critical habitat (including jurisdictional waters of the US or state)
> Unique habitat (e.9., wildlife refuge, deer wintering range)
> lmportant farmland
> Wetlands
> Wild and scenic rivers
> Officially designated scenic area
> Cultural resources
> Floodplains
> Areas of hazardous concerns

Based on these conditions and driven by forthcoming design efforts, Cardno believes the level of review
under CEQA may be a categorical exemption pursuant to state CEQA Guidelines based on the following
exemption class:

Secfion 15301 (Class 1- Existing Facilities) - "C/ass 7 consr.sfs of the operation, repair,
maintenance, permifting, leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private
structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no
expansion of use beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency's determination. ... The key
consideration is whether the project involves negligible or no expansion of an existing use."

This categorical exemption has been previously successfully used on similarly funded projects and similar
types of project improvements/project areas. Therefore, Cardno feels confident in the use of a categorical
exemption for the project and believes it to be a realistic approach with which to proceed. As a result, and
based on the previous studies and data collection by the County, we propose the following environmental
efforts (desktop reviews only, no field assessments):

> Cultural resources archival research, including archaeological resources (prehistoric and historic-era),
built-environment resources (historic buildings), and Native American resources

> Biological resources
> Preparation and filing of a notice of exemption
> Compilation of the administrative record in support of categorical exemption

However, based on similar projects that our team has planned, designed, and implemented, the presence
of cultural resources within the project area could trigger a CEQA Guideline Exception (Section 15300.2).

Page 5INYO COUNTY DPW I SCOPE OF WORK I December 6,2021



6

The existence of this exception would require the project to go through the CEQA process even if the
project otherwise meets the criteria of a categorical exemption. Should the cultural resources inventory
identify resources listed or deemed eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places, Cardno
can prepare a project-level document, including an initial study (lS) in support of a negative declaration
(ND) pursuant to CEQA assuming the resource can be avoided or an lS Mitigated Negative Declaration
(MND) to identify mitigation that will reduce any potential impact to less than significant. Cardno's scope
of work and associated budget do not include this effort, as it is anticipated that this will not be required,
but we note that the final approach cannot be determined until the cultural efforts have been completed.

Further, based on our review of the project area and project funding, it is anticipated and assumed that no
federal land or funding will be included in the project and therefore no NEPA documentation will be
required or developed. ln the event federal funding is obtained, or federal land becomes part of the
project, a NEPA revieddocumentation process will be required. Cardno can provide complete NEPA
review and documentation following the federal lead agency standards and requirements, using the data
collected as part of the CEQA efforts.

Subtasks associated with Cardno's proposed streamlined environmental process are described below.

Subtask 4A: Environmental Review

Biological Resources

Wildlife
Cardno proposes to streamline the biological resource efforts based on the characteristics of the existing
project area and perform desktop reviews that include querying applicable wildlife databases for Lone
Pine. Based on our review of the existing project area during our proposal development efforts, we
anticipate that no critical or sensitive habitat exists and therefore no protocol-level surveys will be
required. As a resource protection measure, included in the environmental documentation associated with
the project, pre-construction nesting surveys for migratory birds will be necessary for compliance with
existing federal, state, and regional resource protection programs and will be detailed in the resource
avoidance and protection measures document.

The review will be documented in a brief biological resources technical memorandum addressing both
wildlife and botanical resources.

Batanical
Cardno proposes to conduct biological database queries and review the most recent California Natural
Diversity Database (CNDDB) occurrence records. Based on the project area location, botanical resources
are anticipated to be located within the project area, and the database queries will confirm this. We
therefore assume that no field surveys will be required. lf the biological database queries indicate habitat
for sensitive plants is present, both early- and late-blooming period surveys will most likely be required. ln
this event, Cardno will coordinate with the County on these effects to the proposed environmental process
and amend the scope and budget as necessary.

The review will be documented in a brief biological resources technical memorandum addressing both
wildlife and botanical resources.

Cultural Resourc*s

A review of cultural resources located within the project area will be conducted to ensure the
environmental clearance is acceptable and defendable. This effort includes archival research for
archaeological resources (prehistoric and historic-era), built environment resources (historic buildings),
and Native American resources that may be present within the Area of Potential Effects (APE).

Archival research to identify archaeological and built-environment resources will include a records search.
This research will incorporate the project area and a buffer of up to 0.25 mile. This search will include a
review of existing site records and investigation reports, historical mapping, and documentary sources
specific to the proposed project alignment and immediate area. Archival research will include:

wwwcardno,com



> Local historical societies and museums
> Review of General Land Office records, deeds, land patent records, and lnyo County assessor's

offices
> California Historical Resources lnformation System (CHRIS) office in Riverside, California
> Request for Sacred Lands File from the Native American Heritage Commission
> Development of site-specific resource protection measures
> Development of lnadvertent Discovery Plan and Human Burial Remains Treatment Plan

No cultural pedestrian surveys of the APE are proposed, because the APE is a heavily disturbed and
compacted area where intact surface cultural remains are unlikely.

Native American community outreach under Senate Bill (SB) 18 and notification of local tribes under
Assembly Bill (AB) 52 does not apply if a CEQA document is not being prepared. Essentially, if the project
is exempt under CEQA, there is no notice required, and therefore this is not assumed in our budget.

ln the event the project is not exempt under CEQA, Native American community outreach under SB 18
and notification of local tribes under AB 52 would be required, and Cardno's cultural resources specialists
will contact the Native American Heritage Commission requesting a search of the Sacred Lands File and
a list of appropriate Native American representatives and tribal organizations. Cardno would contact each
of the representatives by mail and phone/email as necessary to inquire if they have an interest in or
concerns related to the proposed project. At the request of the County, Cardno will assist with SB 18 and
AB 52 compliance, which is required to be conducted on a government-to-government basis only. The
results of this outreach will be detailed in a CEQA-compliant cultural resources report (described below)
meeting the formatting and content requirements of CEQA and the County.

Cardno will develop a CEQA-compliant cultural resources report. This report will conform to California
Office of Historic Preservation guidelines and will include California Register of Historical Resources/
National Register of Historic Places listing recommendations for each prehistoric or historic-era resource
documented within or immediately adjacent to the APE.

Subtask 48: Environmental Documentation

Based on our current knowledge of the project and project area and knowledge of previous environmental
documentation, Cardno is proposing that a CEQA categorical exemption will provide environmental
clearance for project approvals. Based on this assumption, Cardno will prepare a brief project description,
a project record and findings in support of exemption, and the notice of exemption form for review and
signature by the County, as well as file the notice of exemption with the Office of Planning & Research
and lnyo County Clerk to initiate a shorter statute of limitation of 35 days.

ln the event that any of the unknown or unforeseen circumstances documented previously in this task
arise and the CEQA categorical exemption is not acceptable to the County or other participating agency,
the Cardno team can prepare the project-level lS/ND as directed by the County under a contract
amendment.

Task 4 Deliverables;

> Brief biological resources technical memorandum
> CEQA-compliant cultural resources report
> CEQA categorical exemption

Task 4 Assumptions:

> No federal funds, or federal land, are part of the project.

> No NEPA documentation will be required.
> No field investigations/pedestrian surveys will be performed.

> No SB 18 or AB 52 Native American outreach/notification is required
> The CEQA level is that of a categorical exemption.

INYO COUNTY DPW I SCOPE OF WORK I December 6,2021 PageT



I

PS&E Phase - Project Tasks

Task 5: Project Management (PS&E Phase)

Subtask 5A: Proiect Marraqement

The Cardno project manager will coordinate with internal staff, sub-consultants and the County project
manager throughout the project. lnternal team communications will be led by the Cardno project
manager, who will coordinate closely with task leaders. They will be readily available and will coordinate
with the County project manager (and/or designee) and all other necessary parties involved to ensure a
successful project. Cardno project manager will ensure each task and subtask is completed to the
County's satisfaction, on time, to the scope, and on budget.

As part of these efforts, the Cardno project manager, along with select staff, will meet once monthly
(virtually, via Microsoft Teams meetings or conference calls) with the County's project manager to
coordinate the project deliverables, schedule status and design updates. Cardno will establish effective
communication among the parties involved, including the County's planning, maintenance, and
engineering staff; utilities; and the public, as well as funding, permitting, and regulatory agencies.

This subtask further includes internal Cardno team coordination and communication efforts required to
perform the work, such as monthly budgeting, invoicing, subconsultant coordination and invoicing, and
general project administration. A project coordinator will be assigned to facilitate these tasks from project
inception to completion.

Task 5 Deliverables:

> Monthly invoicing (9)

> Monthly virtual meetings with the County (9)

Task 5 Assurnptions:

> Task 1 is project management only for the PS&E phase, a separate task is allocated for project
management related to the ES&P Phase.

> Duration of the PS&E phase of the project will be 9 months

Task 6: Survey$ and Mapping

Cardno team will perform field surveying after development and approval of the concept plans or at a time
when the extents and areas of the project are set. Cardno will retain the services of Eastern Sierra Land
Surveys (ESLS)to perform the land surveying associated with the project.

Since the extent of the survey, level of detail, and specific areas will not be determined/known until the
concept plan is completed, the scope and subtasks described below provide an overview of the approach
that the Cardno team will take to surveying and mapping. This approach will be followed, but the extents
and level of effort required are not known. For the purposes of costing, budgeting, and scheduling, we
assumed a set amount of field time based on our best estimation from similar projects and levels of effort.
Upon approval of the concept plans, the surveying and mapping efforts will be reviewed with the County,
will be reduced from that which is assumed in this proposal.

Subtask 6A: Survey Control Establishment

As part of ESLS's initial efforts, the control for the project will be determined by the project manager and
lead land surveyor. The control will be established for use in the surveying/basemapping, design, and
construction efforts. The control necessary for these efforts will be set in manners and locations that
minimize the potential for disturbance and destruction, so they can be used in future phases of the project
(including construction). The survey will be performed on a known datum and projection, similar to that
used by Caltrans and County surveys.

www.cardno.com



Subtask 68: Field Survevinq

ESLS will provide the necessary field surveying efforts for the project and collect the necessary field
information (e.9., topography, planimetrics, and boundary) to develop an accurate basemap. The
boundary information will be based on recovered lnyo County surveyor and Centerline Street monuments
along with property markers in the project area for the development of an accurate boundary map. The
topographic information collected will be sufficient to develop 1-foot contours within the preferred
alternative project area. The planimetric survey will include survey shots of all found features (e.9.,
structures, drainage features, curbs, sidewalks, traffic signals, surface evidence of underground utilities,
existing overhead utilities, fences, and walls) within the survey area.

Subtask 6C: Final Basemap

Careful and detailed mapping is critical to successful project design and construction; the basemap will be
used in allfuture design efforts. The Cardno team will compile the field survey data collected and develop
a detailed project basemap. The initial phase of this effort will be the development of a draft basemap.
The draft basemap will then be field checked by walking the project site, confirming all aspects are
correct, and documenting any errors. The basemap will then be updated, providing the Cardno team and
the County with an accurate map that can be trusted throughout the design process.

The process outlined above is an ideal approach to ensure the topographic and planimetric features are
accurate. However, the boundary survey cannot be performed in such a manner. The boundary
information collected during the field survey will be used to develop the boundary mapping in conjunction
with subdivision and record maps. Unfortunately, older areas, such as the project area, have inconsistent
boundary information. Therefore, best fit boundary information will be determined by a licensed land
surveyor (i.e., ESLS). Cardno has successfully followed this approach on previous projects and find it
typically provides an accuracy of approximately 2 feet horizontally for the boundary. This is taken into
account during the development of the design to ensure the improvements are within the ROW. ln the
event improvements require installation in or near these boundaries, easements are obtained or a more
detailed, site-specific survey can be completed.

Task 5 Deliverables:

> Finalbasemap

Task 6 Assumptions:

> Surveying will not commence untilthe concept plan has been completed and the project has initiated
the PS&E Phase.

> Surveying level of effort will be limited to eight days of field time (control and survey).

Task 7: Geotechnical lnvestigation
Accurate geotechnical analysis will be key to providing a roadway rehabilitation solution that is both cost-
efficient and durable over the long term. The primary goal of the geotechnical report will be to review the
roadway rehabilitation treatments proposed in the County's initial project study report and to evaluate
other treatment possibilities given the nature and condition of the existing soils.

SGSI's field exploration will consist of both pavement coring and test pits. Approximately ten 6-inch-
diameter cores will be excavated within the proposed street improvement areas. As the excavations are
advanced, they will be measured for thickness, and subsurface soiltypes will be recorded. The
information collected will help identify thickness of existing pavement, existence of Class ll base and its
thickness, and the nature of the subgrade soils. Field exploration will also consist of approximately five
backhoe test pits adjacent to paved roadway areas. The test pit soils will be logged as the excavations
advance, and subgrade soil samples will be collected for laboratory testing. All excavations will be
backfilled and compacted, and all cores will be patched with asphalt cement. SGSI will perform a
Notification of Underground Service Alert to clear boring locations for the potential presence of
underground utilities.

Page IINYO COUNTY DPW I SCOPE OF WORK I December 6,2021



10

The soil samples collected will be tested. Testing will include classification and grain size determination,
in-place moisture and density, maximum dry density, and R-Value testing. Following testing, SGSI will
perform a geotechnical evaluation and analysis of the collected field and laboratory data and prepare a
geotechnical report presenting the results of the findings. The report will include recommendations and
rehabilitation considerations for the project.

This task will be imperative to providing the County with proper and accurate pavement rehabilitation
alternatives. A proper geotechnical evaluation will undoubtedly lead to construction cost savings and will
allow the County to maximize the project rehabilitation area and its impact on Lone Pine.

Task 7 Deliverables:

> Geotechnical report (preliminary and final)

Task 7 Assumptions:

> Geotechnical investigation will not commence until the concept plan has been completed and the
project has initiated the PS&E Phase.

Task 8: School Circulation Plan

LSC will prepare an update and final school circulation plan for the Lone Pine High School, focusing on
project roadways with school access routes to the high school. This will be an updated version of what
was developed in the ES&P phase to provide information and support the final design of the project. This
will additionally reflect the guidance regarding safe routes to school planning reflected in Caltrans Active
Transportation Planning documents. lt will include a summary of existing school circulation conditions,
and present recommendations regarding appropriate school access routes and physical improvements to
enhance school access and safety. These may include new sidewalks, crosswalk enhancements, bicycle
lanes, modifications to parking, auto loading and bus loading zones and access patterns.

A final stand-alone document will be prepared presenting the school circulation plan as a part of the
PS&E phase. A draft document will be provided for County review and comment, after which a final
document will be prepared.

Task I Beliverables:

> FinalSchool Circulation Plan (Draft and Final)

Task I Assumptions:

> No work will commence until the concept plan has been completed and the project has initiated the
PS&E Phase.

Task 9: Utility Coordination
The Cardno team will obtain existing utility grid maps, incorporate the mapping into the final project
basemap, arid update the locationsbaseO on the field survey of visual appurtenances (manholes, valves,
etc.). The coordination effort with the utilities will commence early in the planning to minimize potential
project delays and identify any major utility.

Once the concept plan is determined and surveying and mapping have been completed, the grid map
information will be incorporated into the project basemap for use in the development of the 60 percent
design and future design steps. This will enable the Cardno team to clearly understand the utility locations
(horizontally), identify potential conflict areas, and note any potential potholing needed.

It is not anticipated that major utility conflicts will occur as minimal undergrounding is anticipated.
Therefore, Cardno will implement an approach to potential utilfty conflicts that we have used on similar
projects. We will not perform potholing as part of the design; instead, we will identify any potential
conflicts on the plans and call for the construction contractor to pothole these potential conflicts as the first
order of construction work. lf there is a conflict, this will provide adequate time to coordinate potential
revisions prior to major construction commencing and minimize the potential for delay claims.

www.cardno.com



During the project design process (typically following concept design), Cardno will submit improvement
plans, if required, to utility companies per the individual company requirements and will begin coordinating
utility relocations and/or cover adjustments as needed. This communication will enable a time to
interacUcoordinate with the utility company staff, determine alternative designs and/or relocation
alternatives, and further coordinate construction sequencing and scheduling to be incorporated into the
construction documents.

ln addition to the utility coordination discussed in this sub-section, ROls are required to be completed for
each affected utility in order to follow the Caltrans LAPM process and receive a ROW certification. The
scope and costs associated with these efforts are include in Task 1 of this scope of work.

Task 9 Deliverables

> None

Task 9 Assumptions:

> The County will provide a complete list of utility companies and appropriate contacts to Cardno within
1 week of the notice to proceed.

> No utility potholes will be performed.

> Utility information will be incorporated into the final project basemap.

Task 10: Right-of-Way Phase and Determination
There is no anticipated acquistion associated with the project, and, therefore, no budget has been
allocated to acquisition. Efforts are limited to identifiation of potential acquistion, easements, rights-of-
entry, and/or temporary construction easements, though none are anticipated to be required to construct
the Project. These efforts will include a review of the proposed project improvements (60% Design) in
relation to the existing ROW limits and identify areas that may require some form of acquisition. This
information will be provided to the County in the forms of figures (plan sheets with areas identified) to
facilitate discussion and coordination. The intent of this coordination effort will be to modify the
design/project to avoid the need for acquisition.

ln the event the County does not wish to modify the design to avoid acquisition requirements, or if a right-
of-entry/temporary construction easemenUother acquisition becomes required to construct the project,
Cardno can assist the County in any and all of the obtainment efforts. ln this scenario (not included in this
scope/budget), all contact with the property owner will be led by a licensed California real estate broker,
who will be added to the Cardno team if the County does not wish to perform and lead these efforts.
Cardno has worked with lnterwest Consulting Group on previous projects and highly recommends
engaging them based on their extensive knowledge, past performance, and understanding of the
acquisition process.

Task 10 Deliverables:

> ROW assessmenVfigure (60 percent design)

Task 10 ,Assumptions:

> No acquisition is assumed to be required for the project.

Page 1 1INYO COUNTY DPW I SCOPE OF WORK I December 6,2021



12

Task 11: Design

The project design will commence following the development and approval of the concept plans and
estimate and the completion of field surveying and basemap development (Task 6), along with the
geotechnical investigation (Task 7). The design process will follow a standard 60 percent, 90 percent, and
final design/construction document review process, whereby the County will be provided design
documents to review at each step.

The project design will incorporate several key project elements. The following are a few key design
considerations/elements that will be included in the project:

> Account and provide for on-street parking
> Account and provide for local storm drainage
> Account for geotechnical conditions in the project area
> Account for school circulation plan

> Coordinate with future projects in the vicinity (utility and/or Caltrans)

The project area encompasses areas that include extensive on-street parking for both residential and
commercial uses. The project design must incorporate on-street parking equal to or in excess of the
existing parking, generally in the same locations. ln addition, the parking and traffic patterns need to be
considered in concert with pedestrian mobility to provide safe mobility for all users.

The project area has the potential to be adjacent to the state highway and further to include aboveground
and belowground utilities of varying ages and sizes. As part of the initial design efforts, it is imperative for
the County and design team to coordinate with utility companies and Caltrans to identify any ongoing,
concurrent, and/or future projects within or adjacent to the project area. By performing this initial
coordination, projects outside of the project area can either be incorporated into the project or coordinated
with to avoid any duplicate efforts or, worse, result in effects to the current project.

Each of these design considerations, along with those identified during the preliminary engineering efforts
will be reviewed and incorporated into the project design. The design steps and subtasks associated with
the project design are as follows.

SubtseKllA: 60 Percent Desiqn Packaqe

Once the concept plans have been determined and the PS&E phase has been initiated, plans will be
developed to the 60 percent design level, showing the level of detail necessary for the project to enter into
an environmental compliance review. The 60 percent plans will be developed on the final basemap,
incorporating all of the survey information/data collected and incorporate the information generated from
the Geotechnical lnvesti gation.

The Cardno team will develop the 60 percent design of the project based on the concept plans. The 60
percent design will be produced in both horizontal and vertical design, with sufficient underground utility
information to ensure major utility conflicts can be minimized, avoided, or mitigated. The plans will
highlight key features of the design for construction of the project and sufficiently show improvements,
such as roadway modifications (e.9., plan, profile, and cross-sections); bicycle routes;ADA-compliant
pedestrian access routes; storm drainage improvements; utility conflicts and potential relocations;
revegetation/restoration/landscaping (if necessary); survey control; notes; legend; title sheet; traffic
control; staging, storage and access; and temporary best management practices plans and details.

Upon completion, the Cardno team will provide the 60 percent design plans to the County for review and
comment. Comments received will be incorporated into the 90 percent design. During the County review
period, the Cardno team will meet with the County to review the plans and conduct a review meeting at
the project site. This meeting will enable the Cardno team and the County to walk the project site and
review the proposed improvements against the existing conditions. This will allow both parties to identify
any potential project issues/complications (and also any project benefits), so that they can be addressed
on the project plans to minimize the potential for construction change orders.

wrpw.cardno.com



We will produce a construction cost estimate to detail the anticipated project costs. The Cardno team will
prepare a cost estimate based on the 60 percent design. The estimate will be based on recent
construction costs (unit prices) for similar work in the region to ensure accuracy of the estimate (with a
target of 20 percent accuracy/use of a20 percent contingency). The estimate will expand on the
preliminary engineering cost estimate developed with the approved concept plans for the project with
refinements and updates based on the 60 percent design.

At this stage of the design process, the Cardno team proposes to develop a project specification/special
provisions outline, rather than full project specifications/special provisions. These will be developed at the
90 percent design stage, when the project design is refined and all design aspects of the project are
nearly complete. This will reduce the efforts on the specifications/special provisions and reduce County
review time, allowing for a faster project delivery process at a reduced cost.

Subtask 11B: 90 Pe ent Desion Packaoe

The Cardno team will prepare a 90 percent design package for the project that will include updated plans,
cost estimate and initiate the development of the technical specifications/special provisions. The g0
percent design will be developed based on comments received from the County on the 60 percent design.
These efforts are to represent a g0 percent design and be sufficient to clearly define the project for
permitting purposes.

Subtask 11C: Final Desiqn PackaqelBid Set

The Cardno team will prepare a 100 percent design package and bid documents for the project. We will
develop the 100 percent design based on comments received from the County on the 90 percent design,
along with permit conditions received from the permit applications (if any permits are required for the
project). The 100 percent design will be a bid/construction-ready set of construction documents, including
complete plans, technical specifications/special provisions, bid list, and cost estimate.

Task 11 Deliverables:

> 60 percent, 90 percent, and final plans

> 60 percent, 90 percent, and finalcost estimate/bid list
> 60 percent technical specifications/special provisions outline
> 90 percent and final technical specifications/special provisions

Task 11 Assumptions:

> Costs are assumed for this task; upon determination of the concept plans, Cardno and the County will
review the proposed project and refine/revise the scope and cost.

> No 30 percent design will be performed; the project will go from the concept plans to the 60 percent
design step.

> Technical specifications/special provisions will be produced using the Caltrans Standard Specifications
for the technical components of the project. The County will be responsible for all front-end,
boilerplate, and/or contractual sections. lt is assumed that special provisions to the Caltrans Standard
Specifications, similar to how Caltrans produces similar documents, will be provided.

> No Caltrans Encroachment Permit will be required.

INYO COUNTY DPW I SCOPE OF WORK I December 6,2021 Page 13



14

Task 12: Environmental Permitting
The project is anticipated to disturb more than 1 acre of land and therefore trigger the necessity for a
project SWPPP, development of a notice of intent (NOl), and enrolment under the State Construction
General Permit (disturbance of more than 1 acre for a linear service project) as part of the Stormwater
Multiple Application and Report Tracking System (SMARTS). However, based on the review of the project
area and the assumption that there will be no active work/disturbance to a drainage or irrigation
ditch/slough hydrologically connected to Owens River, there is assumed to be no necessity for obtaining a
State Water Board 401, US Army Corps of Engineers 404, or California Department of Fish and Wildlife
permits to implement the project.

Cardno will review project permitting requirements as part of our environmental documentation review
and development. This enables all parties to understand, and agree to the permitting needs of the project
and further enables the engineering designers to know the limits of what can and cannot be done to meet
the environmental and permitting requirements. The permitting applications and approvals are then
completed after the 90 percent design step, when the project is clearly defined, enabling for streamlined
permit approvals.

Task 12 Deliverables:

> SMARTS NOI

> SWPPP

Task 12 Assumptions:

> No permits will be required for the project other than enrollment under the State Construction General
Permit.

Schedule of Work
The Cardno team's proposed project schedule is provided in Appendix A.

Cost Proposal
The proposed costs, along with hourly breakdown by task, following the scope of work in this proposal are
provided in Appendix B. Further, the cost estimates are in accordance with the LAPM and completed on
the associated 10-H form.

www.cardno.com





- L--!p 1

PrcFd K.bn ftd nq (Ms lws)

hlturyEErm'rhlrfu

hd stoFd Rd dw M..hit

ldc tuy r6.inE{ MonoEndum

ewbpcoi4@arflris
h{bP ccr..p!.| co,r klmrb

&!4r ao,c.pr toy.v {*d,o /ils rEArsl

a6ss bb R* do@bdobhs srci

Np cEq c!r!d rc.ourco, mmEidum

c@ @o*d krmen

tuftihturdnbrhw4bi

PlSb obn F6dschodc rubbi Phi

itshbMryrBr & hrtrdn

odp 64 kDi Fbnr

a!.tFi,.,ddoteler

odpef6Dsfr Pb6
odPhrs@DtPrcv!oi!

ccol &frv *uis,@/P

Nr Airl sp.od Prcv6'cni

MrFndsdLd*hEb





COST ESTTMATE

ES&P Phase

TOTAL

coNsut TAtct cosT

4.76tt-72
( 1 6)7 0)

743.10

1 238.88

5 560.72

s l.€484
q 1 491 76

626.64

1 016 4R

5 5,O5&0:l
4.521.14

q 1 239 t4
297.54

s 6Si2
( 1 674tr

L.227.20

1 ao4 14

2,158.28

5 20,231.04
qo oo

5 20,4!1.04
37.071.36

q 7 465 1?

60,167,52

12,9t4.6t
7t-to2-19

lnc.

Malini Kochar-

Robetu

su.85

0

o

a

2

4

2

s230.8C

7a3.2404

5%

Lori

Brownine

s36.83

24
24

0

o

5883.92

Anna ClaG

s32.42

4

4

0

D

ljt

4
4

4

s518.72

Niel

Kauffman

s28.00

o

t6

16

5444.00

lohn
Whirefield

a

8

215.0(

Erin Elliot

s29.12

o

m
a

8

4

5582.4(

Melis$
Teoh

s37.50

8

o

:t6
a

24

4

William
Thomas
(2q 60

a

4
4
t6

a

8
&
50

10

4

0

s

lvan Trujillo

14) 1a

o

m
8

4

8

2t
16

8

0

4

Jennifer
chase

o

o

4

4

a

Melanie
Gteene

s51.51

o

a
x

o

a
4

a

2

Grant
Schmitz

ss5.2g

22
6

6

8

I
m
R

4

8

25

18

6

2

6

7

2

,
m

:rystat west

11

3

a

o

0

8
4

a

39

lason Dukes

s68.56

0

0

9
8

1

o

9

Brian

McRae *

s58.56

o

E

8

o

I

Stephen

558.55

5

?

I

4
4

o

77

STAFF NAME.TITLVCATEGORY

DIRECT LABOR RATE

IIIM OF WORX DESCRIPTION

tbldUamlEmd

Counw/Cardno ViEUel Meetin6 16)

Public Meetinss (11

Field Review Meetinps l1)

Review ExistinE Materials

TEffic Data Colledion
Preliminad School Circulation Plen

tEd Plan

Develop DraftConept Plan

Develoo Final bnceot Plan

Preliminary Cost €stimate
;ildbnre&l Shrdl*rnd DodhenEllon
Reviedcompile ExistinE lnfo./Database Search

Bioloeical Resources Review and Tech Memo
Culturel Re<our.F. Rdi.w thF CFOA-a.6nlirnr R.n^d
Cateeorical Exemotion ICEOAI /Prciect Record

SUB-TOTAL HOURS

Dired bbor Costs

Tobl DiHt LeborCostr

Fee Cost

]OTAL UBOR MSS
OIHER DIREfr65T ltroh-bbr Gd3'

TdAt NOT-M-il'FFD

ITEMS OF

woR(

a

2

3

4



COST ESTIMATE

PS&E Phase

Lone PineTowr Streets Prcied

TOTAL

coNsuLTAifr cosT

s 2"635.41

7,577.97
1 n6t 50

2-W.M
227.76
))1 16

, 101 6R

ut-1,
M2.?2

4-056.rA
3.1?3 g0

s 932.44

s L4n.EO
1.564.36

967 L4
n)-rD
77) )O

s ut3d-m
990-ao

29.952.08

595-08

442.32

495.40

18_015.36

s s.2s4.24

s 595.08

5 77,927.72
a 419 20

5q5 0a

3.5q1.70

247.70

s 3.344.00

s 44.747.47

92.745.77

s 9.l-aa7-24

s 166.541.74

t2,877.45

s 270,100,47
s9-14?_20

129.4,|l.67

Malini Kochar-

Roberts

s2E.8s

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

4

4

4
s115-40

143.24%

5%

Lori

Browhing

s35.83

1a
1a

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

1a

s552.94

Anna Clare

<71 Lt

o

o

o

o

o

o

o

x2

12

a2

s389.01

Erin Elliot

o

o

0

o

o

o

&

40

M

William
Thomas

s29 50

o

ZA

24

o

48
40

8
u
8

16

a

45ll

240

8

720

8
ao

8

l2

t2
5ao

Parker

Johnson

s41.3s

o

0

o

0

o

o

tq

80

40

)4

o

L44,

lvan Trujillo

s42.77

0

15

16

o

1'
24
a

a
4
4
o

toa

80

40

)4

0

200

s8-434.0C

Shaun

Buckmah

o

0

o

o

0

ar

80

AN

60

24

32

0

2t5
S11.91s.G4

Melanie

Greene

?

t
o

o

o

o

o

76

19

S978.6!

Grant

Schmitz

5ss.29

1a
q

g

16

4
4
c
a
I

15

12

4
m
16
A

L
4

loa
a

150

4
a

4
720

I
4

80

8

4
6
2

4

495

s27.423.AA

crystal west

ssa s6

o

o

o

o

0

o

o

6
2

4

6

s411.3(

Jason Dukes

s5a 55

o

o

o

0

L
4

o

9a

15

2

4
16

24

2

12

76

2

o

9E
(6 71R aR

Brian

McRae *

s58.56

o

4

4
o

6

4
2
o

o

40
4
15

t2

8

o

s0
ql 4tt ofl

Stephen

Peck *

s68.56

ut
6

5

0

o

o

o

4
4
42
4
16

I
2

I
4

o

sa
s? q76 4t

STAFF NAME-TITLE/CATEGORI

DIRECT I.ABOR

ITEM OF WORK DESCRIPTION

'rclcci Manasemrn
Prciect Management (9 Months)
County/Cardno Vireual Meetinas {91

5uryey Control Establishment

Field Surueying

Final Basemap

Geotechnical lnvestigation

Sch6l Clmlition Plil
Draft School Circulation Plan

Final school circulatioh Plan

lrtllltY Coordmatbn
Coordination with LJtilitles

update Final Basemap

Right-of-Wav assessment

D6kn
lhitial DesiEn Coordination (utilities. future Droiects. etc.l
50% Desisn Plans

60% Cost Esti mate

60% Site Review Meetins
50% Techncial Specification Outline

90% Desisn Plans

90% Cost Estimate

Final Design Plans

Final Soecial Provisions

Final 8id Lif/Cost Estimate

5MARTS/NOI

SWPPP

SlJ'.TOTAL HOUR!

Direct Labor Cosfi

bbor Escalatidn

Total Dire.t tabol C6dr

Fee Cosl

TOTAL LIBOR COST!

OTHER DIRECT COST(Non-Labor Cost!

TOTAI NOT-TO-EXC€ED

ITEMS OF

WORK

5

7

E

q

to

11



ATTACHMENT B

CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Cardno lnc

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: TO:

SCHEDULE OF F'EES:

The Consultant shall be compensated for actual costs incurred plus a fixed fee (5%) at the rates
shown in the attached cost proposal submitted by Cardno, lnc. for the scope of services
described in Attachment A to the Contract, Scope of Work. The rates and costs identified
herein shall constitute full compensation for providing all services, labor, equipment, materials,
and other incidentals necessary to perform all work described in Attachment A to the Contract,
Scope of Work.

The hours and associated costs alloted to each task in the cost proposal are projected
estimates of probable costs incurred by the consultant. The total compensation provided shall
not exceed $402,545.86. lf an increase to the project cost is expected, request for approval of
the increase must be made in writing by the Consultant to the County, and approved by the
Board of Supervisors prior to incurring the increase. Any increase to the not to exceed amount
will be effective by written Amendment to the Contract only.

The Director of Public Works can add to or modify the approved job classification list as
necessary to account for personnel changes at Cardno, lnc. The Director of Public Works may
only approve changes to the Schedule of Fees that are not associated with an increase to the
contract Not-to-Exceed amou nt.

County oflnyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Prqects)

Page l8 of2l 07012018



Local Assistance Procedures Manual Exhibit t0-Hl Cost proposat ES&P PhaSg EXHBIT 10-Hl
Actual Cost-Plus-Fixed Fee or-@ (Firm Fixed Price) Contracts Cost Proposal

(Design, Engineering and Environmental Studies)

Note: Mtrk-ups tre Not Allowed ! erir" consurtant ! subconsurtan, n 2nd rier subconsultant

Consultant Cardno,Inc.

Project No. zP-21-010 Contract No N/A Date 1211012021

DIRECT LABOR

Classification/Title Name Hours Actual Ilourlv Rate Total
Sr. Consultant Stephen Peck * t7 $68.56 $ 1,165.52

Sr. Consultant Brian McRae * 8 $68.56 $ 548.48

Sr. Consultant Jason Dukes * 9 $68.s6 $ 6t7.04
Sr. Consultant Crystal West * 39 $68.56 s 2,673.84

Sr. Proiect Engineer Grant Schmitz 80 $55.29 $ 4,423.20

Sr. Project Scientist Melanie Greene 28 $51 51 $ 1.442.28

Sr. Proiect Scientist Jennifer Chase 8 s46.32 $ 370.56

Proiect Ensineer Ivan Truiillo 44 s42.17 $ 1.855.48

AutoCAD Technician William Thomas 88 $29.60 $ 2,604.80

Sr. StaffScientist Melissa Teoh 44 $37.50 $ I.6s0.00

statT scientist Erin Elliot 20 s29.12 $ 582.40

Assistant Staff Scientist John Whitefield 8 $27.00 $ 216.00

Technician Niel Kaul'fman t6 $28.00 $ 448.00

GIS Technician Anna Clare l6 s32.42 $ s18.72

Sr. Project Coordinator Lori Browning 24 $36.83 $ 883.92

Technical Editor Malini Kochhar-Roberts 8 $28.85 $ 230 80
* Sr. Consuftant rates have been discounted for lnyo County

LABOR COSTS

a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases

$ 20,23t.04

$

c) Total Direct Labor Costs [(a) + (b)] $ 20,231.04

INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: 70.23%, )
f) Overhead ( Rate: I 13.01% )
h) General and Administrative ( Rate: 0.00V'

e) Total Fringe Benefits t(c) x (d)l
g) Overhead [(c) x (0

i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)] $

j) Total Indirect Costs [(e) + (g) + (D] $ 37,071.36

FIXED FEE

k) TOTAL FIXED rEE [(c) + O]* fixed fee 5% I $ 2,865.12

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS .ITEMIZE additional if

l) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS $ 884.40

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)

$ 14,208.26

$ 22,863.10

Descrintion of Item Ouantitv Unit Unit Cost Total
Milease 240 Miles $0.560 $ 134.40

Cultural Database Search I LS $7s0.00 $ 750 00

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc $ 12,050.2'l
(m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANS'COSTS $ 12,050.27

(n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS (l) + (m)l
TOTAL COST [(c) + (1) + ft) + (n)]

$ 12,934.67

$ 73,102.19

NOTES:
L Key Personnel must be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are object to prevailing wage must be marked

with two asterisks 1*+;. All costs must comply with the Federal costs principles. Subconsultants will provide their own

cost proposals.

2. The cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with
the consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or excepted by Caltrans.

3. Anticipated salary increases calculation must accompany.
Page 2 of 4

January 2020



Local Assistance Procedures Manual
Exhibit 10-Hl Cost Proposal

@ or.lglqqs (Firm Fixed Price) contracts
(C"l"rl"ti"ts for Anticipated Salary Increases)

Consultant Cardno, Inc. N/A

EXHBIT lO-H1
Cost Proposal

Date 12161202lContract No.

1. Calculate average hourly rate for lst year ofthe contract (Direct Labor Subtotal divided by total hours)

Direct Labor
Subtotal per

Cost Proposal

$ 20,231.04

Avg Hourly Rate

Year I $44.27
Year 2 $44.27
Year 3 $44.27
Year 4 944.27

Estimated %
Completed Each

Period
Year I 100.00% *

Year 2 O-00o/" *

Year 3 0.00Yo *

Year 4 0.00Yo *

Year 5 0.00% *

Total TOO0/"

Avg Hourly Rate
(calculated above)

Total Hours
per Cost

Proposal

457

Proposed

Escalation

Avg Hourly
Rate

$44.27 Year 1 Avg Hourly Rate

2 year Contract
Duration

Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 4 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate

Estimated Hours Year I
Estimated Hours Year 2
Estimated Hours Year 3
Estimated Hours Year 4
Estimated Hours Year 5

Estimated Hours Year I
Estimated Hours Year 2
Estimated Hours Year 3
Estimated Hours Year 4
Estimated Hours Year 5

+
+
+
+

$44.27
$44.27

$44.27
s44.2t

3. Calculate estimated hours per year (Multiply estimate o/o each period by total hours)

Total Hours
per Cost
Proposal

457

457

457

457

457

Total

Total Hours
per Period

457

0

0

0

0

457

Cost

Per Period

4. Calculate Total Costs including Escalation (multiply average hourly rate by the number of hours)

Year I
Year 2
Year 3

Year 4
Year 5

$44.27
$44.27
$44.27
$44.27
$44.27

$20,231.04

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Estimated
Hours

(calculated above)

* 457
:t0
rk0
,t0
*0

Total Direct Labor Cost with Escalation
Direct Labor Subtotal before escalation

Estimated total of Direct Labor Salary Increase

$20,231.04

$20,231.04

$0.00 Transfer to Page 1

NOTES:

I . This is not the only way to estimate salary increases. Other methods will be accepted if they clearly indicate the 7o increase, the # of years of
the contract, and a breakdown ofthe labor to be performed each year.

2. An estimation that is based on direct labor multiplied by salary increase % multiplied by the # of years is not acceptable.
(i.e. $250,000 x2o/o x 5 yrs = $25,000 is not an acceptable methodology.)

3. This assumes that one year will be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted.

4. Calculations for anticipated salary escalation must be provided. Page 3 of 4

January 2020



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHBIT lO-Hl
Cost Proposal

Exhibit l0-Hl Cost Proposal

Certification of Direct Costs:

I, the undersigned, certi! to the best ofmy knowledge and beliefthat all direct costs identifred on the cost proposal(s) in this

contract are actual, reasonable, and allocable to the contract in accordance with the contract terms and the following
requirements:

1. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
2. Terms and conditions of the contract
3. Title 23 United States Code Section I l2 - Letting of Contracts
4. 48 Code ofFederal Regulations Part 31 - Contract Cost Principles and Procedures
5. 23 Code of Federal Regulations Part 172 - Procurement, Management, and Administration of

Engineering and Design Related Service

6. 48 Code ofFederal Regulations Part 9904 - Cost Accounting Standards Board {when applicable)

All costs must be applied consistently and fairly to all contracts. All documentation of compliance must be retained in the

project files and be in compliance with applicable federal and state requirements. Costs that are noncompliant with the

federal and state requirements are not eligible for reimbursement.

Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency approved or Caltrans accepted Indirect Cost Rate(s).

Prime Consultant or Subconsultant Certifvine:

Name: Stephen H. Peck Title*: Principal

Signature:

Email:

Date of Certification (mm/dd/yyW):

PhoneNumber: 775.339.3321

12/1012021

stephen. peck(ocardno.com

Address: 295 Highway 50, Suite l, Zephyr Cove, Nevada 89448-1533

*An individual executive or financial officer of the consultant's or subconsultant's organization at a level no

lower than a Vice President or a Chief Financial Officer, or equivalent, who has authority to represent the

financial information utilized to establish the cost proposal for the contract.

List services the consultant is under the contract:

Page 4 of 4

January 2020

Project management; Design; Environmental; Utilities; ROW; Bid Support; Construction Support



Local Assistance Procedures Manual Exhibit lg-Hl cost proposal PS&E PhaSg
Actual Cost-Plus-Fixed Fee or_Lg-tr@ (Firm Fixed Price) Contracts

(Design, Engineering and Environmental Studies)

Note: Mrk-ups re Not Allowed

Consultant Cardno,lnc.
I Irime Consultant I Subconsultant n 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Project No. zP-21-0to Contract No. N/A Date 12/1012021

DIRECTLABOR

* Sr. Consultant rates have been discounted for lnyo County

EXHBIT IO-HI
Cost Proposal

LABOR COSTS

a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases

INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: 70.23%o )
f) Overhead ( Rate: 113.01% )
h) General and Administrative ( Rate: 0.00y'

FIXED FEE

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS - ITEMIZE

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)

Eastern Siena Land Surveys, Inc.

88,741.47

2,t45.77

c) Total Direct Labor Costs [(a) + (b)] $ 90,887.24

e) Total Fringe Benefits l(c) x (d)l $ 63,830.1 I

g) Overhead [(c) x (0 S 102,711.67

i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)] $

j) Total Indirect Costs [(e) + (g) + (Dl $ 166,541.78

k) TOTAL FIXED FEE [(c) + (i)]* fixed fee 5% I $ 12,871.45

$

$

additional if

l) TOTAL OTIIER DIRECT COSTS $ 884.40

S ierra Geotechinical Services, Inc.
$ 35,638.48

$ 9,406.09

s 13,214.23LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
(m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANS' COSTS $ 58,258.80

(n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS KD + (m)l $ 59,143.20

TOTAL COST [(c) + (i) + G) + (n)] $ 32e,443.67

NOTES:
I . Key Personnel 3[gg! be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are object to prevailing wage must be marked

with two asterisks 1**;. All costs must comply with the Federal costs principles. Subconsultants will provide their own
cost proposals.

2. The cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with
the consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or excepted by Caltrans.

3. Anticipated salary increases calculation must accompany. Page 2 oI 4

January 2020

Classification/Title Name Hours Actual Hourlv Rate Total
Sr. Consultant Stephen Peck * 58 $68.s6 s 3,976.48

Sr. Consultant Brian McRae * 50 $68.56 $ 3,428.00

Sr. Consultant Iason Dukes * 98 $68.56 $ 6.7 18.88

Sr. Consultant Crystal West * 6 $68.56 $ 411.36

Sr. Proiect Engineer Grant Schmitz 496 $ss.29 $ 27,423.84

Sr. Project Scientist Melanie Greene l9 $51.51 $ 978.69

Project Engineer Shaun Buckman 236 $50.49 $ I 1,915.64

Proiect Ensineer Ivan Truiillo 200 s42.17 $ 8.434.00

Proiect Engineer Parker Johnson 144 $41.3s $ 5.954.40

AutoCAD Technician William Thomas 580 $29.60 $ 17,168.00

Staff Scientist Erin Elliot 40 $29.12 $ I,164.80
GIS Technician Anna Clare t2 s32.42 $ 389.04

Sr. Project Coordinator Lori Browning I8 $36.83 $ 662.94

Technical Editor Malini Kochhar-Roberts 4 $28.85 $ I15.40

Descrintion of Item Ouantitv IInit Unit Cost Total
Mileaee 240 Miles $0.560 $ r34.40
Cultural Database Search I LS $750.00 $ 750.00



Local Assistance Procedures Manual
Exhibit 10-H1 Cost Proposal

Actual Cost-Plus-Fixed Fee or-lglqp_U (Firm Fixed Price) contracts
(C"t."t"tt"* f". Anti"iputea Salary Increases)

Consultant Cardno, Inc. Contract No. N/A

EXHBIT lO-Hl
Cost Proposal

Date l2ll0l202l

1. Calculate average hourly rate for lst year ofthe contract (Direct Labor Subtotal divided by total hours)

Direct Labor
Subtotal per

Cost Proposal

$ 88,741.47

Avg Hourly Rate

Year I $45.25 +
Year 2 $46.61 +
Year 3 $48.01 +
Year 4 $49.45 +

Estimated %o

Completed Each

Period

Year I 40.00o/o 't

Year 2 40.00Vo *

Year 3 20.00Yo *

Year 4 0.00o/o *

Year 5 0.00Yo *

Total 100Y"

Avg Hourly Rate
(calculated above)

Total Hours
per Cost
Proposal

7,961

Proposed

Avg Hourly
Rate

$45.25 Year I Avg Hourly Rate

2 year Contract
Duration

Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 4 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate

Estimated Hours Year I
Estimated Hours Year 2
Estimated Hours Year 3
Estimated Hours Year 4
Estimated Hours Year 5

Estimated Hours Year I
Estimated Hours Year 2
Estimated Hours Year 3

Estimated Hours Year 4
Estimated Hours Year 5

Escalation
301"

3Vo

3Yo

3o/o

$46.61

$48.01
$49.45

$50.93

3. Calculate estimated hours per year (Multiply estimate %o each period by total hours)

Total Hours
per Cost
Proposal

1,961

1,961

1,96t
1,967

1,961

Total

Total Hours
per Period

784.4

784.4

392.2

0

0

1961

Cost

Per Period

4. Calculate Total Costs including Escalation (multiply average hourly rate by the number of hours)

Year I
Year 2
Year 3

Year 4
Year 5

$45.25

$46.61

$48.01

$4e.45

$50.93

$35,496.59

$36,561.49

$ 18,829.17

$0.00

$0.00

Estimated
Hours

(calculated above)

* 784.4
* 784.4
* 392.2
*0
*0

Total Direct Labor Cost with Escalation
Direct Labor Subtotal before escalation

Estimated total of Direct Labor Salary Increase

$90,887.24

$88,741.47

$2,145.77 Transfer to Page I

NOTES:

1. This is not the only way to estimate salary increases. Other methods will be accepted if they clearly indicate the o/o increase, the # of years of
the conhact, and a breakdown ofthe labor to be performed each year.

2. An estimation that is based on direct labor multiplied by salary increase % multiplied by the # of years is not acceptable.

(i.e. $250,000 x2o/o x 5 yrs = $25,000 is not an acceptable methodology.)

3. This assumes that one year will be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted.

4. Calculations for anticipated salary escalation must be provided. Page 3 of 4

January 2020



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHBIT lO-Hl
Cost Proposal

Exhibit 10-Hl Cost Proposal

Certification of Direct Costs:

I, the undersigned, certif to the best ofmy knowledge and beliefthat all direct costs identified on the cost proposal(s) in this

conkact are actual, reasonable, and allocable to the contract in accordance with the contract terms and the following
requirements:

l. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
2. Terms and conditions of the contract
3. Title 23 United States Code Section l l2 - Letting of Contracts
4. 48 Code of Federal Regulations Part 3 1 - Contract Cost Principles and Procedures
5. 23 Code of Federal Regulations Part 172 - Procurement, Management, and Administration of

Engineering and Design Related Service

6. 48 Code of Federal Reeulations Part 9904 - Cost Accounting Standards Board {when applicable)

All costs must be applied consistently and fairly to all contracts. All documentation of compliance must be retained in the
project files and be in compliance with applicable federal and state requirements. Costs that are noncompliant with the
federal and state requirements are not eligible for reimbursement.

Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency approved or Caltrans accepted Indirect Cost Rate(s)

Prime Consultant or Subconsultant Certifvine:

Name: Stephen H. Peck Title*: Principal

Signature Date of Certification (mm/dd/yyyy)

PhoneNumber: 775.339.3321

Address: 295 Highway 50, Suite l,Zephyr Cove, Nevada 89448-1533

*An individual executive or financial officer ofthe consultant's or subconsultant's organization at a level no
lower than a Vice President or a Chief Financial Officer, or equivalent, who has authority to represent the
financial information utilized to establish the cost proposal for the contract.

List services the consultant is under the contract:

Page 4 of 4

January 2020

t2lt0/2021

Email n

Project management; Design; Environmental; Utilities; ROW; Bid Support; Construction Support



ATTACHMENT C

AND
CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY OF II\'YO

Cardno, lnc.
FOR THE PROVISION OX'CONSULTANT SERVICES

TERM

FROM: TO:

SCIIEDULE OF TRAVEL AI\D PER DIEM PAYMENT:

The Consultant shall be compensated at the rates shown in Attachment B, Schedule of Fees
for Travel and per Diem expenses.

County of Inyo Contract No. 146. 1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page l9 of2l 070120t8



AND

ATTACHMENT D

CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY OF II\WO
Cardno, lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF'CONSULTANT SERVICES

TERM:

TO:

SEE ATTACHED INST]RANCE PROVISIONS

County oflnyo Contract No. 146. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page20 of21

FROM:

07012018



Attachment B: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or
employees.

MINIMUM SCOPEAND LIMIT OF INSURANCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Commercial General tiability ICGLJ: Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL

on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

Additional Insured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad
as ISO Form CG 20 L0 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37
forms if later revisions used).

Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 [any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code B [hired) and 9 [non-owned), with limit no
less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $L,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certifying that
contractor has no employees.

Professional Liability [Errors and Omissions): appropriate to the Contractor's profession,
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.

Cyber Liability Insurance, with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim,
$2,000,000 aggregate. Cyber liability requirement may be waived if contractor will not be
receiving/storing/transmitting personally identifiable information [PII) or personal medical
information (PMI). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and obligations
as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall include, but not be limited to, claims
involving infringement of intellectual property, including but not limited to infringement of
copyright, trademark trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, information theft, damage to
or destruction of electronic information, release of private information, alteration of electronic
information, extortion and network security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach
response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses
with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage andfor higher limits than the minimums shown
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage andfor the higher

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. L
Professional Services



Attachment B: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as IS0 CG 20 01 0413 as respects Inyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to Inyo County.

Waiver of Subrogation
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer
of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under
such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-Insured Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may
require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or Inyo County.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a

current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
7. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work.
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five

[5) years after completion of the contract of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of
contract work.

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professional Services



Attachment B: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Verification of Coverage
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at
any time.

Subcontractors
Contractor shall require and veriff that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

Special Risks or Circumstances
Inyo County reserves the right to modiff these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature ofthe risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

-end-

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. L

Professional Services



)

ATTACHMENT E

CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY OF.II\IYO
AND Cardno lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: TO:

STATE / FEDERAL FUNDS ADDENDUM

Covenant Against Contingent Fees. The Consultant warrants that he/she has not employed or retained any
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working for the consultant, to solicit or secure this
Contract, and that he/she has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person other than a bona fide
employee, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration, contingent upon
or resulting from the award, or formation of this Contract. For breach or violation of this warranty, the local
agency shall have the right to annul this Contract without liability, or at its disuetion; to deduct from the
Contract price or consideration, or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage,
brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.

Delays and Extensions. The term ofthe contract may be extended in the case ofunavoidable delays, changes

in the scope of work or level of effort required to meet the project objectives, and for consideration of
corresponding warranted adjustments in payment. An extension of contract time is granted as described in
Section 30, Amendment/Change in Terms, of the contract.

Consultant's Endorsement on PS&E/Other Data. The consultant's responsible engineer shall sign all
plans, specifications, estimates (PS&E) and engineering data furnished by him/her, and where appropriate,
indicate hislher California registration number.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Considerations. Consultants must give consideration to DBE firms as

specified in 23 CFR 172.5(b),49 CFR, Part26. The Consultant shall comply with the applicable provisions
of Exhibit l0-I, "Notice to Proposers Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Information," and Exhibit 10-J,

"Standard Contract for Subcontractor/DBE Participation," that were included in the Request for Statements of
Qualifications,

Safety. The consultant shall comply with OSHA regulations applicable to the Consultant regarding necessary
safety equipment or procedures. The Consultant shall comply with safety instructions issued by the county's
project manager and other county representatives. Consultant personnel shall wear hard hats and safety vests
at all time when working on the construction project site.

Pursuant to the authority contained in Section 591 of the Vehicle Code, the county has determined that such
areas are within the limits of the project and are open to public traffrc. The Consultant shall comply with all
oftherequirementssetforthinDivisionsll, 12, 13, 14,and15oftheVehicleCode. Theconsultantshall
take all reasonably necessary precautions for safe operation of its vehicles and the protection of the traveling
public from injury and damage from such vehicles.

Any subcontract entered into as a result ofthis contract shall contain all ofthese provisions

J

4

5.

County oflnyo Contract No. 146. I - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee

(Independent Consultant - Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)

Page 2l of2l 07012018



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-708  

 

Accuracy of an Estimate for Sidewalk Railing Fabrication 
and Installation in Lone Pine 

Public Works - Road Department 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Breanne Nelums, Senior Management Analyst Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20394, find that the estimated expense of the work to be done 
within the County right-of-way at the intersection of Jackson Street and Bush Street in Lone Pine is less 
than $25,000 and authorize the Road Commissioner to enter into a contract to perform the work. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Public Works just completed construction of the Lone Pine Sidewalk and ADA Improvement Project. Part 
of this project included installing new sidewalks, ramps and stairs in the vicinity of the intersection of 
Jackson Street and Bush Street. The new construction created a situation (outside the scope of the 
project) where the remaining sidewalk along Bush Street and Jackson Street is approximately 30 inches 
higher in elevation than the new sidewalk along said streets and presents significant safety concerns for 
pedestrians. This new railing will provide fall hazard mitigation and ADA compliance. 
 
Per Public Contract Code section 20304, when the road commissioner estimates that a project will cost 
less than $25,000, the road commissioner may ask the board to approve the estimate and then enter into 
a contract to perform the work without any bidding.  The one contractor who responded to the request for 
estimates for this work quoted the project at $24,872.  Therefore, the road commissioner is asking your 
Board to find that the project will likely cost less than $25,000 and to authorize the road commissioner to 
enter into a contract to complete the project.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding  
Source 

Non-General Fund (Road Fund) Budget Unit 034600 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code 5700 
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure  Sole Source? No 
If Sole Source, provide justification below 
 
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Up to $24,872 for the period between September 24, 2024–June 30, 2025 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
N/A 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board may choose not to approve this estimate as recommended or direct staff to attempt to obtain 
additional estimates. This is not recommended as Public Works requested estimates from three 
companies and this estimate is the only one received. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
Thriving Communities | Community Supporting Infrastructure Improvements 
 
APPROVALS: 
Breanne Nelums Created/Initiated - 9/5/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/6/2024 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 9/6/2024 
Keri Oney Approved - 9/9/2024 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 9/9/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 9/9/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/11/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 9/13/2024 
 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Lone Pine Guardrail Project Quote/Bishop Welding Services 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1

Sarah Wilson

Subject: FW: Estimate 1006 from Bishop Welding Services

From: Bishop Welding Services <quickbooks@notification.intuit.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, August 27, 2024 10:35 AM 
To: Chris Cox <ccox@inyocounty.us> 
Subject: Estimate 1006 from Bishop Welding Services 
 
Dear Inyo County Public Works, 
 
Chris, 
 
Here is the adjusted estimate to also cover the infield installation, painting, and mounting of the built product. Clean Finish 
Construction will be assisting with physical installation on site.  
 
Feel free to contact us if you have any questions.  
 
We look forward to working with you. 
 
Jared Waasdorp 
Bishop Welding Services 
760-920-5420  

 
 
--------------------------------- Estimate --------------------------------- 
                                                                             
                                                                             
310 Rose St                              
Bishop, CA  93514-2761 USA               
+17609205420                             
 
Estimate #:   1006                                                         
Date:         08/27/2024                                                   
Exp. Date:                                                                 
              $24,872.00           
                                                                             
---------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Address:                                                                     
                                                                             
Inyo County Public Works Water and Parks                                     
P.O. Box Q                                                                   
Independence, CA. 93526                                                      
 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
    Date     Service   Description       Qty        Rate         Amount      
08/23/2024 Shop LaborLinear Foot         137          130.00      17,810.00T 
                     Fabrication                                             
08/23/2024 Shop LaborFabrication of      20            25.00         500.00T 
                     Base Plate,                                             
                     Plasma Table,                                           
                     Press Bend                                              
08/23/2024 Concrete A1/2" Concrete       80             4.00         320.00T 
                     Anchor                                                  



2

08/23/2024 1.5x.120 RGuardrail           26           117.00       3,042.00T 
                     Tubing                                                  
08/23/2024 FIELD LABOFIELD LABOR 4        8           400.00       3,200.00T 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
                                     SubTotal:                   $24,872.00 
                                     Tax:                             $0.00 
                                     -------------------------------------- 
                                     Total:                      $24,872.00 
 
                                                                             
                                                                             
Construction of 1.5" Tubing Guardrail, 36" in height, w/ three rails,      
spaced no more than 19" per ADA Code.                                      
Corners and risers will be mandrel bent to fit minimizing on site welding. 
 All horizontals will be fish mouth cut and welded. All surfaces to be     
smooth, free of burrs, and rough edges.                                    
                                                                           
Base Plates to be plasma cut and press break bent to custom sizes to fit   
irregularities in concrete surface and facia.                              
                                                                           
Installation will be conducted on site, brackets concrete bolted, and all  
railing painted. Exisitng railings to be touched up with paint as well.    
 
 

 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-701  

 

Annual Special Event Permit for the Big Pine High 
School Homecoming Parade 

Public Works 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Kevin Rainbolt, Engineering Assistant Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the temporary closure of School Street in Big Pine with detours between the hours 8 a.m. and 
10 a.m. on October 5, 2024 for the purpose of the Big Pine Annual High School Homecoming Parade. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Big Pine Unified School District  has submitted a Special Event Permit Application requesting 
permission to close School Street for the annual Big Pine Homecoming Parade as depicted in the 
attached map (See end of application). The Big Pine Unified School District has been utilizing School 
Street since 2013 for the parade route to avoid closure of Highway 395. The Big Pine Unified School 
District will be required to send notices of road closure to all residents on School Street, Crocker Street, 
and Cornell Street at least 48 hours prior to the closure as well as posting notices throughout the 
community. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this item. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to approve this resolution. This is not recommended as it would require Big 
Pine High School to cancel a traditional annual parade or attempt to obtain road closure of Highway 395 
through Caltrans, with detours onto School Street. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
High Quality Services I High-Quality County Government Services 
 
APPROVALS: 
Kevin Rainbolt Created/Initiated - 9/9/2024 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/9/2024 
Kevin Rainbolt Approved - 9/9/2024 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 9/9/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 9/10/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 9/13/2024 
 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Special Event Permit No. SE24-14  
2. Parade Route 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

                               ROAD DEPARTMENT  
                                              168 N. EDWARDS ST. - P.O. DRAWER Q 
                                                         INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 
                                                              PHONE:  (760) 878-0201  
                                                                 FAX:  (760) 878-2001  

 
         

 

                      SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT 
 

To:  Big Pine High School     PERMIT NO:     SE 24-14 

 500 S. Main St.      FEE:                  N/A  

 Big Pine, CA 93513       DATE:                9/3/24  

                                                     RECEIPT NO: N/A     

       

Attn:  Sunny Ceron   
 

In compliance with your request of August 21st, 2024 and subject to all terms, conditions and restrictions 

written below or printed as general or special provisions or part of this form, PERMISSION IS 

HEREBY GRANTED TO:  
 

Big Pine Unified School District (Permittee) or their representative to use roadways within the Inyo County 

Right-of-Way for the purposes of a special event, the Big Pine School Homecoming Parade. The parade route 

will take place in accordance with the attached map.  

 

The event is permitted to take place between 8:45 AM and 10:00 AM on October 5th, 2024.   

 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 

Traffic Control 

The event may not be held in the Inyo County right-of-way until adequate signage is utilized to notify 

traffic of the road closures and event details.  The Big Pine Unified School District will be required to 

send notices of road closure to all residents on School Street, Crocker Street, and Cornell Street at least 48 

hours prior to road closure and other notices shall be posted throughout the community and in the Post 

Office.  

 

Signs, barricades, and/or cones for special event may be obtained from the Inyo County Road Department.  

If County equipment is requested, the Permittee or their representative must, as a responsible party, sign a 

COUNTY LOAN AGREEMENT. Please contact Dale Renfro at (760) 878-5132 to make arrangements to 

pick up equipment and sign the loan agreement. If Dale cannot be reached, call the Road Department at 

760-878-0212. 

 

Insurance Requirements for Special Event Permit  

Permittee shall procure and maintain for the duration of the special event period insurance against claims 

for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the use of the 

facilities and the activities of the Permittee, his guests, agents, representatives, employees, or 

subcontractors. Insurance shall meet the minimum requirements stipulated. 

COUNTY 

OF 

INYO 



  
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

The Permittee shall indemnify and save harmless the County of Inyo and all officers, employees and 

agents thereof, including but not limited to the Director of Public Works and the Deputy Director, from all 

claims, suits or actions of every name, kind and description brought for or on account of injuries to or 

death of any person, including but not limited to the Permittee, persons employed by the Permittee, 

persons acting on behalf of the Permittee and the public, or damage to property resulting from the 

performance of work or other activity under the permit, or arising out of the failure on the Permittee's part 

to perform his obligations, or resulting from defects or obstructions, or from any cause whatsoever arising 

during the progress of work, or other activity at any subsequent time being performed under the rights and 

obligations provided by and contemplated by the permit, except as otherwise provided by statute.  The 

duty of the Permittee to indemnify and save harmless includes the duties to defend as set forth in Section 

2778 of the Civil Code.  The Permittee waives any and all rights to any type of implied indemnity against 

the County, its officers, employees or agents.  It is the intent of the parties that the Permittee will 

indemnify and hold harmless the County, its officers, employees and agents from any and all claims, suits 

or actions as set forth above regardless of the existence or degree of fault or negligence, whether active or 

passive, primary or secondary, on the part of the County, the Permittee, persons employed by the 

Permittee, or persons acting in behalf of the Permittee. 

 
Acceptance of this permit constitutes an agreement by the Permittee to observe and comply with all of the 

general and special provisions on the face of the permit and its accompaniments. 

 

This permit is null and void and hereby declared non-existent if the Permittee fails to adhere to all 

provisions stipulated herein.  

 

This permit shall be void unless the work herein contemplated shall have been completed on or before 

October 5th, 2024.    

 

 

Inyo County Road Dept. 

County of Inyo 
          

 

 

 

By ____________________________________                                      

Kevin Rainbolt 

Engineering Assistant II      
 

CC: Road District 1     

 





krainbolt
Typewritten Text
09/05/2024

krainbolt_1
Typewritten Text
SE24-14

krainbolt_2
Typewritten Text
X



£¤395

£¤395

WE
ST

 S
T

COUNTY RD

S M
AI

N 
ST

HWY 168

HOME ST

S S
CH

OO
L S

T
BAKER CREEK RD

NORTH ST

EA
ST

 ST

SIERRA ST

US HWY 395

S P
IPE

R 
ST

BARTELL RD

N 
PIN

E 
ST

N 
PIP

ER
 S

T

BROWN AVE

CA
NA

L S
T

CENTER ST

POPLAR AVE

BIG PINE CANAL

S C
RA

TE
R 

ST

N 
SC

HO
OL

 ST

N 
CR

AT
ER

 ST

S N
EW

MA
N 

ST

HI
LL

 ST

S R
IC

HA
RD

S S
T

N 
RI

CH
AR

DS
 S

T

LOCUST AVE

W CROCKER AVEGLACIER LODGE RD

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON
 ST

BLAKE RD

N 
MA

IN
 ST

HA
RR

Y S
T

DEWEY ST

CA
LL

IN
A S

T

WALNUT ST

WA
TS

ON
 ST

BUTCHER LN

CORNELL ST

W SEPSEY ST

CHESTNUT ST
S B

OW
ER

S S
T

RO
SS

I L
N

BAKER LN

HA
LL

 ST

E SEPSEY LN

N 
BO

W
ER

S S
T

S P
IN

E S
T

MA
IN

 ST

NANCY LN

BIG PINE CANAL

LOCUST AVE

US HWY 395

BIG PINE HIGH SCHOOL HOMECOMING  PARADE
ROAD CLOSURE

BIG PINE

SPECIAL EVENT DETOUR ROUTES
CLOSURE

/
0 730 1,460

Feet

£¤168

18       28" CONES
 9        BARRICADES                                

BARRICADE
28" CONE

SE14-21 Page 5

Attachment A



£¤395

£¤395

WE
ST

 S
T

COUNTY RD

S M
AI

N 
ST

HWY 168

HOME ST

S S
CH

OO
L S

T
BAKER CREEK RD

NORTH ST

EA
ST

 ST

SIERRA ST

US HWY 395

S P
IPE

R 
ST

BARTELL RD

N 
PIN

E 
ST

N 
PIP

ER
 S

T

BROWN AVE

CA
NA

L S
T

CENTER ST

POPLAR AVE

BIG PINE CANAL

S C
RA

TE
R 

ST

N 
SC

HO
OL

 ST

N 
CR

AT
ER

 ST

S N
EW

MA
N 

ST

HI
LL

 ST

S R
IC

HA
RD

S S
T

N 
RI

CH
AR

DS
 S

T

LOCUST AVE

W CROCKER AVEGLACIER LODGE RD

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON
 ST

BLAKE RD

N 
MA

IN
 ST

HA
RR

Y S
T

DEWEY ST

CA
LL

IN
A S

T

WALNUT ST

WA
TS

ON
 ST

BUTCHER LN

CORNELL ST

W SEPSEY ST

CHESTNUT ST
S B

OW
ER

S S
T

RO
SS

I L
N

BAKER LN

HA
LL

 ST

E SEPSEY LN

N 
BO

W
ER

S S
T

S P
IN

E S
T

MA
IN

 ST

NANCY LN

BIG PINE CANAL

LOCUST AVE

US HWY 395

BIG PINE HIGH SCHOOL HOMECOMING  PARADE
ROAD CLOSURE

BIG PINE

SPECIAL EVENT DETOUR ROUTES
CLOSURE

/
0 730 1,460

Feet

£¤168

18       28" CONES
 9        BARRICADES                                

BARRICADE
28" CONE

SE14-21 Page 5

Attachment A



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-711  

 

Temporary Closure of Tinnemaha Road/Old Highway 395 
for Sierra Nevada Bighorn Sheep Demographic Studies 

Public Works 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Kevin Rainbolt, Engineering Assistant Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the temporary closure of Tinnemaha Road (Old 395) approximately 6 miles south of Aberdeen 
and Hogback Road with detours between U.S. 395 and Black Rock Springs Road from October 15-22, 
2024 for the purpose of the California Department of Fish and Wildlife's annual Sierra Bighorn Sheep 
monitoring program.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife are planning to capture, transport by helicopter, examine, and 
then return Sierra Nevada Bighorn Sheep. This event will be held to study the population, demographic 
rates, cause-specific mortality, movement patterns and habitat use of this endangered species. Once 
captured, the animals will be transported by helicopter to a staging area and the helicopter will land on 
the road to study the animal. When studies have been conducted, the helicopter will fly the animals back 
to the location it was captured.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this item. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to approve the road closures. This is not recommended, as the roadways 
that will be closed are not heavily used, so minimal impacts are anticipated. If this were to occur, the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife would need to identify an alternative location for the event. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
Thriving Communities I Climate Resilience and Natural Resource 
Protection 
High Quality Services I Public Safety and Emergency Response 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
APPROVALS: 
Kevin Rainbolt Created/Initiated - 9/9/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/10/2024 
Kevin Rainbolt Approved - 9/10/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 9/11/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 9/13/2024 
 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Encroachment Permit No. E24-56 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

ROAD DEPARTMENT 
168 N. EDWARDS ST. - P.O. DRAWER Q 

INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 
PHONE:  (760) 878-0201 

FAX:  (760) 878-2001 

 
Michael Errante, Public Works Director  

Fred Aubery, Assistant Director               
 

ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 
 

To: California Dept. of Fish & Wildlife  PERMIT NO:  E24-56 

 787 N Main St., STE 220   FEE:   N/A 

 Bishop, CA 93514     DATE:   09/09/2024 

        RECEIPT NO: N/A 

 

Attn: Cody Massing    
 

In compliance with your request on 09/09/2024, and subject to all terms, conditions and restrictions 

written below or printed as general or special provisions or part of this form, PERMISSION IS 

HEREBY GRANTED TO:  
 

The Permittee, California Department of Fish & Wildlife (CDFW) or their representative, to perform their 

annual Sierra Nevada Bighorn Sheep Capture Program on Tinemaha Road.   

 

Work performed within the Inyo County right-of-way shall be completed in accordance with Inyo County 

Standard Plans and Specifications.  Traffic Control shall be provided by the permittee or their representative in 

accordance with the Special and General Conditions attached and the 2014 California MUTCD. 

 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

 

For inspection and coordination purposes, notice shall be given to the Inyo County Road 

Department at least 72 hours prior to beginning work.  Please notify the Road Department at 760-

878-0201 between 8:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M., Monday through Friday.      
 

Traffic Control 

No work will occur in the Inyo County right-of-way until adequate traffic control is in place.  Traffic 

control and signage shall be in conformance with the 2014 California MUTCD standards. Work is 

permitted between the hours of 7:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M. Monday through Friday. 

 

There shall be barricades and/or delineators around the work area at all times during construction.  Two-

way traffic shall be maintained at all times with a minimum of one traffic lane open at all times.  Each 

lane shall have a minimum clear opening of 10 feet.  In the event that one of the two lanes must be closed 

flaggers shall be used to direct traffic safely through the work zone.  The road may not be closed at any 

time.   

 

General Work 

All work must be completed to the satisfaction of the Inyo County Road Department.  Unless directed 

otherwise, by representatives of Inyo County, all work is to be completed in accordance with any relevant 

Inyo County Standard Plans and Specifications.  

 

All work shall be completed to the existing finished surface of grades or roads during the daylight hours of 

the day work begins. Trenches or bore pits left open or piles of material left in the right-of-way overnight 

shall be protected with barricades with reflective tape or cones with reflective sleeves placed appropriately 

COUNTY 

OF 

INYO 



  
to warn traffic and pedestrians of the hazard or material piles. Trenches or pits in road shoulders left open 

overnight must be covered with steel plates (minimum thickness of 3/4”) and edges shaded with cold mix.  

 

Pavement Repair/Replacement 

Pavement removed or damaged as a result of work under this permit must be replaced to the satisfaction 

of Inyo County Road Department.  New pavement must consist of 1/2”-3/4” aggregate hot mix asphalt. 

Edges of remaining asphalt near removed or damaged asphalt must be saw-cut leaving a clean vertical 

edge.  This edge shall be protected throughout the work or will be re-cut before placing the final surfacing 

material.  All saw cuts in pavement shall be cleared by sweeping, flushing, or other means and a tack coat 

SS-1, SS-1H or CSS1h, diluted one part water to one part emulsified asphalt shall be applied before 

installation of new asphalt concrete surfacing. Asphalt concrete surfacing must be installed at a 

minimum thickness of 3 inches on top of slurry backfill. 

 

Damage to Roadways 

In accepting this permit, the Permittee agrees to repair at their own expense and to the satisfaction of the 

Inyo County Road Department, any damage to roadways, roadway appurtenances, or existing utilities 

resulting from work under this permit. Notwithstanding, work or repair may be done by Inyo County Road 

Department personnel at the option of the Inyo County Road Department, the cost to be borne by the 

Permittee. In the event of damage to Inyo County roadways, roadway appurtenances, or existing utilities, 

notification must be given to the Road Department within 72 hours after such damage has occurred. 

Failure to notify the Road Department will be considered cause for cancellation of all permit privileges 

pending a satisfactory arrangement with the Road Department for repair or replacement of the damaged 

roadway, roadway appurtenance, or existing utility. 

 

DIG   ALERT 

Section 4216/4217 of the Government Code requires a Dig Alert Identification Number be issued 

before a Permit to excavate will be valid.  For your Dig Alert ID Number Call Underground Service 

Alert TOLL FREE 1-800-227-2600 two (2) working days before you dig. 

 



  
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

The Permittee shall indemnify and save harmless the County of Inyo and all officers, employees and 

agents thereof, including but not limited to the Director of Public Works and the Deputy Director, from all 

claims, suits or actions of every name, kind and description brought for or on account of injuries to or 

death of any person, including but not limited to the Permittee, persons employed by the Permittee, 

persons acting on behalf of the Permittee and the public, or damage to property resulting from the 

performance of work or other activity under the permit, or arising out of the failure on the Permittee's part 

to perform his obligations, or resulting from defects or obstructions, or from any cause whatsoever arising 

during the progress of work, or other activity at any subsequent time being performed under the rights and 

obligations provided by and contemplated by the permit, except as otherwise provided by statute.  The 

duty of the Permittee to indemnify and save harmless includes the duties to defend as set forth in Section 

2778 of the Civil Code.  The Permittee waives any and all rights to any type of implied indemnity against 

the County, its officers, employees or agents.  It is the intent of the parties that the Permittee will 

indemnify and hold harmless the County, its officers, employees and agents from any and all claims, suits 

or actions as set forth above regardless of the existence or degree of fault or negligence, whether active or 

passive, primary or secondary, on the part of the County, the Permittee, persons employed by the 

Permittee, or persons acting in behalf of the Permittee. 

 
Acceptance of this permit constitutes an agreement by the Permittee to observe and comply with all general 

and special provisions in the permit and its accompaniments.  This permit is null and void and hereby 

declared non-existent if the Permittee fails to adhere to all provisions stipulated herein. 

 

The Permittee or their representatives, including contractors and subcontractors, performing any 

work onsite shall possess a copy of this permit onsite, signed by the Permittee, at all times while 

work is being conducted. All General and Special Provisions stipulated herein are expected to be 

understood by the Permittee and their representatives.  

 

This permit shall be void unless the work herein contemplated shall have been completed on or before 

10/22/2024   

 

 

Inyo County Road Dept. 
   

 

By ____________________________________ 

Kevin Rainbolt 

Engineers Assistant II 

 

cc:  Road District 2 



krainbolt_3
Typewritten Text
E24-56



krainbolt_4
Typewritten Text
9/09/2024

krainbolt_5
Typewritten Text
E24-56



For questions please call (760) 878-0208  T.T. 2015 

ROAD DEPARTMENT 
168 N. EDWARDS ST. - P.O. DRAWER Q 

INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 
PHONE:  (760) 878-0201 

FAX:  (760) 878-2001 
Clint Quilter, Public Works Director 
Robert Brown, Road Superintendent 

COUNTY OF INYO LOAN AGREEMENT 

 
LOANEE:  ORGANIZATION:  
Address:  Phone:  
 

The Loanee has received, as a loan from the Inyo County Road Department, the following items: 

 

QTY. Item Description 

  

  

  

  

  

 

QTY. Item Description 

  

  

  

  

  

 

The Loanee accepts full responsibility for the maintenance of this equipment during the loan 

period. The Loanee agrees to pay to the Inyo County Road Department the full replacement cost 

at new equipment prices for any equipment lost, stolen or damaged beyond repair during the 

time of the loan period or replace any lost, stolen or damaged beyond repair equipment with 

equal or better equipment that is acceptable to the Inyo County Road Department.  

 

The Loanee accepts full responsibility for any liability incurred from the use or misuse of this 

equipment and hold harmless the County of Inyo for any liability incurred from the use or 

misuse of this equipment. 

 

The Loanee agrees to return to the Inyo County Road Department any or all loaned equipment 

within the time specified below.  All loaned equipment will be returned in the same condition as 

received by Loanee from the Inyo County Road Department. 

 

Loanee Signature:  Date:  

Requested Issue Date:  Issue Date:  Condition:  

Received By:  Replacement Cost:  

Date to be Returned:  Per:  Balance Due:  

Loan Agreement must be submitted at least 72 hours in advance of Requested Issue Date. 

COUNTY 

OF 

INYO 

To be completed by Road Dept. To be completed by Road Dept. 

To be completed by Road Dept. 

To be completed by Road Dept. 

To be completed by Road Dept. 

To be completed by Road Dept. To be completed by Road Dept. 

CMASSING
Typewriter
9/09/24



Tinemaha Rd

Highway 395

Co
lis

eu
m 

Rd

Tinemaha Rd

Black Rock Springs Rd

£¤395

2 Road Closed Signs (On Barricades)
2 Barricades
2 Cones

Road Closed Ahead (On Barricade)

2 Road Closed Signs (On Barricades)
2 Barricades
2 Cones

Road Closed Ahead Sign on Barricade



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-648  

 

2024 Patrol and Controlled Substance Annual Operating 
and Financial Plan 

Sheriff 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Office of the Sheriff Mike Atkins 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) Approve Agreement 20-LE-11051360-040, Modification No. 8 between the County of Inyo and U.S. 
Forest Service for the provision of controlled substance operations for a funding amount of up to $10,000 
for the period of October 1, 2024, through December 31, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of 
the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget; 
B) Approve Agreement 20-LE-11051360-040, Modification No. 8 between the County of Inyo and U.S. 
Forest Service for the provision of forest service patrols in funding amount up to $18,918 for October 1, 
2024, through December 31, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 
Budget; and  
C) Authorize the Sheriff or designee to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Sheriff's Office provides patrol service on United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Forest 
Service land annually per the agreement. The Forest Service reimburses the Sheriff's Office for services 
upon completing patrols during the recreation season from May 28th through September 30th. Marijuana 
cultivation within the Forest Service boundaries in Inyo County continues to increase. These include the 
areas from the southern end of the County to the northern end of the County. The Sheriff’s Office has 
continued investigating and abating the cultivation with the U.S. Forest Service and Bureau of Land 
Management. 
 
Modification No. 8 makes the following changes to the existing agreement: 

• CHANGE IN FUNDING: Add Fiscal Year 2024 funding of $17,000 ($12,000 for Patrol and $5,000 
for Controlled Substances) 

• ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES: Stephanie J. Rennie (sjrennie@inyocounty.us) replaced Eric 
Pritchard as the program contact. Alexander Stewart (alexander,stewart@usda.gov) replaced 
Brian Skaggs as Acting Special Agent in Charge Victoria Mowatt (victoria.mowatt@usda.gov) 
replaced Kimberly Linse as program contact and Darius Parks (darius.parks@usda.2:ov) 
replaced Genevieve Villemaire as Grants and Agreements contact. 

• ADDITIONAL SPACE FOR DESCRIPTION OF MODIFICATION (add additional pages as 
needed): For all-hazard incident (i.e., Fire Suppression) work performed to be reimbursed by a 
"P-Code" incident job code, see attached 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D

mailto:sjrennie@inyocounty.us
mailto:stewart@usda.gov


 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

• Addendum A. 2. Wages at the current prevailing rate plus fringe benefits for the individual officer. 
Overtime at actual documented cost. 

• Exhibit A-Patrol Operations operating amount $18,918.00, Exhibit B-Drug Operations $10,000, 
Billing Statement, Law Enforcement Activity Report, and Addendum A Fire Emergencies 

  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding  
Source 

Federal-Forest Service Budget Unit 022700 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4693/4555 
Recurrence Ongoing Revenue Sole Source? No 
If Sole Source, provide justification below 
N/A 
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Up to $18,918 for Patrol Services and up to $10,000 for controlled substance monitoring for the period 
between October 1, 2024 and December 2025 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
Annual modifications revise the agreement. 
Additional Information 
Monies from this plan/Agreement will assist the Sheriff’s Department in investigating and eliminating 
thousands of marijuana plants within Inyo County. The marijuana-growing season starts in the spring, 
and the harvesting season begins from August to September. Patrol Services are provided at the peak 
of the summer tourism season to bolster our presence on Forest Service land and reduce crime. 
Addendum A adds reimbursement for fire emergency services when requested by the Agency 
Administrator or Incident Commander. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board may choose to not approve these agreements and decline acceptance of the funding. This is 
not recommended as the reimbursement agreement offsets overtime and equipment costs for the 
Sheriff's general budget. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
High Quality Services I Public Safety and Emergency Response 
 
APPROVALS: 
Riannah Reade Created/Initiated - 9/3/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/3/2024 
Riannah Reade Approved - 9/4/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 9/5/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/10/2024 
Nate Greenberg Approved - 9/13/2024 
Stephanie Rennie Final Approval - 9/16/2024 
 
 
  
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Forest Service Modification No. 008  
2. Forest Service Modification No. 007 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









































MODIFICATION OF GRANT OR AGREEMENT
I

aULE-1 1051360440
SERVICE

AGREEMEhiT NUMBER, tF ANY:

,,
GRANToT 3.

007

GRA\T/AGREEMENT (unitname, strcu, city, surs, and zip + 4);

USDA Forest Selvice, Pacific Southwest Region, Grants
and Agreements, 1323 Club Drive, Vallejo, CAg4SgZ-
ll 10

PROJECT/ACTIVITY(unit namc, strcct, city, srarc, and zip +4):

USDA Forest Service, Inyo National Fores! Law
Enforcement & lnvestigations, 351 Pacu

SERVICE

Lane, Ste.200,
cA 93s14-0000

County of Inyo, 550 Clay Street, Independence, CA
93 526-0613, Inyo County

(strcct, city, strtc,
4, county):
6. RECIPIENT + 'S HHS

paymcnt usc only)i
7,

CHECKAIL
TITATAPPLY:

This modificati rson issued theto modification thelnpursuant provNron grant/agreement
tnreferenced no.item above.

IN PERIOD:

CHANGEINFI.JNDTNG: lncrease of funding by $t7,000 (512,000 for pabol 55,000 hr Conholled Substance)

D( Counry,
TIADMINISTRA VE CHANCES NameContact andProgramCooperator Address to Shsrrifchange Rennie,

P Drawer.o.Inyo S, $s26'A6CA emailIndependence, 3, us sameand addresssjrennie@inyocounty. change
for rematDs
OTHER (Speci$ typc of modification);

as allErcept provided berein, andterms ofcondldous the referenced ln remalnGrant/Agreement t, inand fullabovg uocbrnged

9. ADDITIONAL SPACE FOR DESCRIPTION OF MODIFICATION (add additional pages as needed):

IO. ATTACITED DOCUMENTATION all that
Revised ofWork
Revised Financial Plon

Other: AttachmentA Statement & Anachment B Law Enforcement

YB SIGNAAtnHoRtzEp R.EPRESENTATIVE: TUR.E THEBELOW PARstcNtNc TTES CERTIFY THAT THEY THEARE OFFICIAL REPRESENTA OFTIVES
TIIEIR RESFECTIVE TOAUTHORIZED INACT THEIR RESPECTIVE AREAS FOR RELAMATTERS TOTED THE AAOVE-REFEUNCED

I I.A. SIGNATURE

LESLEY
YEN O:lo: 202t.02-0al

FORESTII.B,DATE
SIGNED SIONED

DATE

I I.E.NAME(typcorprint): glgpHANIE RENNIE
I l.F (typc orpdnt):

LESLEY }'EN

I l.G.TITLE (nrpc 1I.H. TITLE or print)t
t t.r.

DO N H OA N G 3.e,fl#i'J,:i.'1,f,!i?113

FOREST

ofSignatory

I I.'. DATE
SICNED

Official)

SIGNED

I t.M, NAME(llcorprht): I l.N. NA,14E(type orprinr): DON HOANG

ll I l.P.

USDA Forest Senricc oMB 059&02t7
FSlsm-t9

Page 1 of6 21712023



Eurden Shtqnent

contaci USDAs TARGET Center at 202-72G2600 (voice and IDD).

us€rscansnlaclUSDAhroughlocalrelayor0reFederatrlayat(800)877{339(TDD)or(S66)377{642(relayvoice), USOA6anequalopporlunityprwidera:nddmpfoyei. '

USDA Forest Service oMB 0596-02r7
FS-l5qU9

12 G&A w
Olgilally slgnad by Oadus

Darius Parks 3l[iror..or.o,
13:41:37.0ddY

DARIUS PARKS
USDA Forcst Sewice, Gmns & AgreemenB Specialist

SIGNED

Page 2 of 6 2n/2023



Law Enforcement Billing Summary
Enforcement

#:20-LE-r 1051360-040

USDA Forest Service, NF: INYO County: INYO

Law Enforcement Billing Summary Dates: Year:2023

A. Total Labor Hours:

B. Rate per Hour: $

C. Total Salary Reimbursement: (subtotal I ) $

D. Other Allowable Reimbursements:
(mileage, dispatch, court, clerical, equipment, etc.)

t

3.

4.

$

$

$

$

E. Totalof Dl - D4 (subtotal2) $

F. Total Expenditures: $

G. Total Invoice Reimbursement per Op Plan: $

Check appropriate block: Patrol Controlled Substance

Certifi cation Statement

County Sheriff USFS - Special Agent

I certify this billing/invoice is accurate and complete. I certifr services have been received as stated

Sheriff Date US Forest Service Date

Page 3 of 6 2nn023



Law Enforcement Billing Summary
Patrol Enforcement

#:20-LE-l 1051360-040

USDA Forest Service, NF: INYO INYO

Law Enforcement Bil ling Summary Dates: Year:2023

Check appropriate block: Coop Patrol Controlled Substancex

A. Total Labor Hours:

B. Rate Hour: $

C. Total Salary Reimbursement: (subtotal l) $

D. Other Allowable Reimbursements:
(mileage, dispatch, court, clerical, equipment, etc.)

2.

J.

4.

$

$

$

E. Total of Dl - D4 (subtotal 2) s

F. Total Expenditures: s

G. Total Invoice Reimbursement per Op Plan: $

Certifi cation Statement

County Sheriff USFS - Patrol Captain

I certify this billing/invoice is accurate and complete. I certify services have been received as stated.

Sheriff Date US Forest Service Date

Page 4 of 6 2nt2023



ffi
USDA

Forest Service
LAW ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY

REPORT

Agreement Number
20-LE-t 105 1360-040

tniriat n Foilow Uo fl
. Cooperator (Deparfnent Name); 2. National Forest:

Invo National Forest
5. Unit ldentification (3-t t) 5. Date il2-5)
Region Forest State County Month Year

3. Record (l) 4. Action Code (2)
(FS Use Only) U-Update

05 o4 CA Invo )o)7
7. Patrol Units (16-18) 8. Search and Rescue Missions

Hours ( l9-22) No. (23-24)
9. Property Stolen (25-30)

Dollan

10. Property Recovered (31-36)
Dollars

I l. Controlled Substances Seized (37-45)
Dollars

12. Record (l) 13. Number of Crimes Occurring on National Forest System Lands

Criminal Homicide
UNIFORM

0l
PAR

I 3c.
Coop Agreement

Reimbuncd Acriviry
( r 8-20)

Non-Coop
Agreement
Activities

I 3a.

Item #
( r6-r 7)

t3b.
Type ofCrime

02 Forcible Rape
03 Robbery

04 Aggravated Assault
05 or
05 Larceny - Theft (Except Motor Vehicle)
07 Motor Vehicle - Theft
08

REPOR
09

Arson

Other Assaults

t0 Stolen Property by Buying, Receiving,
Possessinp

il Vandalism

l2 Weapons - Carry, Possessing

t3 Narcotic Drug Law
t4 Driving Under the Influence
l5 Liquor Laws

l6 Drunkenness

t7 Disorderly Conduct
l8 All Other Offenses

PART III - COOPERATOR ASSISTS
l9 Assists to Forest Service Officers
20 Assists to Public

Remarks:

For Drug Enforcement

the USDA, Forest Service, Larv Enforcement and Investigations.
ouside your agency, nor duplicatcd, without approvalThis documcnt is for USE ONL contenb 8fe not to b€

Prevlous edlllons are obsolete

Page 5 of6

FS-530$5(05/03)

2nD023



W
USDA

Forest Service
LAW ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY

REPORT

Agreement Number
20-LE-l 105 I 360-040

nitlal
Cooperator (DeparUnent Name): 2. National Forest:

Invo National Forest
5. Unit llentification (3-t l) i. Date ( l2-5)
Region Forest State County Month Year

3. Record (l) 4. Action Code (2)
(FS Use Only) U-Update

05 o4 CA Invo
7. Patrol Units (16-lE) 8. Search and Rescue Missions

Hours (19-22) No. (23-24)
Property Stolen (25-30)9.

Dollars

10. Property Recovered (31-36)
Dollars

I l. Controlled Substances Ssized (37-45)
Dollars

12. Record (l) 13. Number of Crimes Occurring on National Forest System Lands

Criminal Homicide
IFORM

0t
PORTINGPART I. FBI

l3a.
Item #

(r6-r7)

l3d.
Non.Coop
Agreement
Activities

l3c.
Coop Agrecmcnt

Reimbursed Activity
( r 8-20)

I 3b.
Type of Crime

02 Forcible Rape

03 Robbery

04 Aggravated Assault
05 Burglary - or Entering
06 _.!,arceny - Theft (Except Motor Vehicle)
07 Motor Vehicle - Theft
08 Arson

PART II - CRIME
09 Other Assaults (simple)
l0 Stolen Property by Buying, Receiving,

Possessine
ll Vandalism

t2 Weapons - Carry, Possessing

t3 Narcotic Law
t4 Driving Under the Influence
l5 Liquor Laws
l6 Drunkenness

17 Conduct
t8 All Other Offenses

PART III. COOPERATOR ASSISTS
t9 Assists to Forest Service Ofricers
20 Assists to Public

Remarks:

For Patrol Enforcement

the USDA, Forest Service, Law Enforcement and Investigations.
contents are not to your agenc% nor approval

Prevlous edilions are obsolete FS-530G5(05/03)

2nn023Page 6 of 6



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-715  

 

Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Final Board 
Approved Budget 
County Administrator 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Denelle Carrington, Assistant CAO Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) Conduct a review and discussion of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Final Approved Budget, including but 
not limited to: 

1. Those changes to the County Administrative Officer (CAO) Recommended Budget that were 
directed by the Board to be included in the Final Budget; and 
2. Any other changes which may be made as a result of today's discussion; 

 
B) Adopt the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 as recommended by the County Administrator and as amended, 
and as directed on September 10, 2024; and 
 
C) Approve Resolution No. 2024-29, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, 
State of California, Adopting a Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025," and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
On September 10, 2024, your Board closed Budget Hearings for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 and directed the 
County Administrator to make all changes necessary to compile the Final Board Approved Budget for 
Fiscal Year 2024-2025. Consequently, the County Budget document contains a countywide estimated 
revenue total of $152,997,605 and $170,508,201 in projected expenditures. The amount of General 
Fund portion of the County Budgets is $89,168,170 in revenues and $94,341,803 in expenditures. 
 
On September 10th, the Auditor-Controller certified the Final Fund Balance for the year ending June 30, 
2024 as $5,173,633, which is $973,633 more than was used to balance the Recommended Budget. The 
changes directed by your Board fully appropriate this unbudgeted portion of Fund Balance. 
 
As directed during Budget Hearings, this includes: 

• Adding $500,000 to the General Fund Contingencies budget; 
• Adding $400,000 to the CAO-ACO budget; and 
• Adding $73,633 to the Parks Rehab and Development Trust 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Recommended Board Approved Budget for the General Fund 
The expenditure total in this recommended Final Board Approved Budget for the General Fund is 
$94,341,803, which is $973,633 higher than the CAO Recommended Budget. A summary of the General 
Fund is included as Attachment A. The increases in expenditures are due to the net effect of the 
following changes: 
 
Actions Directed by your Board or Recommended by Staff during Budget Hearings - General Fund 

1. Increase expenses in the General Fund Contingencies Budget by $500,000; and 
2. Increase expenses in the General Revenues & Expenditures Budget by $473,633 to fund an 

operating transfer of $400,000 into the CAO-ACO and $73,633 into the Parks Rehab & 
Development Trust. 

 
Actions Recommended by Staff After Budget Hearings - General Fund 
 
 
Staff has no subsequent recommendations to change revenues and expenditures in the General Fund 
Budgets from those comprising the CAO Recommended Budget or otherwise directed by, or discussed 
with your Board during the Budget Hearings. 
 
Fiscal Year Recommended Board Approved Budget for Non-General Funds 
The expenditure total in this Recommended Final Board Approved Budget for Non-General Funds is 
$76,166,398 which is $100,000 higher than the CAO Recommended Budget. Revenues are 
$63,829,435, which is $523,633 higher than the CAO Recommended Budget. A summary of the Non-
General Fund is included in Attachment B. 
 
Actions Directed by Your Board or Recommended by Staff During Budget Hearings - Non-General Fund 
 
 

1. Increase Operating Transfers In into the CAO-ACO Budget by $400,000; and 
2. Increase Operating Transfers In into the Parks Rehab & Development Trust by $73,633 

 
 
Actions Recommended by Staff After Budget Hearings - Non General Fund 
 
Staff has the following recommendations to change revenues and expenditures in the Non-General Fund 
Budget from those comprising the CAO Recommended Budget or otherwise directed by, or discussed 
with your Board during the Budget Hearings: 

1. Increase Operating Transfers Out in the CAO-ACO Budget by $50,000; and 
2. Increase Operating Transfers In into the Southern Inyo Fire Grant Budget by $50,000 and 

increase Professional Services by $50,000. 

  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding  
Source 

All County General and Non-General Fund Budget Unit All Budgets 

Budgeted? Yes / No Object Code All object codes 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure Sole Source? N/A 
If Sole Source, provide justification below 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
This item sets the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 countywide spending plan at a total amount of $170,408,201. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
N/A 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board has the alternative to not approve the Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025, in whole or in part 
as recommended by the County Administrative Officer, and/or modify the Budget as presented and 
provide additional direction to staff.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
The Fiscal Year 2024-2025 CAO Recommended Budget is currently based on direction provided by your 
Board and recommendations made by staff during the Budget Hearings, and developed with significant 
support from the Auditor-Controller, Personnel, and all County Departments.  
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
Thriving Communities I Community Revitalization Through Effective 
Planning 
Thriving Communities I Community Supporting Infrastructure 
Improvements 
Thriving Communities I Highest and Best use of Property 
Thriving Communities I Improve Housing Opportunities 
Thriving Communities I Enhanced Health, Social, & Senior Services 
Thriving Communities I Quality Parks and Recreation Amenities 
Thriving Communities I Enhanced Transportation Services 
Thriving Communities I Climate Resilience and Natural Resource 
Protection 
Economic Enhancement I Local Businesses, Organizations, and 
Workforce 
Economic Enhancement I Sustainable Recreation Initiatives 
Economic Enhancement I Collaborative Regional Economic 
Development 
High Quality Services I Quality County Employees 
High Quality Services I High-Quality County Government Services 
High Quality Services I Improved Access to Government 
High Quality Services I Improved County Facilities 
High Quality Services I Public Safety and Emergency Response 
 
APPROVALS: 
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 9/17/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/17/2024 
Denelle Carrington Approved - 9/17/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 9/17/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/17/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 9/17/2024 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Attachment A - Board Approved General Fund Budget 24-25 
2. Attachment B - Board Approved Non-General Fund Budget 24-25 
3. Budget Adoption/Resolution No. 2024-29 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BUD002F - BUDGET REQUESTS

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

06/30/202406/30/2023 06/30/2024 06/30/2024 06/30/2025 06/30/2025

-07/01/2022 06/30/2025

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS:

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2025

FUND: 0001 GENERAL FUND

REVENUES:

$16,500,000$16,500,000$16,500,000$16,206,723$15,605,000$15,605,000$15,226,755CURRENT SECURED TAXES4001

$1,250,000$1,250,000$1,250,000$1,320,929$1,164,000$1,164,000$1,376,595CURRENT UNSECURED TAXES4004

$30,000$30,000$30,000$30,204$25,000$25,000$17,602CURRENT UNSECURED AIRCRAFT TAX4005

$200,000$200,000$200,000$327,933$200,000$200,000$1,045,482SB813 DISTRIBUTIONS4008

$153,000$153,000$153,000$103,943$145,000$145,000$143,011PRIOR YEAR SECURED TAXES4021

$100,000$100,000$100,000$22,944$75,000$75,000($961,836)PRIOR YEAR UNSECURED TAXES4023

$250,000$250,000$250,000$67,780$250,000$250,000$63,129PENALTIES ON DELINQUENT TAXES4041

$11,000$11,000$11,000$2,068$11,000$11,000$1,010COSTS OF DELINQUENT COLLECTION4042

TAXES - PROPERTY $18,494,000$18,494,000 $18,494,000$18,082,527$17,475,000$17,475,000$16,911,750

$115,000$115,000$115,000$138,857$115,000$115,000$309,536REAL PROPERTY TRANSFER TAX4082

$4,100,000$4,100,000$4,100,000$4,626,801$4,000,000$4,000,000$4,738,259TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX4083

TAXES - OTHER $4,215,000$4,215,000 $4,215,000$4,765,659$4,115,000$4,115,000$5,047,795

$1,875,000$1,875,000$1,875,000$2,271,251$1,750,000$1,750,000$2,161,795SALES TAX4062

TAXES - SALES $1,875,000$1,875,000 $1,875,000$2,271,251$1,750,000$1,750,000$2,161,795

$22,000$22,000$22,000$23,005$22,000$22,000$22,286ANIMAL LICENSES4101

$390,000$390,000$375,000$459,421$340,000$340,000$396,630CONSTRUCTION PERMITS4131

$8,000$8,000$8,000$4,199$3,500$3,500$983FEES FOR CONTINUING EDUCATION4135

$25,000$25,000$20,000$29,095$29,095$20,000$25,200RECLAMATION PLAN FEES4156

$228,600$228,600$228,600$260,895$252,292$252,292$252,345FRANCHISE FEES4161

$9,500$9,500$9,500$4,691$12,000$12,000$14,135WELL PERMITS4170

$605$605$605$665$605$605$708D H R PERMITS4171

$5,500$5,500$5,500$7,226$5,500$5,500$3,830SEWER APPLICATIONS4172

$3,048$3,048$3,048$2,794$2,540$2,540$2,286WELL & WATER SYSTEM PERMITS4174

$1,100$1,100$1,100$1,170$1,065$1,000$1,112PERMITS TO OPERATE4175

$8,000$8,000$8,000$8,617$7,500$7,500$7,520LICENSES4176

$4,500$4,500$4,500$4,418$4,500$4,500$39,754GUN PERMITS4177

$6,000$6,000$6,000$5,555$6,000$8,000$5,691FINGERPRINT PERMITS4178

$10$10$10$22$30$10$22EXPLOSIVE PERMITS4179

$73,000$73,000$73,000$73,583$72,000$72,000$72,680DEVICE REGISTRATION FEE4180

$10,000$10,000$10,000$9,523$11,000$11,000$11,166SWIMMING POOL PERMITS4182

$56,000$56,000$56,000$56,426$56,000$56,000$59,800FOOD ESTABLISHMENT PERMITS4183

ATTACHMENT A



BUD002F - BUDGET REQUESTS

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

06/30/202406/30/2023 06/30/2024 06/30/2024 06/30/2025 06/30/2025

-07/01/2022 06/30/2025

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS:

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2025

$3,060$3,060$3,060$3,060$3,060$1,300$2,380SEWAGE PUMP VEHICLE PERMIT4184

$200$200$200$392$393$214$214DEVICE REPAIRMAN LICENSE4186

LICENSES & PERMITS $854,123$834,123 $854,123$954,760$829,080$819,961$918,746

$91,100$91,100$91,100$3,774$23,500$23,500$2,330CRIMINAL FINES4211

$25,000$25,000$25,000$4,824$5,500$25,000$25,723ANIMAL FINES4212

$104,739$104,739$104,739$34,238$117,250$117,250$10,984SUPERIOR COURT FINES4214

$300,000$300,000$300,000$330,520$200,000$200,000$200,224JUSTICE COURT FINES4215

$8,000$8,000$8,000$8,545$7,000$7,000$7,000LAW LIBRARY FINES4220

$590,000$590,000$590,000$596,379$685,000$685,000$687,086COURT REALIGNMENT FINES4224

FINES & FORFEITURES $1,118,839$1,118,839 $1,118,839$978,282$1,038,250$1,057,750$933,350

$28,000$28,000$28,000$27,808$26,000$26,000$26,562MILLPOND CONCESSIONS4352

RENTS & LEASES $28,000$28,000 $28,000$27,808$26,000$26,000$26,562

$1,000,000$1,000,000$1,000,000$1,492,149$1,000,000$650,000$706,913INTEREST FROM TREASURY4301

$500$500$500$0$500$500$0INTEREST ON TAX FUNDS4303

$60,000$60,000$60,000$55,996$50,225$50,000$41,779RENTS4311

$2,268$2,268$2,268$1,683$2,100$2,100$2,146LEASES4312

$1,000$1,000$1,000$1,040$1,000$150$1,095INDEPENDENCE LEGION HALL RENT4318

REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY $1,063,768$1,063,768 $1,063,768$1,550,869$1,053,825$702,750$751,934

$2,309,837$2,309,837$2,285,357$2,459,506$2,375,534$2,373,959$2,322,103STATE MOTOR VEHICLE IN LIEU TX4411

$2,950,000$2,950,000$2,950,000$2,991,683$2,700,000$2,700,000$2,624,317PROPERTY TAX IN LIEU OF VLF4413

$1,594,499$1,594,499$1,594,499$1,070,674$1,734,071$1,603,973$1,449,498SOCIAL SERVICE REALIGNMENT4420

$4,931,908$4,931,908$4,931,908$4,044,559$3,499,477$3,499,477$3,409,000STATE PUBLIC ASSIST ADMIN4421

$25,000$25,000$25,000$36,567$35,000$35,000($15,324)AID FAMILY DEPENDENT CHILDREN4425

$0$0$0$0$0$0$17,503SSI / SSP4426

$378,047$378,047$378,047$306,038$150,000$150,000$159,128FOSTER CARE4427

$98,159$98,159$22,159$64,512$64,512$64,512$63,512HEALTH REALIGNMENT4430

$1,120,161$1,120,161$1,120,161$1,116,138$1,120,161$1,120,161$1,120,161MENTAL HEALTH REALIGNMENT4450

$3,843,375$3,843,375$3,843,375$2,093,345$3,974,436$4,010,780$1,596,702REALIGNMENT - 20114460

$120,000$120,000$120,000$126,041$103,708$95,000$89,285UNREFUNDED GAS TAX4463

$64,000$64,000$64,000$64,387$66,000$66,000$66,695HOMEOWNERS PROPERTY TAX RELIEF4472

$31,335$31,335$31,335$34,308$15,600$15,600$33,694STATE AID FOR VETERANS AFFAIRS4473

$250$250$250$572$630$630$613OFF HIGHWAY VEHICLE4475

$37,599$37,599$37,599$29,880$36,059$39,152$31,044STANDARDS & TRAIN FOR CORRECT4483



BUD002F - BUDGET REQUESTS

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

06/30/202406/30/2023 06/30/2024 06/30/2024 06/30/2025 06/30/2025

-07/01/2022 06/30/2025

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS:

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2025

$2,340,000$2,340,000$2,340,000$2,412,774$2,340,000$2,340,000$2,564,597STATE - PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES4485

$640,172$640,172$576,986$500,000$500,000$500,000$418,520AB443 - SHERIFF4486

$127,508$127,508$127,508$110,706$267,104$267,104$107,276CITIZEN OPTION - PUBLIC SAFETY4488

$53,067$53,067$53,067$53,067$53,067$53,067$52,478JUVENILE JUSTICE4489

$600$600$600$28,947$0$500$40,452STATE MANDATE PROGRAMS4497

$1,583,353$1,583,353$1,583,353$2,576,080$3,497,525$3,540,224$1,448,931STATE GRANTS4498

$2,605,892$2,605,892$2,605,892$1,087,151$2,987,309$3,028,264$1,831,730STATE OTHER4499

$2,225,998$2,225,998$2,225,998$2,470,702$2,225,998$2,225,998$1,966,911FEDERAL PUBLIC ASSISTANCE ADMN4501

$205,000$205,000$205,000$163,460$195,000$195,000$195,588FEDERAL AID TO FAMILY W/ CHILD4511

$378,047$378,047$378,047$398,003$433,000$433,000$407,607FEDERAL FOSTER CARE4512

$1,288,261$1,288,261$1,278,761$624,100$2,122,436$2,102,263$502,870FEDERAL OTHER4552

$301,964$301,964$301,964$112,256$310,764$331,764$24,468FEDERAL GRANTS4555

$395,321$395,321$395,321$298,092$375,265$350,265$387,441AID FROM MONO COUNTY4561

$6,256,311$6,256,311$6,256,311$5,826,618$5,826,618$5,826,618$5,373,978CONTRIBUTION FROM DWP4563

$366,208$366,208$366,208$359,333$401,827$295,500$220,208OTHER AGENCIES4599

AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES $36,271,872$36,098,706 $36,271,872$31,459,510$37,411,101$37,263,811$28,510,992

$3,500$3,500$3,500$5,930$6,000$6,000$5,190TAX REDEMPTION FEES4601

$16,444$16,444$16,444$16,454$16,019$16,019$16,265ASSESSMENT & COLLECTION FEES4602

$45,000$45,000$45,000$68,877$40,000$40,000$185,428SB813 COLLECTION FEES4603

$146,000$146,000$146,000$125,932$146,000$146,000$146,008PROPERTY TAX ADMIN FEES4604

$55,000$55,000$50,000$163,116$149,702$149,702$750DELINQUENT TAX SALE FEE4605

$77,790$77,790$77,790$28,350$28,356$28,356$63,688SPEC DIST & GRANT ACCOUNTING4612

$35,242$35,242$35,242$31,925$35,242$35,242$35,242EMS ACCOUNTING4618

$8,580$8,580$8,580$0$0$0$11,975DISTRICT ELECTIONS4621

$5,000$5,000$5,000$7,000$7,000$7,200$8,385CANDIDATE STATEMENTS4622

$0$0$0$4,317$4,317$4,000$0ELECTION FILING FEES4623

$3,500$3,500$3,500$4,740$4,053$2,500$2,378MISCELLANEOUS ELECTION SERVICE4624

$1,000$1,000$1,000$14,688$1,000$1,000$830COUNTY COUNSEL FEES4631

$0$0$0$202$0$0$0PUBLIC DEFENDER FEES4632

$75,000$75,000$75,000$131,242$100,000$100,000$60,347PLANNING & ENGINEERING FEES4654

$600$600$600$250$600$600$62MAP CHECKING4655

$0$0$0$0$0$500$0PESTICIDE USE ENFORCEMENT4661

$90,000$90,000$90,000$90,000$90,000$90,000$90,000PEST MILL REFUND4663

$500$500$500$0$0$0$0NURSERY4664

$3,705$3,705$3,705$825$2,080$2,980$3,105PETROLEUM PRODUCT INSPECTION4665



BUD002F - BUDGET REQUESTS

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

06/30/202406/30/2023 06/30/2024 06/30/2024 06/30/2025 06/30/2025

-07/01/2022 06/30/2025

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS:

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2025

$750$750$750$1,000$1,000$900$875NON COMMERCIAL CERTIFICATIONS4667

$0$0$0$0$0$0$750CIVIL FINES4671

$3,000$3,000$3,000$3,432$3,200$2,000$2,624CLERK FEES4672

$0$0$0$0$0$0$50COST OF PROBATION4673

$100$100$100$641$30$0$348RESTITUTION4676

$0$0$0$0$0$0$20ELECTRONIC MONITORING4677

$0$0$0$0$0$0$10,500LPS PRIVATE PAY4681

$0$0$0$17,441$3,000$12,000$0ESTATE FEES4682

$30,000$30,000$30,000$38,415$12,500$3,500$2,691PUBLIC GUARDIAN FEES4683

$3,500$3,500$3,500$3,522$3,000$3,500$3,522JAIL BOOKING FEES4691

$12,000$12,000$12,000$10,989$10,989$12,000$10,989FOREST SERVICE4693

$85,000$85,000$85,000$32,623$85,000$85,000$66,767INVESTIGATIONS4698

$4,500$4,500$4,500$4,237$4,500$5,000$5,119CIVIL PROCESS SERVICE4699

$16,000$16,000$16,000$18,178$16,000$16,000$17,955VITAL STATISTICS4701

$55,000$55,000$55,000$51,205$51,100$61,100$61,619RECORDING FEES4702

$20,000$20,000$20,000$17,027$20,000$20,000$10,266FEDERAL MEDICARE MEDICAID4722

$143,000$143,000$135,000$165,303$135,000$135,000$156,170WATER SAMPLES4723

$18,378$18,378$18,378$18,378$18,378$18,378$18,378EH WASTE INSPECTION & PERMITS4729

$0$0$0$0$0$1,575$0E.M.S. RADIO MAINTENANCE4732

$1,200$1,200$1,200$193$1,200$1,200$345PATIENT PAYMENTS4742

$2,500$2,500$2,500$11,018$2,500$2,500$1,270INSURANCE PAYMENTS4747

$931,313$931,313$931,313$197,470$1,350,000$1,350,000$658,253MENTAL HEALTH MEDICAL4748

$36,000$36,000$36,000$36,874$35,726$35,000$40,377HAZARDOUS WASTE FEES4754

$20,000$20,000$20,000$34,828$20,000$20,000$34,668P.O.S.T.4765

$300$300$300$296$300$300$312LIBRARY SERVICES4771

$68,000$68,000$65,000$71,553$68,000$68,000$42,841PLEASANT VALLEY - CAMP4781

$87,000$87,000$87,000$87,405$72,000$72,000$72,859SCHOBER LANE - CAMP4783

$5,200$5,200$5,200$5,147$5,000$5,000$4,915BIG PINE TRIANGLE - CAMP4784

$33,000$33,000$32,000$34,464$38,000$38,000$36,549BAKER CREEK - CAMP4785

$27,000$27,000$27,000$23,605$27,000$27,000$27,394TINNEMAHA - CAMP4786

$34,000$34,000$34,000$34,851$39,000$39,000$39,923TABOOSE - CAMP4787

$13,000$13,000$12,000$13,323$14,000$14,000$14,468INDEPENDENCE CREEK - CAMP4788

$26,000$26,000$26,000$31,640$24,600$24,600$24,518PORTUGUESE JOE - CAMP4789

$90,000$90,000$90,000$97,426$115,000$115,000$113,335DIAZ LAKE - CAMP4790

$5,000$5,000$5,000$0$5,000$5,000$0TECOPA HOT SPRINGS - CAMP4791



BUD002F - BUDGET REQUESTS

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

06/30/202406/30/2023 06/30/2024 06/30/2024 06/30/2025 06/30/2025

-07/01/2022 06/30/2025

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS:

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2025

$3,300$3,300$2,500$3,375$3,000$3,000$2,300DAY USE FEES4792

$4,000$4,000$4,000$3,645$4,000$1,800$1,750WRAP FEES4809

$40$40$40$610$40$40$314NSF CHARGES4812

$200$200$200$25$50$200$35SHIPPING & HANDLING4813

$28,395$28,395$28,395$27,518$24,495$24,495$0LAFCO FEES4817

$523,292$523,292$616,792$234,237$561,945$630,892$216,766SERVICES & FEES4819

$3,575,632$3,575,632$3,575,632$3,105,339$3,103,755$3,103,755$1,965,461COUNTY COST PLAN4820

$4,504,622$4,504,622$3,417,749$1,618,981$3,615,853$3,784,000$1,458,128INTRA COUNTY CHARGES4821

$2,334,589$2,334,589$2,334,589$1,958,955$2,278,974$2,278,974$1,757,771INTRA COUNTY INSURANCE ADMIN4822

$871,841$871,841$871,841$503,417$791,095$896,274$691,122INTER GOVERNMENT CHARGES4824

$744,168$744,168$744,168$603,566$594,045$595,045$506,569OTHER CURRENT CHARGES4825

$88,800$88,800$88,800$105,790$98,800$98,800$90,297TRIAL COURT CHARGES4827

$280,800$280,800$280,800$169,008$186,000$186,000$164,981COPIER LEASE REVENUE4829

$0$0$0$0$0$0$3,029MOBILE DEVICE MANAGEMENT-REV4830

CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES $15,297,281$14,285,108 $15,297,281$10,090,817$14,073,444$14,425,927$8,968,864

$0$0$0$0$0$0$81,643 PROCEEDS FROM LEASE CONTRA4991

$9,833,887$9,833,887$6,512,598$7,528,903$6,460,625$5,992,171$5,345,230OPERATING TRANSFERS IN4998

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES $9,833,887$6,512,598 $9,833,887$7,528,903$6,460,625$5,992,171$5,426,873

$0$0$0$2,837$588$0$4,001PRIOR YEARS REVENUE4901

$0$0$0$3,002$0$0$0SALES OF FIXED ASSETS4911

$3,550$3,550$3,550$2,933$3,570$3,570$2,698SALES OF COPIES4922

$0$0$0$0$180$180$129SALES OF MAILING LISTS4924

$15,000$15,000$15,000$7,417$15,000$15,000$9,647SALES OF BOOKS & PAMPHLETS4925

$7,700$7,700$7,700$0$17,500$17,500$123MISCELLANEOUS SALES4936

$26,000$26,000$26,000$15,697$16,900$31,000$6,000DONATIONS4951

$0$0$0$4,807$1,920$0$6,042FAMILY SUPPORT REPAYMENT4955

$20,000$20,000$20,000$1,250$1,250$1,250$47,976UNCLAIMED FUNDS4958

$44,100$44,100$44,100$20,094$11,430$44,430$14,228MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE4959

$0$0$0$66,197$1,660$0$37,575REIMBURSED EXPENSES4961

$50$50$50$24$51$50$551CASH OVER OR SHORT4997

$0$0$0$135,889$2,251$0$1,837PRIOR YEARS REIMBURSEMENTS4999

OTHER REVENUE $116,400$116,400 $116,400$260,151$72,300$112,980$130,812

REVENUES:TOTAL $89,168,170$69,789,477 $83,741,350 $84,304,625 $77,970,541 $84,641,542 $89,168,170



BUD002F - BUDGET REQUESTS

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

06/30/202406/30/2023 06/30/2024 06/30/2024 06/30/2025 06/30/2025

-07/01/2022 06/30/2025

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS:

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2025

EXPENSES:

$30,884,544$30,884,544$31,076,621$25,500,401$27,942,330$29,017,289$23,995,282SALARIED EMPLOYEES5001

$213,723$213,723$213,723$204,999$214,263$214,263$206,024CONTRACT EMPLOYEES5002

$1,384,179$1,384,179$1,669,087$1,486,013$1,579,330$960,549$1,228,140OVERTIME5003

$452,598$452,598$456,598$351,651$361,080$387,880$350,009STANDBY TIME5004

$63,049$63,049$75,493$54,412$76,075$66,374$38,483HOLIDAY OVERTIME5005

$0$0$0($2,576)$8,000$0$2,9594850 TIME - WORKERS COMP5006

$644,831$644,831$646,831$510,754$637,258$563,105$424,785PART TIME EMPLOYEES5012

$2,267,251$2,267,251$2,507,426$1,815,013$2,042,011$2,210,269$1,698,676RETIREMENT & SOCIAL SECURITY5021

$4,497,648$4,497,648$4,517,193$3,831,748$4,245,944$4,313,349$3,438,120PERS RETIREMENT5022

$0$0$0$307,462$409,950$409,950$398,072RETIREMENT SAFETY-SIDE FUND5023

$5,881,652$5,881,652$5,881,652$5,337,891$5,337,891$5,337,891$5,066,450RETIREMENT-UNFUNDED LIAB5024

$5,085,318$5,085,318$5,085,318$4,248,459$4,795,959$4,855,959$3,814,736RETIREE HEALTH BENEFITS5025

$6,457,105$6,457,105$6,516,250$4,426,930$5,294,167$5,526,798$3,879,975MEDICAL INSURANCE5031

$370,045$370,045$372,178$237,355$277,911$279,495$227,924DISABILITY INSURANCE5032

$14,575$14,575$14,760$11,936$15,795$14,072$13,145SHERIFF DEPUTIES DISABILITY5033

$25,000$25,000$27,700$21,303$25,000$25,000$6,660EDUCATION REIMBURSEMENT5034

$411,148$411,148$411,148$667,861$719,705$459,749$593,811OTHER BENEFITS5043

$120,963$120,963$122,559$104,130$114,891$123,105$79,411CLOTHING5111

SALARIES & BENEFITS $58,773,629$59,594,537 $58,773,629$49,115,748$54,097,560$54,765,097$45,462,667

$229,054$229,054$257,327$139,520$173,285$212,693$166,029PERSONAL & SAFETY EQUIPMENT5112

$20,000$20,000$20,000$22,184$17,000$10,000$8,438INMATE CLOTHING5114

$117,835$117,835$129,905$121,194$120,786$121,298$107,661CELL PHONES5122

$450,619$450,619$490,050$376,736$454,070$453,750$399,380FOOD & HOUSEHOLD SUPPLIES5131

$108,000$108,000$108,000$95,745$110,000$114,000$101,055JAIL-HOUSEHOLD5132

$49,500$49,500$49,500$58,506$78,167$49,500$44,662UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE5154

$25,000$25,000$25,000$0$25,000$25,000$0INSURANCE CLAIMS5156

$214,913$214,913$214,913$196,207$196,207$196,207$155,283MEDICAL MALPRACTICE INSURANCE5157

$343,100$343,100$343,100$235,000$236,029$236,029$190,000INSURANCE PREMIUM5158

$20,000$20,000$20,000$18,102$17,110$18,110$15,430JURY EXPENSE5161

$500$500$500$196$500$500$0WITNESS EXPENSE5162

$63,500$63,500$72,700$93,641$144,846$84,200$74,168MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT5171

$7,900$7,900$7,900$6,340$13,654$6,200$10,233MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT-MATER5173

$1,350$1,350$1,350$61$700$1,850$5,482MAINTENANCE - FUEL & LUBRICANT5175

$370,000$370,000$409,055$289,381$266,030$256,750$184,921MAINTENANCE OF COMPUTER SYSTEM5177



BUD002F - BUDGET REQUESTS

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

06/30/202406/30/2023 06/30/2024 06/30/2024 06/30/2025 06/30/2025

-07/01/2022 06/30/2025

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS:

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2025

$40,200$40,200$40,200$41,754$43,900$39,000$29,033MAINTENANCE OF GROUNDS5182

$20,000$20,000$20,000$16,791$17,000$17,000$23,888MAINTENANCE - SHERIFF5184

$5,666$5,666$5,666$5,666$5,666$5,666$5,666MAINT BIG PINE LIBRARY5190

$8,500$8,500$8,500$7,998$8,500$6,000$4,359MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES5191

$89,500$89,500$89,500$32,462$56,000$81,000$39,000MAINTENANCE - COB5196

$84,000$84,000$54,000$17,409$81,610$80,300$28,155MAINT OF STRUCTURES-MATERIALS5199

$42,000$42,000$43,200$38,703$39,700$39,700$37,984MEDICAL, DENTAL & LAB SUPPLIES5201

$72,272$72,272$90,576$65,734$75,162$60,257$42,735MEMBERSHIPS5211

$538,035$538,035$553,384$231,891$691,944$680,285$46,740OFFICE & OTHER EQUIP < $5,0005232

$82,700$82,700$82,700$55,491$70,200$70,200$32,313INFORMATION SERVICES POSTAGE5236

$11,570$11,570$14,520$12,869$75,982$69,465$10,777HEALTH - EMPLOYEE PHYSICALS5260

$90,750$90,750$97,250$60,444$127,036$128,350$73,526ADVERTISING5263

$23,000$23,000$23,000$29,854$33,845$20,000$0ANINMAL CARE SERVICES5264

$7,109,665$7,109,665$7,114,265$5,387,862$9,240,024$7,381,625$3,963,037PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICE5265

$108,294$108,294$108,294$83,475$116,033$67,354$91,380RENTS & LEASES-EQUIPMENT5281

$280,800$280,800$280,800$164,609$213,521$186,000$16,430COPIER LEASE - IS ONLY5285

$221,330$221,330$225,978$268,013$364,441$322,112$305,788OFFICE, SPACE & SITE RENTAL5291

$12,100$12,100$17,100$10,314$12,296$9,500$11,365SMALL TOOLS & INSTRUMENTS5301

$1,432,631$1,432,631$1,430,844$930,690$1,314,437$1,372,449$986,603GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSE5311

$2,500$2,500$2,500$38,786$44,500$88,100$58,343LAW ENFORCEMENT SPECIAL5313

$92,800$92,800$92,800$88,579$88,878$89,800$74,705ELECTION EXPENSE5316

$10,000$10,000$10,000$5,000$10,000$10,000$10,000SPECIAL APPROPRIATION5321

$37,000$37,000$37,000$31,429$37,035$37,000$29,903LIBRARY BOOKS & SUBSCRIPTIONS5325

$0$0$0$6,087$7,854$0$5,057LATE FEES & FINANCE CHARGES5326

$857,295$857,295$915,430$526,749$712,689$692,646$436,757TRAVEL EXPENSE5331

$0$0$3,100$0$500$1,000$236MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT5332

$13,000$13,000$13,000$12,383$24,889$12,889$05150 TRANSPORTS5337

$1,007,269$1,007,269$1,044,540$901,965$1,078,380$1,041,304$1,003,636UTILITIES5351

$15,546$15,546$15,546$8,875$8,875$0$60,000PRIOR YEAR REFUNDS5499

SERVICES & SUPPLIES $14,329,694$14,582,993 $14,329,694$10,734,714$16,454,281$14,395,089$8,890,177

$825,049$825,049$838,499$697,851$762,267$599,462$674,845INTERNAL CHARGES5121

$464,360$464,360$464,360$425,878$425,878$425,878$412,427TECH REFRESH EXPENSE5123

$40,280$40,280$40,280$42,184$45,889$36,944$36,441EXTERNAL CHARGES5124

$0$0$0$0$0$0$2,143MOBILE DEVICE MANAGEMENT-INTER5127

$18,175$18,175$18,175$18,175$18,175$18,175$20,139INTERNAL SHREDDING CHARGES5128



BUD002F - BUDGET REQUESTS

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

06/30/202406/30/2023 06/30/2024 06/30/2024 06/30/2025 06/30/2025

-07/01/2022 06/30/2025

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS:

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2025

$224,950$224,950$224,950$140,410$171,014$162,150$138,581INTERNAL COPY CHARGES (NON-IS)5129

$2,127,679$2,127,679$2,127,679$1,820,547$1,820,547$1,820,547$1,291,487WORKERS COMPENSATION5152

$1,866,798$1,866,798$1,866,798$1,649,123$1,649,123$1,649,123$1,116,391PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE5155

$1,877,533$1,877,533$1,877,533$1,531,807$1,531,807$1,531,807$672,696COUNTY COST PLAN5315

$2,012,909$2,012,909$2,054,240$1,820,785$1,907,785$1,845,867$1,733,625MOTOR POOL5333

INTERNAL CHARGES $9,457,733$9,512,514 $9,457,733$8,146,763$8,332,485$8,089,953$6,098,777

$3,614,108$3,614,108$3,614,108$2,572,003$3,507,347$3,381,600$2,735,764SUPPORT & CARE OF PERSONS5501

$7,500$7,500$7,500$0$7,500$7,500$7,500TECOPA COMMUNITY DAYS5507

$0$0$0$451,976$470,627$283,000$273,169SUPPORT & CARE - 10995508

$40,000$40,000$40,000$40,000$40,000$40,000$40,000ANNUAL NEW CPSP GRANT AWARD5511

$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500BLAKE JONES TROUT DERBY5513

$10,000$10,000$10,000$10,000$10,000$10,000$7,063COMM CONN FOR CHILD CARE5516

$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500INDY FATHERS DAY DERBY5517

$50,000$50,000$50,000$50,000$50,000$40,000$40,000INYO ARTS COUNCIL CONTRIBUTION5520

$88,000$88,000$88,000$26,000$40,000$50,000$26,000LAWS RR MUSEUM CONTRIBUTION5521

$15,000$15,000$15,000$7,830$15,000$15,000$14,011WILD IRIS CONTRIBUTION5523

$15,000$15,000$15,000$15,000$15,000$15,000$15,000TRI COUNTY FAIR/RODEO5528

$635,440$635,440$635,440$610,438$685,440$685,440$642,302TRIAL COURT MOE5529

$8,000$8,000$8,000$8,000$8,000$8,000$8,000CALIFORNIA INDIAN LEGAL SERVIC5531

$5,000$5,000$5,000$5,000$5,000$5,000$5,000EAST SIERRA AVALANCHE SOCIETY5533

$61,500$61,500$61,500$57,033$61,800$61,500$53,022INYO COUNTY FILM COMMISSION5535

$10,000$10,000$10,000$10,000$10,000$10,000$10,000MT. WHITNEY FISH HATCHERY5537

$658,765$658,765$658,765$0$508,326$0$0PENSION LIABI PREFUND5538

$380,304$380,304$440,304$669,255$666,304$606,304$193,305OTHER AGENCY CONTRIBUTIONS5539

$300,000$300,000$300,000$0$300,000$300,000$600,000OPEB CONTRIBUTION5540

$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500LONE PINE EARLY OPENER DERBY5582

$2,500$2,500$2,500$2,500$2,500$2,500$2,500OPENER PRESS REC/RAINBOW DAYS5583

$2,500$2,500$2,500$2,500$2,500$2,500$2,500COORDINATED PROMOTION5584

$8,900$8,900$8,900$8,900$8,900$8,900$8,900VISTITOR GUIDE5585

$8,550$8,550$8,550$8,550$8,550$8,550$8,550CAL HIGH SCHOOL RODEO FINALS5586

$6,075$6,075$6,075$6,075$6,075$6,075$6,075WILD WEST MARATHON5587

$2,525$2,525$2,525$2,525$2,525$2,525$2,525LAWS BENEFIT CONCERT5588

$6,325$6,325$6,325$6,325$6,325$6,325$6,325DEATH VALLEY VISTORS GUIDE5589

$6,725$6,725$6,725$6,725$6,725$6,725$6,725IMAGES OF INYO PHOTO CONTEST5590

$7,000$7,000$7,000$7,000$7,000$7,000$7,000MULE DAYS5592



BUD002F - BUDGET REQUESTS

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

06/30/202406/30/2023 06/30/2024 06/30/2024 06/30/2025 06/30/2025

-07/01/2022 06/30/2025

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS:

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2025

$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500$7,500EASTERN SIERRA BASS FISHING5593

OTHER CHARGES $5,979,717$6,039,717 $5,979,717$4,613,637$6,481,444$5,599,444$4,751,238

$71,025$71,025$71,025$70,309$71,025$71,025$354,250PRINCIPAL ON NOTES PAYABLE5561

DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL $71,025$71,025 $71,025$70,309$71,025$71,025$354,250

$3,076$3,076$3,076$3,790$3,076$3,076$26,529INTEREST ON NOTES5553

DEBT SERVICE INTEREST $3,076$3,076 $3,076$3,790$3,076$3,076$26,529

$0$0$0$0$0$0$164,230LAND5600

$56,000$56,000$20,200$0$0$283,250$0INFRASTRUCTURE5620

$30,500$30,500$80,500$0$28,000$28,000$0STRUCTURES & IMPROVEMENTS5640

$874,717$874,717$924,717$159,040$692,885$648,600$266,652EQUIPMENT5650

$150,000$150,000$230,000$0$14,426$150,000$215,454VEHICLES5655

$392,856$392,856$352,856$30,710$1,150,267$973,867$114,923CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS5700

FIXED ASSETS $1,504,073$1,608,273 $1,504,073$189,750$1,885,578$2,083,717$761,260

$3,082,856$2,609,223$1,914,344$3,357,533$4,046,600$2,913,949$3,829,710OPERATING TRANSFER OUT5801

OTHER FINANCING USES $3,082,856$1,914,344 $2,609,223$3,357,533$4,046,600$2,913,949$3,829,710

$1,140,000$640,000$640,000$0$175,000$1,050,003$0CONTINGENCIES5901

RESERVES $1,140,000$640,000 $640,000$0$175,000$1,050,003$0

EXPENSES:TOTAL $94,341,803$70,174,612 $88,971,353 $91,547,049 $76,232,248 $93,966,479 $93,368,170

FUND: 0001 GENERAL FUND ($385,134) ($7,242,424) $1,738,293 ($9,324,937) ($4,200,000) ($5,173,633)($5,230,003)



BUD002F - BUDGET REQUESTS

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

06/30/202406/30/2023 06/30/2024 06/30/2024 06/30/2025 06/30/2025

-07/01/2022 06/30/2025

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS:

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2025

$69,789,477COUNTY TOTALS FOR REVENUES:

($70,174,612)EXPENSES:

REPORT NET

$83,741,350

($88,971,353)

($385,134)

$84,304,625

($91,547,049)

($5,230,003)

$77,970,541

($76,232,248)

($7,242,424)

$84,641,542

($93,966,479)

$1,738,293

$89,168,170

($93,368,170)

($9,324,937)

$89,168,170

($94,341,803)

($4,200,000) ($5,173,633)



06/30/202506/30/202506/30/202506/30/202406/30/202406/30/2024

BUD002FS - BUDGET REQUESTS

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS: 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2025

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2023

REVENUES:
$174,838 $146,581$143,239 $146,581$146,581$130,829$130,829LOCAL TRANSPORTATION TAX-4061

$1,890,325 $1,800,000$2,105,785 $1,800,000$1,800,000$1,600,000$1,600,000TRANSACTION & USE TAX-4085

$2,065,164 $1,946,581$2,249,024 $1,946,581$1,946,581$1,730,829$1,730,829TAXES - SALES

$36,980 $20,000$17,925 $20,000$20,000$20,000$35,000ROAD PRIVILEGES & PERMITS-4141

$549,817 $540,000$563,819 $540,000$540,000$500,000$500,000COMMERCIAL TRASH COLLECT PRMT-4185

$586,798 $560,000$581,744 $560,000$560,000$520,000$535,000LICENSES & PERMITS

$5,366 $5,000$3,558 $5,000$5,000$5,000$5,000FISH & GAME FINES-4213

$5,366 $5,000$3,558 $5,000$5,000$5,000$5,000FINES & FORFEITURES

$965 $350$369 $350$350$369$100TECOPA COMMUNITY CENTER-4320

$2,700 $3,600$3,804 $3,600$3,600$2,700$2,700AUTO PARKING-4331

$32,825 $34,000$32,576 $34,000$34,000$30,838$34,140HANGER RENT-4333

$1,808 $1,500$1,977 $1,500$1,500$2,000$1,200TIE DOWN FEES-4334

$38,298 $39,450$38,726 $39,450$39,450$35,907$38,140RENTS & LEASES

$283,692 $340,040$605,716 $340,040$340,040$234,129$149,374INTEREST FROM TREASURY-4301

$26,430 $20,515$19,615 $20,515$20,515$19,615$19,615RENTS-4311

$230 $300$2,550 $300$300$1,965$300STATHAM HALL RENT-4316

$755 $500$1,350 $500$500$1,290$600BIG PINE LEGION HALL RENT-4317

$100 $100$65 $100$100$100$100BISHOP SENIOR CENTER RENT-4322

$311,207 $361,455$629,296 $361,455$361,455$257,099$169,989REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY

$40,000 $30,000$30,000 $30,000$30,000$30,000$40,000STATE AID FOR AVIATION-4401

$0 $37,050$0 $37,050$37,050$36,556$37,050SOCIAL SERVICE REALIGNMENT-4420

$701,541 $5,052,607$771,101 $5,052,607$5,052,607$3,344,957$3,344,957REALIGNMENT - 2011-4460

$3,229,600 $3,551,860$3,437,821 $3,551,860$3,551,860$3,574,627$3,574,627STATE HIGHWAY USERS TAX-4471

$3,578,104 $4,164,957$4,147,689 $4,164,957$4,164,957$3,884,077$3,884,077SB1 ROAD MAINT & RMRA-4474

$411,956 $471,070$414,896 $471,070$471,070$484,716$473,406FAMILY SUPPORT REIM - STATE-4478

$288,159 $230,000$190,045 $230,000$230,000$230,000$230,000STATE SUBVENTIONS-4479

$99,098 $914,027$920,581 $914,027$914,027$779,907$779,907REGIONAL SURFACE TRANS FUNDS-4484

$114,319 $662,506$588,006 $662,506$662,506$656,172$656,172STATE GRANTS-4498

$3,747,111 $2,044,908$2,696,990 $2,044,908$2,044,908$4,319,804$4,326,358STATE OTHER-4499

$338,637 $0$349,897 $0$0$237,600$237,600FEDERAL FOREST RESERVE-4521

$1,973 $0$0 $0$0$0$0GRAZING FEES-4531

$946,504 $4,477,100$2,290,743 $4,477,100$4,477,100$5,633,335$5,478,204FEDERAL OTHER-4552

ATTACHMENT B



06/30/202506/30/202506/30/202506/30/202406/30/202406/30/2024

BUD002FS - BUDGET REQUESTS

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS: 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2025

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2023

$740,228 $956,415$748,650 $956,415$956,415$940,080$960,304FAMILY SUPPORT ADMIN REIMBURSE-4554

$261,624 $363,939$5,003 $363,939$363,939$46,425$46,425FEDERAL GRANTS-4555

$1,789,243 $1,977,230$1,933,815 $1,977,230$1,977,230$1,893,941$2,666,701CONTRIBUTION FROM DWP-4563

$82,030 $60,410$38,692 $60,410$60,410$58,000$45,000OTHER AGENCIES-4599

$16,370,132 $24,994,079$18,563,932 $24,994,079$24,994,079$26,150,197$26,780,788AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES

$429,190 $430,000$433,965 $430,000$430,000$435,889$435,889ABATEMENT FEES-4727

$1,165,821 $1,200,000$1,262,740 $1,200,000$1,200,000$1,200,000$1,200,000SOLID WASTE FEES-4728

$256,487 $280,000$290,419 $280,000$280,000$240,000$240,000SW FEES - BISHOP - SUNLAND-4735

$9,514 $10,000$9,442 $10,000$10,000$10,000$10,000SW FEES - BIG PINE TRANSFER-4736

$11,471 $14,000$15,099 $14,000$14,000$11,000$11,000SW FEES - INDEPENDENCE-4737

$46,857 $48,000$50,234 $48,000$48,000$42,000$42,000SW FEES - LONE PINE-4738

$0 $3,500$3,555 $3,500$3,500$3,500$3,500PATIENT PAYMENTS-4742

$35,234 $120,000$112,017 $120,000$120,000$100,000$100,000D.U.I. TRUST-4743

$257,186 $30,000$13,501 $30,000$30,000$150,000$150,000INSURANCE PAYMENTS-4747

$57,135 $52,000$49,400 $52,000$52,000$52,000$52,000SEPTAGE POND FEES-4751

$61,914 $73,165$35,177 $73,165$73,165$8,000$77,238PROJECT REIMBURSABLES-4815

$2,006,208 $2,217,000$2,104,584 $2,217,000$2,217,000$1,972,500$1,920,000MOTOR POOL CHARGES-4818

$106,795 $150,000$113,059 $150,000$150,000$110,000$110,120SERVICES & FEES-4819

$199,839 $267,485$119,480 $267,485$267,485$230,631$280,666INTRA COUNTY CHARGES-4821

$3,002,847 $4,955,556$4,387,445 $4,955,556$4,955,556$4,387,437$4,387,437INTRA COUNTY INSURANCE ADMIN-4822

$522,603 $577,000$539,152 $577,000$577,000$539,152$600,000TECH REFRESH REVENUE-4823

$8,432 $2,000$1,375 $2,000$2,000$1,500$3,000INTER GOVERNMENT CHARGES-4824

$134,716 $230,000$127,308 $230,000$230,000$230,000$230,000OTHER CURRENT CHARGES-4825

$24,657 $22,992$22,992 $22,992$22,992$24,657$24,657INTERNAL SHREDDING REVENUE-4828

$42,964 $60,000$67,654 $60,000$60,000$67,812$48,000SALES OF AVIATION GAS-4931

$5,956 $20,000$25,196 $20,000$20,000$23,000$7,200SALES OF JET A FUEL-4932

$8,385,833 $10,762,698$9,783,801 $10,762,698$10,762,698$9,839,078$9,932,707CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES

$10,000 $0$0 $0$0$0$0CAPITAL REPLACEMENT-4798

$4,985,238 $1,854,779$4,309,229 $5,658,877$5,258,877$5,584,467$5,081,050OPERATING TRANSFERS IN-4998

$4,995,238 $1,854,779$4,309,229 $5,658,877$5,258,877$5,584,467$5,081,050OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

$0 $0$8,119 $0$0$8,120$0PRIOR YEARS REVENUE-4901

$235,312 $180,000$85,128 $180,000$180,000$134,284$160,000SALES OF FIXED ASSETS-4911

$0 $100$0 $100$100$100$100SALES OF COPIES-4922

$51,637 $30,000$27,919 $30,000$30,000$5,000$30,000MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE-4959



06/30/202506/30/202506/30/202506/30/202406/30/202406/30/2024

BUD002FS - BUDGET REQUESTS

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS: 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2025

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2023

$91,885 $0$1,352 $0$0$0$0REIMBURSED EXPENSES-4961

$0 $0$188 $0$0$0$0CASH OVER OR SHORT-4997

$27 $0$27,994 $0$0$15,987$0PRIOR YEARS REIMBURSEMENTS-4999

$378,862 $210,100$150,702 $210,100$210,100$163,491$190,100OTHER REVENUE

REVENUES: $40,734,142$36,310,015 $44,538,240$44,138,240$44,286,068$44,463,603$33,136,902TOTAL

EXPENSES:
$5,496,965 $6,919,652$5,556,055 $6,914,187$6,914,187$6,404,007$6,515,295SALARIED EMPLOYEES-5001

$203,684 $128,282$103,415 $128,282$128,282$230,149$232,649OVERTIME-5003

$18,646 $20,000$14,628 $20,000$20,000$40,300$40,300STANDBY TIME-5004

$21,892 $29,236$25,241 $29,236$29,236$29,083$26,000HOLIDAY OVERTIME-5005

$603,151 $923,122$612,329 $923,122$923,122$847,318$860,928PART TIME EMPLOYEES-5012

$480,569 $610,127$476,602 $609,705$609,705$564,561$570,381RETIREMENT & SOCIAL SECURITY-5021

$781,285 $858,121$712,577 $857,594$857,594$830,911$835,227PERS RETIREMENT-5022

$1,106,806 $1,262,634$1,167,636 $1,262,634$1,262,634$1,167,636$1,167,636RETIREMENT-UNFUNDED LIAB-5024

$671,995 $924,120$639,868 $924,120$924,120$874,642$874,642RETIREE HEALTH BENEFITS-5025

$1,058,964 $1,728,434$1,129,459 $1,727,000$1,727,000$1,465,393$1,484,639MEDICAL INSURANCE-5031

$55,943 $86,945$54,345 $86,883$86,883$65,976$66,382DISABILITY INSURANCE-5032

$163,704 $95,488$110,016 $95,488$95,488$118,714$96,145OTHER BENEFITS-5043

($6,399) $0$4,958 $0$0$0$0COMPENSATED ABSENCE EXPENSE-5045

$10,500,131 $13,586,161$10,607,135 $13,578,251$13,578,251$12,638,690$12,770,224SALARIES & BENEFITS

$16,056 $20,670$15,264 $20,670$20,670$19,705$19,570PERSONAL & SAFETY EQUIPMENT-5112

$31,369 $28,215$28,353 $27,388$27,388$36,861$29,183CELL PHONES-5122

$237,473 $316,000$262,055 $290,000$290,000$281,271$279,000FOOD & HOUSEHOLD SUPPLIES-5131

$7,837 $4,100$7,837 $4,100$4,100$8,051$7,700FIRE & CASUALTY INSURANCE-5153

$7,421 $14,000$31,969 $14,000$14,000$26,034$13,000UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE-5154

$157,397 $425,000$20,715 $425,000$425,000$297,804$297,804INSURANCE CLAIMS-5156

$2,138,399 $3,707,400$2,948,863 $3,707,400$3,707,400$2,948,863$2,890,965INSURANCE PREMIUM-5158

$234,228 $396,550$356,449 $396,550$396,550$405,285$352,600MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT-5171

$337,238 $296,050$293,473 $296,050$296,050$342,311$280,711MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT-MATER-5173

$697,142 $655,000$597,886 $655,000$655,000$692,300$743,000MAINTENANCE - FUEL & LUBRICANT-5175

$169,463 $890,125$360,973 $587,625$587,625$426,185$490,000MAINTENANCE OF COMPUTER SYSTEM-5177

$724,620 $680,000$661,439 $680,000$680,000$656,000$666,000MOTOR POOL FUEL-5178

$1,043 $7,000$702 $7,000$7,000$2,632$5,000MAINTENANCE OF GROUNDS-5182

$212,006 $818,692$358,024 $818,692$818,692$1,229,143$736,192MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES-5191



06/30/202506/30/202506/30/202506/30/202406/30/202406/30/2024

BUD002FS - BUDGET REQUESTS

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS: 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2025

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2023

$35,182 $202,954$38,220 $182,954$182,954$656,335$277,802MAINT OF STRUCTURES-MATERIALS-5199

$21,082 $24,944$20,832 $24,944$24,944$21,770$25,481MEMBERSHIPS-5211

$240,294 $339,900$181,437 $330,650$330,650$273,271$272,700OFFICE & OTHER EQUIP < $5,000-5232

$4,590 $6,900$4,761 $6,400$6,400$9,750$5,750HEALTH - EMPLOYEE PHYSICALS-5260

$34,703 $28,945$4,155 $24,445$24,445$27,500$30,980ADVERTISING-5263

$2,098,196 $3,467,900$2,116,469 $3,468,080$3,468,080$3,399,106$4,290,638PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICE-5265

$264,212 $916,475$843,463 $916,475$916,475$867,607$741,478RENTS & LEASES-EQUIPMENT-5281

$181,709 $222,189$204,398 $222,189$222,189$232,499$232,991OFFICE, SPACE & SITE RENTAL-5291

$16,900 $20,725$18,914 $20,725$20,725$30,100$20,100SMALL TOOLS & INSTRUMENTS-5301

$244,791 $642,500$153,382 $642,500$642,500$195,049$437,500ROAD MATERIALS-5309

$2,173 $60,000$65,659 $60,000$60,000$71,405$50,000ROAD SIGNS & PAINT-5310

$501,284 $654,437$449,464 $654,437$654,437$658,737$669,267GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSE-5311

$124,644 $400,689$371,958 $400,689$400,689$371,958$150,000NON OPERATING-5322

$296 $0$1,205 $0$0$319$0LATE FEES & FINANCE CHARGES-5326

$65,420 $166,595$106,551 $166,595$166,595$161,737$133,730TRAVEL EXPENSE-5331

$144,915 $167,330$119,339 $167,330$167,330$166,281$168,339UTILITIES-5351

$41,399 $65,500$77,665 $65,500$65,500$79,500$51,000FUEL, OIL & WATER FOR RESALE-5361

$0 $74,109$54 $74,109$74,109$55$0PRIOR YEAR REFUNDS-5499

$8,993,494 $15,720,894$10,721,940 $15,357,497$15,357,497$14,595,424$14,368,481SERVICES & SUPPLIES

$698,638 $4,656,449$764,460 $4,656,449$4,656,449$3,021,779$2,961,261INTERNAL CHARGES-5121

$82,738 $102,819$90,583 $102,819$102,819$90,583$90,583TECH REFRESH EXPENSE-5123

$590,283 $795,740$462,102 $795,740$795,740$665,809$768,819EXTERNAL CHARGES-5124

$608 $0$0 $0$0$0$0MOBILE DEVICE MANAGEMENT-INTER-5127

$3,331 $3,089$5,917 $3,089$3,089$3,089$3,089INTERNAL SHREDDING CHARGES-5128

$19,355 $33,450$21,714 $33,450$33,450$29,155$24,600INTERNAL COPY CHARGES (NON-IS)-5129

$153,298 $253,504$241,188 $253,504$253,504$241,188$241,188WORKERS COMPENSATION-5152

$182,131 $315,448$328,228 $315,448$315,448$326,180$326,180PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE-5155

$1,021,138 $1,185,444$1,239,974 $1,185,444$1,185,444$1,239,974$1,239,974COUNTY COST PLAN-5315

$229,588 $248,340$210,743 $248,340$248,340$220,410$232,257MOTOR POOL-5333

$2,981,111 $7,594,283$3,364,911 $7,594,283$7,594,283$5,838,167$5,887,951INTERNAL CHARGES

$34 $0$147 $0$0$76,142$84,526SUPPORT & CARE OF PERSONS-5501

$534,109 $643,895$574,976 $643,895$643,895$854,604$625,116OTHER AGENCY CONTRIBUTIONS-5539

$534,143 $643,895$575,124 $643,895$643,895$930,746$709,642OTHER CHARGES

$224,192 $26,526$103,883 $26,526$26,526$103,884$103,884PRINCIPAL ON NOTES PAYABLE-5561



06/30/202506/30/202506/30/202506/30/202406/30/202406/30/2024

BUD002FS - BUDGET REQUESTS

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS: 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2025

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2023

$224,192 $26,526$103,883 $26,526$26,526$103,884$103,884DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL

$69,574 $226$3,118 $226$226$3,119$3,119INTEREST ON NOTES-5553

$69,574 $226$3,118 $226$226$3,119$3,119DEBT SERVICE INTEREST

$0 $600,000$0 $600,000$600,000$600,000$600,000LAND-5600

$48,239 $526,528$19,866 $526,528$526,528$200,981$472,100INFRASTRUCTURE-5620

$409,120 $0$0 $0$0$0$0LAND IMPROVEMENTS-5630

$668,261 $608,677$561,726 $608,677$608,677$1,164,920$1,709,830STRUCTURES & IMPROVEMENTS-5640

$891,513 $843,446$662,220 $843,446$843,446$1,897,948$1,026,618EQUIPMENT-5650

$70,474 $900,000$614,021 $900,000$900,000$1,720,212$769,500VEHICLES-5655

$1,126,422 $3,758,235$1,834,623 $3,908,235$3,908,235$2,618,749$2,663,749CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS-5700

$34,825 $210,000$1,050,182 $210,000$210,000$2,030,132$1,928,096LONE PINE SIDEWALK ATP-5708

$106,793 $25,000$85,883 $25,000$25,000$436,981$20,000LONE PINE STREETS REHAB-5709

$83,728 $0$1,108,803 $0$0$1,108,879$832,000ONION VALLEY GUARDRAIL PROJECT-5715

$2,147,930 $0$73,228 $0$0$76,516$32,000NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD-5717

$7,874 $15,000$6,200 $15,000$15,000$155,754$15,000CARROLL CREEK-5735

$55,031 $2,825,000$28,593 $2,825,000$2,825,000$3,300,000$3,278,000WALKER CREEK-5736

$160,000 $0$0 $0$0$0$0STATE LINE ROAD-5744

$5,810,215 $10,311,886$6,045,350 $10,461,886$10,461,886$15,311,072$13,346,893FIXED ASSETS

$937,345 $0$0 $0$0$0$0DEPRECIATION-5799

$937,345 $0$0 $0$0$0$0DEPRECIATION

$736,514 $1,491,131$2,287,132 $3,012,089$2,962,089$3,486,945$2,765,759OPERATING TRANSFER OUT-5801

$736,514 $1,491,131$2,287,132 $3,012,089$2,962,089$3,486,945$2,765,759OTHER FINANCING USES

EXPENSES: $49,375,002$33,708,597 $50,674,653$50,624,653$52,908,047$49,955,953$30,786,722TOTAL

($6,136,413)($6,486,413)($8,640,860)NET ($8,621,979)($5,492,350)$2,350,180 $2,601,417



06/30/202506/30/202506/30/202506/30/202406/30/202406/30/2024

BUD002FS - BUDGET REQUESTS

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS: 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2025

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2023

CLOSED
REVENUES:

CLOSED ($6,136,413)($6,486,413)($8,640,860)NET ($8,621,979)($5,492,350)$2,350,180 $2,601,417



06/30/202506/30/202506/30/202506/30/202406/30/202406/30/2024

BUD002FS - BUDGET REQUESTS

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS: 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2025

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2023

INCLUDE
REVENUES:

$26,925 $35,003$33,984 $35,003$35,003$33,984$32,994CABLE TV LEASE-4321

$62,860 $62,900$66,141 $62,900$62,900$61,400$61,400AUTO PARKING-4331

$102,768 $109,452$103,456 $109,452$109,452$106,260$108,790HANGER RENT-4333

$9,420 $9,000$8,868 $9,000$9,000$9,000$10,508TIE DOWN FEES-4334

$1,500 $3,000$1,800 $3,000$3,000$1,800$1,800RENT-A-CAR LEASE-4336

$27,079 $25,000$24,354 $25,000$25,000$25,000$30,000RAMP FEES-4338

$3,622 $3,168$2,376 $3,168$3,168$3,168$3,168HANGAR ONE AERO-4340

$84,274 $90,302$84,265 $90,302$90,302$84,270$110,000LANDING FEES-4342

$164,258 $0$110,528 $0$0$0$0GEOTHERMAL ROYALTIES-4381

$482,707 $337,825$435,772 $337,825$337,825$324,882$358,660RENTS & LEASES

$110,668 $8,000$367,854 $8,000$8,000$8,981$7,000INTEREST FROM TREASURY-4301

$98,688 $121,536$124,706 $121,536$121,536$123,438$123,438RENTS-4311

$9,713 $0$0 $0$0$0$0LEASES-4312

$219,070 $129,536$492,561 $129,536$129,536$132,419$130,438REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY

$0 $188,678$8,845 $188,678$188,678$160,169$160,169REALIGNMENT - 2011-4460

$243,039 $2,711,692$889,161 $2,711,692$2,711,692$2,081,853$1,603,098STATE GRANTS-4498

$261,991 $1,903,510$1,259,988 $1,903,510$1,903,510$2,075,420$620,757STATE OTHER-4499

$0 $10,815$0 $10,815$10,815$10,815$10,815FEDERAL PUBLIC ASSISTANCE ADMN-4501

$2,269,814 $0$2,411,949 $0$0$0$0FEDERAL IN LIEU TAXES-4541

$6,404,708 $266,430$5,931,341 $266,430$266,430$646,439$646,439FEDERAL OTHER-4552

$204,161 $2,618,993$120,908 $2,618,993$2,618,993$877,070$697,962FEDERAL GRANTS-4555

$0 $200,000$0 $0$0$0$0COUNTY CONTRIBUTION-4562

$186,448 $118,000$80,257 $118,000$118,000$118,000$118,000OTHER AGENCIES-4599

$9,570,163 $8,018,118$10,702,451 $7,818,118$7,818,118$5,969,766$3,857,240AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES

$11,312 $8,000$8,250 $8,000$8,000$7,700$11,000RECORDERS MICROGRAPHIC FEES-4703

$8,753 $7,500$7,286 $7,500$7,500$6,600$8,000RECORDERS SYSTEM UPDATE FEES-4704

$818 $2,000$1,798 $2,000$2,000$1,500$0RECORDERS PROGRAM FEE-4706

$22,442 $75,000$0 $75,000$75,000$75,000$75,000FEDERAL MEDICARE MEDICAID-4722

$0 $0$160,692 $0$0$100,000$0INSURANCE PAYMENTS-4747

$833,887 $753,459$850,305 $753,459$753,459$788,864$788,864WATER SERVICE-4801

$10 $0$6 $0$0$6$0NSF CHARGES-4812

$22,939 $20,850$23,646 $20,850$20,850$25,631$20,050SERVICES & FEES-4819



06/30/202506/30/202506/30/202506/30/202406/30/202406/30/2024

BUD002FS - BUDGET REQUESTS

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS: 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2025

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2023

$37,969 $901,730$43,526 $901,730$901,730$45,013$45,013INTRA COUNTY CHARGES-4821

$36,229 $213,116$43,030 $233,116$233,116$43,379$43,379INTER GOVERNMENT CHARGES-4824

$693,265 $297,867$605,332 $297,867$297,867$707,820$707,820OTHER CURRENT CHARGES-4825

$247,239 $240,800$261,060 $240,800$240,800$250,000$200,000SALES OF AVIATION GAS-4931

$1,279,834 $924,000$804,320 $924,000$924,000$975,000$1,200,000SALES OF JET A FUEL-4932

$92 $100$120 $100$100$75$175SALES OF OIL-4933

$392,415 $479,050$496,096 $479,050$479,050$625,000$400,000NON TAX-JET FUEL-MILITARY-4937

$3,587,209 $3,923,472$3,305,474 $3,943,472$3,943,472$3,651,588$3,499,301CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES

$50,000 $0$0 $0$0$0$0CAPITAL REPLACEMENT-4798

$1,933,772 $3,342,673$6,814,641 $5,232,998$5,109,365$9,409,989$3,129,830OPERATING TRANSFERS IN-4998

$1,983,772 $3,342,673$6,814,641 $5,232,998$5,109,365$9,409,989$3,129,830OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

$4,060 $100$43,794 $100$100$0$0SALES OF FIXED ASSETS-4911

$43,156 $32,465$35,124 $32,465$32,465$30,657$0MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE-4959

$0 $0$6,128 $0$0$0$0REIMBURSED EXPENSES-4961

$116 $0$0 $0$0$0$0PRIOR YEARS REIMBURSEMENTS-4999

$47,334 $32,565$85,047 $32,565$32,565$30,657$0OTHER REVENUE

REVENUES: $15,784,189$21,835,949 $17,494,514$17,370,881$19,519,301$10,975,469$15,890,258TOTAL

EXPENSES:
$1,083,057 $1,566,040$1,260,923 $1,566,040$1,566,040$1,468,751$1,543,918SALARIED EMPLOYEES-5001

$13,486 $33,000$14,676 $33,000$33,000$18,000$33,000OVERTIME-5003

$32,399 $34,100$32,940 $34,100$34,100$34,100$34,100STANDBY TIME-5004

$2,044 $3,100$1,349 $2,000$2,000$4,100$4,100HOLIDAY OVERTIME-5005

$125,810 $88,211$75,507 $88,211$88,211$88,276$109,232PART TIME EMPLOYEES-5012

$98,123 $130,587$106,009 $130,587$130,587$128,923$129,406RETIREMENT & SOCIAL SECURITY-5021

$106,364 $189,712$153,821 $189,712$189,712$179,721$180,338PERS RETIREMENT-5022

$162,912 $197,771$178,921 $197,771$197,771$178,921$178,921RETIREMENT-UNFUNDED LIAB-5024

$38,893 $41,817$36,463 $41,817$41,817$47,120$47,120RETIREE HEALTH BENEFITS-5025

$151,934 $291,332$213,348 $291,332$291,332$310,498$315,257MEDICAL INSURANCE-5031

$10,741 $18,593$12,130 $18,593$18,593$15,094$15,094DISABILITY INSURANCE-5032

$42,072 $33,720$34,371 $33,720$33,720$34,026$25,341OTHER BENEFITS-5043

$30,882 $0($15,682) $0$0$0$0COMPENSATED ABSENCE EXPENSE-5045

$1,494,281 $2,627,983$2,104,780 $2,626,883$2,626,883$2,507,530$2,615,827SALARIES & BENEFITS

$316 $28,250$300 $28,250$28,250$24,505$24,255PERSONAL & SAFETY EQUIPMENT-5112



06/30/202506/30/202506/30/202506/30/202406/30/202406/30/2024

BUD002FS - BUDGET REQUESTS

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS: 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2025

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2023

$6,561 $8,348$5,501 $8,348$8,348$7,490$7,122CELL PHONES-5122

($154) $0$92 $0$0$0$0FOOD & HOUSEHOLD SUPPLIES-5131

$0 $4,000$0 $4,000$4,000$0$0FIRE & CASUALTY INSURANCE-5153

$0 $5,000$21,332 $5,000$5,000$2,500$2,500UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE-5154

$8,907 $31,100$3,361 $31,100$31,100$23,100$29,495MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT-5171

$36,017 $520,350$14,653 $520,350$520,350$527,700$22,400MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT-MATER-5173

$0 $2,000$0 $2,000$2,000$0$0MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES-5191

$8,084 $9,500$8,741 $9,500$9,500$13,023$3,000MAINT OF STRUCTURES-MATERIALS-5199

$35,536 $590,732$5,752 $590,732$590,732$171,699$359,465OFFICE & OTHER EQUIP < $5,000-5232

$101 $0$425 $0$0$427$0HEALTH - EMPLOYEE PHYSICALS-5260

$15,573 $56,000$24,486 $56,000$56,000$97,800$42,470ADVERTISING-5263

$0 $2,500$0 $2,500$2,500$0$0ANINMAL CARE SERVICES-5264

$523,561 $4,192,864$1,309,338 $4,242,864$4,192,864$4,655,343$3,917,596PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICE-5265

$16,560 $16,750$12,523 $16,750$16,750$17,060$200RENTS & LEASES-EQUIPMENT-5281

$702,884 $733,173$637,295 $733,173$733,173$981,268$729,447OFFICE, SPACE & SITE RENTAL-5291

$31 $1,600$354 $1,600$1,600$1,800$1,300SMALL TOOLS & INSTRUMENTS-5301

$107,459 $312,625$162,950 $312,625$312,625$257,155$259,936GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSE-5311

$97 $0$19 $0$0$20$0LATE FEES & FINANCE CHARGES-5326

$6,238 $67,958$23,449 $67,958$67,958$53,401$49,426TRAVEL EXPENSE-5331

$54,791 $53,550$54,058 $53,550$53,550$67,650$65,595UTILITIES-5351

$1,436,410 $1,150,000$1,140,992 $1,150,000$1,150,000$1,215,000$1,200,000FUEL, OIL & WATER FOR RESALE-5361

$2,958,978 $7,786,300$3,425,630 $7,836,300$7,786,300$8,116,941$6,714,207SERVICES & SUPPLIES

$75,511 $268,731$134,106 $268,731$268,731$270,019$262,194INTERNAL CHARGES-5121

$20,911 $18,285$17,093 $18,285$18,285$17,093$17,093TECH REFRESH EXPENSE-5123

$49,257 $103,107$55,982 $103,107$103,107$103,002$92,119EXTERNAL CHARGES-5124

$143 $0$0 $0$0$0$0MOBILE DEVICE MANAGEMENT-INTER-5127

$5,724 $9,825$5,063 $9,825$9,825$12,100$8,700INTERNAL COPY CHARGES (NON-IS)-5129

$32,462 $65,357$53,418 $65,357$65,357$53,418$53,418WORKERS COMPENSATION-5152

$47,833 $68,399$62,217 $68,399$68,399$62,217$62,217PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE-5155

$191,660 $312,596$276,476 $312,596$312,596$276,476$276,476COUNTY COST PLAN-5315

$33,486 $100,922$64,568 $100,922$100,922$99,200$86,975MOTOR POOL-5333

$456,989 $947,222$668,925 $947,222$947,222$893,525$859,192INTERNAL CHARGES

$2,023 $190,000$2,543 $190,000$190,000$2,500$2,500SUPPORT & CARE OF PERSONS-5501

$113,820 $351,915$0 $601,915$601,915$1,000,000$0OTHER AGENCY CONTRIBUTIONS-5539

$266,462 $200,000$196,000 $200,000$200,000$196,000$0COMMERICAL AIR SUBSIDY-5543



06/30/202506/30/202506/30/202506/30/202406/30/202406/30/2024

BUD002FS - BUDGET REQUESTS

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS: 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2025

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2023

$382,305 $741,915$198,543 $991,915$991,915$1,198,500$2,500OTHER CHARGES

$247,000 $0$2,604,558 $0$0$2,741,559$285,559PRINCIPAL ON NOTES PAYABLE-5561

$247,000 $0$2,604,558 $0$0$2,741,559$285,559DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL

$151,845 $0$119,745 $0$0$181,165$137,165INTEREST ON NOTES-5553

$151,845 $0$119,745 $0$0$181,165$137,165DEBT SERVICE INTEREST

$0 $9,915$44,464 $9,915$9,915$67,629$0STRUCTURES & IMPROVEMENTS-5640

$39,705 $553,300$81,681 $553,300$553,300$643,292$694,917EQUIPMENT-5650

$76,032 $0$0 $0$0$0$0VEHICLES-5655

$44,328 $3,870,426$1,519,485 $3,870,426$3,870,426$4,190,805$251,449CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS-5700

$160,065 $4,433,641$1,645,631 $4,433,641$4,433,641$4,901,726$946,366FIXED ASSETS

$1,847,168 $0$0 $0$0$0$0DEPRECIATION-5799

$1,847,168 $0$0 $0$0$0$0DEPRECIATION

$3,137,107 $1,016,679$7,179,110 $6,520,165$6,520,165$9,528,686$4,118,742OPERATING TRANSFER OUT-5801

$3,137,107 $1,016,679$7,179,110 $6,520,165$6,520,165$9,528,686$4,118,742OTHER FINANCING USES

$0 $0$0 $0$0$154,000$350,000CONTINGENCIES-5901

$0 $0$0 $0$0$154,000$350,000RESERVES

EXPENSES: $17,553,740$17,946,925 $23,356,126$23,306,126$30,223,632$16,029,558$10,835,741TOTAL

INCLUDE ($11,998,025)($12,421,658)($10,410,411)NET ($19,326,310)($10,546,439)$7,404,697 $6,490,441



06/30/202506/30/202506/30/202506/30/202406/30/202406/30/2024

BUD002FS - BUDGET REQUESTS

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS: 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2025

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2023

NOCOPY
REVENUES:

$0 $0$0 $0$0$68,097$68,097STATE MOTOR VEHICLE IN LIEU TX-4411

$8,514 $113,683$46,842 $113,683$113,683$0$0HEALTH REALIGNMENT-4430

$0 $98,501$0 $98,501$98,501$0$0REALIGNMENT - 2011-4460

$391,477 $931,725$562,021 $931,725$931,725$1,056,801$974,000STATE GRANTS-4498

$0 $0$57,964 $0$0$143,113$143,113STATE OTHER-4499

$228,487 $508,009$405,657 $508,009$508,009$466,141$487,600FEDERAL GRANTS-4555

$628,479 $1,651,918$1,072,486 $1,651,918$1,651,918$1,734,152$1,672,810AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES

$122,733 $0$0 $0$0$0$0 PROCEEDS FROM LEASE CONTRA-4991

$0 $36,196$7,485 $0$0$51,315$59,986OPERATING TRANSFERS IN-4998

$122,733 $36,196$7,485 $0$0$51,315$59,986OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

$521 $0$0 $0$0$0$0PRIOR YEARS REIMBURSEMENTS-4999

$521 $0$0 $0$0$0$0OTHER REVENUE

REVENUES: $1,688,114$1,079,971 $1,651,918$1,651,918$1,785,467$1,732,796$751,734TOTAL

EXPENSES:
$217,816 $577,191$428,531 $577,191$577,191$505,168$532,310SALARIED EMPLOYEES-5001

$390 $0$0 $0$0$0$0STANDBY TIME-5004

$0 $12,692$7,419 $12,692$12,692$10,000$0PART TIME EMPLOYEES-5012

$16,138 $46,276$32,880 $46,276$46,276$40,431$41,438RETIREMENT & SOCIAL SECURITY-5021

$24,886 $63,511$46,370 $63,511$63,511$59,762$61,848PERS RETIREMENT-5022

$49,820 $83,559$77,324 $83,559$83,559$77,324$77,324RETIREMENT-UNFUNDED LIAB-5024

$26,476 $51,686$44,301 $51,686$51,686$46,736$46,736RETIREE HEALTH BENEFITS-5025

$53,807 $149,577$98,087 $149,577$149,577$135,098$139,894MEDICAL INSURANCE-5031

$1,873 $6,600$3,807 $6,600$6,600$4,687$4,844DISABILITY INSURANCE-5032

$4,749 $8,041$13,179 $8,041$8,041$12,155$4,103OTHER BENEFITS-5043

$395,958 $999,133$751,902 $999,133$999,133$891,361$908,497SALARIES & BENEFITS

$1,511 $0$0 $0$0$0$0PERSONAL & SAFETY EQUIPMENT-5112

$3,498 $3,249$5,010 $3,249$3,249$6,191$6,744CELL PHONES-5122

$45 $0$0 $0$0$0$0FOOD & HOUSEHOLD SUPPLIES-5131

$333 $1,310$699 $1,310$1,310$1,000$1,310MEMBERSHIPS-5211

$0 $21,834$0 $21,834$21,834$0$82,948OFFICE & OTHER EQUIP < $5,000-5232

$302 $750$272 $750$750$1,043$900HEALTH - EMPLOYEE PHYSICALS-5260

$97 $4,800$8,759 $4,800$4,800$16,028$26,765ADVERTISING-5263



06/30/202506/30/202506/30/202506/30/202406/30/202406/30/2024

BUD002FS - BUDGET REQUESTS

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS: 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2025

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2023

$78,802 $196,738$169,830 $196,738$196,738$551,437$527,235PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICE-5265

$30,959 $12,713$11,116 $12,713$12,713$14,101$11,816OFFICE, SPACE & SITE RENTAL-5291

$14,113 $66,939$55,447 $66,939$66,939$90,771$125,474GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSE-5311

$0 $0$257 $0$0$0$0LIBRARY BOOKS & SUBSCRIPTIONS-5325

$14 $0$0 $0$0$0$0LATE FEES & FINANCE CHARGES-5326

$19,096 $77,859$33,590 $77,859$77,859$72,887$88,168TRAVEL EXPENSE-5331

$9,810 $1,670$6 $1,670$1,670$6,334$2,774UTILITIES-5351

$158,586 $387,862$284,993 $387,862$387,862$759,792$874,134SERVICES & SUPPLIES

$53,991 $125,379$54,528 $125,379$125,379$162,589$143,304INTERNAL CHARGES-5121

$4,569 $7,304$5,598 $7,304$7,304$5,598$5,598TECH REFRESH EXPENSE-5123

$12,861 $0$0 $0$0$0$0EXTERNAL CHARGES-5124

$90 $0$0 $0$0$0$0MOBILE DEVICE MANAGEMENT-INTER-5127

$959 $3,700$1,917 $3,700$3,700$3,625$2,200INTERNAL COPY CHARGES (NON-IS)-5129

$5,126 $20,745$17,273 $20,745$20,745$17,273$17,273WORKERS COMPENSATION-5152

$7,957 $21,759$20,369 $21,759$21,759$20,369$20,369PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE-5155

$59,112 $170,232$36,810 $170,232$170,232$41,465$36,810COUNTY COST PLAN-5315

$7,981 $13,000$9,886 $13,000$13,000$14,674$11,875MOTOR POOL-5333

$152,649 $362,119$146,382 $362,119$362,119$265,593$237,429INTERNAL CHARGES

$0 $0$10,000 $0$0$10,000$0OTHER AGENCY CONTRIBUTIONS-5539

$0 $0$10,000 $0$0$10,000$0OTHER CHARGES

$44,000 $0$0 $0$0$0$0PRINCIPAL ON NOTES PAYABLE-5561

$44,000 $0$0 $0$0$0$0DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL

$0 $47,000$79,546 $47,000$47,000$176,610$28,800EQUIPMENT-5650

$122,733 $0$0 $0$0$0$0COMPUTER SOFTWARE CAPITAL OUTL-5664

$96,168 $67,988$70,850 $67,988$67,988$301,258$184,148CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS-5700

$218,901 $114,988$150,397 $114,988$114,988$477,868$212,948FIXED ASSETS

EXPENSES: $1,864,102$1,343,675 $1,864,102$1,864,102$2,404,614$2,233,008$970,096TOTAL

NOCOPY ($12,210,209)($12,633,842)($10,586,399)NET ($19,945,457)($11,046,651)$7,186,334 $6,226,737



06/30/202506/30/202506/30/202506/30/202406/30/202406/30/2024

BUD002FS - BUDGET REQUESTS

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS: 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2025

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2023

NOSCHED2
REVENUES:

$83,892 $74,253$90,485 $74,253$74,253$74,253$74,253CURRENT SECURED TAXES-4001

$7,815 $7,200$7,555 $7,200$7,200$7,181$7,200CURRENT UNSECURED TAXES-4004

$5,935 $2,000$1,875 $2,000$2,000$2,000$2,000SB813 DISTRIBUTIONS-4008

$827 $250$589 $250$250$250$250PRIOR YEAR SECURED TAXES-4021

($5,460) $19$125 $19$19$19$0PRIOR YEAR UNSECURED TAXES-4023

$93,009 $83,722$100,630 $83,722$83,722$83,703$83,703TAXES - PROPERTY

$14,280 $4,600$29,462 $4,600$4,600$4,600$4,600INTEREST FROM TREASURY-4301

$0 $200$0 $200$200$200$200EQUIPMENT RENTAL-4310

$14,280 $4,800$29,462 $4,800$4,800$4,800$4,800REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY

$378 $210$368 $210$210$210$210HOMEOWNERS PROPERTY TAX RELIEF-4472

$378 $210$368 $210$210$210$210AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES

$12,677 $0$0 $0$0$0$0INSURANCE PAYMENTS-4747

$55,790 $56,031$55,976 $56,031$56,031$56,031$56,031SEWER SERVICE/CONNECTION FEES-4753

$68,467 $56,031$55,976 $56,031$56,031$56,031$56,031CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES

REVENUES: $144,763$186,437 $144,763$144,763$144,744$144,744$176,136TOTAL

EXPENSES:
$12,273 $10,747$11,718 $10,747$10,747$12,296$12,296SALARIED EMPLOYEES-5001

$0 $400$0 $400$400$400$400HOLIDAY OVERTIME-5005

$905 $855$861 $855$855$974$974RETIREMENT & SOCIAL SECURITY-5021

$2,137 $1,944$2,118 $1,944$1,944$2,249$2,249PERS RETIREMENT-5022

$804 $917$847 $917$917$847$847RETIREMENT-UNFUNDED LIAB-5024

$2,559 $2,301$2,813 $2,301$2,301$2,882$2,882MEDICAL INSURANCE-5031

$117 $124$111 $124$124$116$116DISABILITY INSURANCE-5032

$216 $219$216 $219$219$219$219OTHER BENEFITS-5043

$19,015 $17,507$18,685 $17,507$17,507$19,983$19,983SALARIES & BENEFITS

$1,684 $3,000$0 $3,000$3,000$3,000$3,000MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT-MATER-5173

$0 $29,000$0 $29,000$29,000$29,000$29,000MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES-5191

$0 $1,000$0 $1,000$1,000$1,000$1,000ADVERTISING-5263

$2,180 $72,500$58,619 $72,500$72,500$106,000$72,500PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICE-5265

$415 $3,030$329 $3,030$3,030$3,030$3,030GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSE-5311

$23,993 $25,500$24,066 $25,500$25,500$25,000$25,000UTILITIES-5351



06/30/202506/30/202506/30/202506/30/202406/30/202406/30/2024

BUD002FS - BUDGET REQUESTS

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS: 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2025

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2023

$28,273 $134,030$83,015 $134,030$134,030$167,030$133,530SERVICES & SUPPLIES

$15,130 $19,200$9,088 $19,200$19,200$19,200$19,200EXTERNAL CHARGES-5124

$201 $335$315 $335$335$315$315WORKERS COMPENSATION-5152

$319 $618$608 $618$618$608$608PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE-5155

$0 $29,827$18,688 $29,827$29,827$18,688$18,688COUNTY COST PLAN-5315

$15,650 $49,980$28,699 $49,980$49,980$38,811$38,811INTERNAL CHARGES

$0 $70,000$0 $70,000$70,000$70,000$70,000CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS-5700

$0 $70,000$0 $70,000$70,000$70,000$70,000FIXED ASSETS

$13,818 $0$0 $0$0$0$0DEPRECIATION-5799

$13,818 $0$0 $0$0$0$0DEPRECIATION

EXPENSES: $271,517$130,400 $271,517$271,517$295,824$262,324$76,758TOTAL

NOSCHED2 ($12,336,963)($12,760,596)($10,713,153)NET ($20,096,537)($11,164,231)$7,285,713 $6,282,775



06/30/202506/30/202506/30/202506/30/202406/30/202406/30/2024

BUD002FS - BUDGET REQUESTS

RUNDATE: 06/30/2024 TODAY'S DATE: 09/17/2024

FOR FISCAL YEARS: 07/01/2022 - 06/30/2025

YTD BOARD WORKING YTD DEPT CAO BOARD
ACTUALS APPROVED BUDGET ACTUALS REQUESTED RECOMM APPROVED

COUNTY OF INYO

06/30/2023

REVENUES:COUNTY TOTALS FOR

EXPENSES: ($42,669,318)

REPORT NET

($76,166,398)

($12,336,963)

($76,066,398)

($12,760,596)

($69,064,361)

($10,713,153)

($53,129,598)

$6,282,775

($85,832,117)

$63,829,435$63,305,802$58,351,208$59,412,373$65,735,580$57,316,612

($68,480,843)

($20,096,537)($11,164,231)

$49,955,032

$7,285,713



RESOLUTION No. 2024-30                

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS,

COUNTY OF INYO, 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA,

ADOPTING THE FINAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

WHEREAS, the Government Code requires the County to conduct Budget Hearings prior to adopting a 
Final Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Government Code requires the Final Budget to be adopted no later than October 2nd 
of each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors has conducted and concluded Budget Hearings on 
September 10, 2024, and has received input and recommendations and, at the conclusion of the 
Budget Hearings, directed the preparation of the Final Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Final Budget has been prepared in accordance with the Government Code and the 
Board of Supervisors’ directions during Budget Hearings; and

WHEREAS, the Final Budget specifies all of the following: appropriations by objects of expenditure 
within each budget unit, except for capital assets that are appropriated at the subobject level pursuant 
to Government Section 29008; other financing uses by budget unit; Intrafund transfers by budget unit; 
transfers-out by fund; appropriations for contingencies, by fund; provisions for nonspendable, 
restricted, committed, and assigned fund balances, by fund and purpose; and the means of financing 
the budget requirements; and

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors desires to approve the Final Budget as presented 
by the Budget Officer and the Auditor-Controller.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Inyo County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the Fiscal Year 
2024-2025 Final Budget for the County of Inyo as set forth in the attached documents, which are incorporated herein 
by reference.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 24th day of September, 2024, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

_____________________________________
Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisors

Attest:   N a t h a n  G r e e n b e r g  
         C l e r k  o f  t h e  B o a r d

          ________________________________________     
            Darcy Ellis, Assistant Clerk to the Board



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-602  

 

Contract between the County of Inyo and Eastern Sierra 
Engineering for the Lone Pine American's with 

Disabilities Act Sidewalk Project  
Public Works 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Kevin Rainbolt, Engineering Assistant Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) Ratify and approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Eastern Sierra Engineering of 
Reno, NV for the provision of material testing services in an amount not to exceed $109,750 for the 
period of May 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal 
Year 2024-2025 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign; and 
B) Authorize staff to pay last fiscal year's (2023/2024) outstanding invoices from Eastern Sierra 
Engineering dated June 5, 2024, in the amount of $15,461.10, and July 8, 2024, in the amount of 
$31,921.76. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Your Board approved a contract with Eastern Sierra Engineering (ESE) for design work and material 
testing on the Lone Pine Sidewalk Construction and ADA Improvement Project on August 18, 2020 for 
the period of August 18, 2020 through August 18, 2023. Unfortunately, the discovery of the contract 
being expired didn't occur until May 2024 and services are still being provided by ESE.  This new 
contract will provide the ongoing services to be carried out on the Lone Pine Sidewalk project for material 
testing, construction oversight services and providing project as-builts through the end of December 
2024. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund  Budget Unit 034601 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code 5708 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure through contract completion  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Full contract in the amount of $109,750. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
None 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Lone Pine ADA Sidewalks project is nearing completion with Eastern Sierra Engineering (ESE) 
continuing work even after the original contract expired. Failing to follow through with this contract could 
jeopardize the County's relationship with ESE and future projects needing engineering or testing 
services. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
Thriving Communities | Community Supporting Infrastructure Improvements 
 
APPROVALS: 
Kevin Rainbolt Created/Initiated - 9/10/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/10/2024 
Kevin Rainbolt Approved - 9/10/2024 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 9/10/2024 
Shannon Platt Approved - 9/10/2024 
Keri Oney Approved - 9/10/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 9/11/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/11/2024 
Michael Errante Approved - 9/12/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 9/13/2024 
 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Eastern Sierra Engineering Contract (LP Sidewalk Project No. 2) 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

















































 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-714  

 

Management and Non-Represented Resolution 
Regarding Changes to Health Insurance 

County Administrator - Personnel 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer Keri Oney, Assistant Personnel Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Resolution No. 2024-30 titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State 
of California, Setting Certain Salary and/or Terms of Conditions of Employment for Management and 
Non-Represented Employees Employed in the Several Offices or Institutions of the County of Inyo, 
which shall Amend Resolution No. 2024-05," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Historically, the Management and Non-Represented employees have been considered a "me-too" group 
for the benefits provided to the Inyo County Employee Association (ICEA). Your board has approved a 
side letter with ICEA providing for the same Health Insurance Premium benefits as outlined in this 
Resolution amendment. This Resolution amendment only changes the first sentence in Article 9 (b) for 
Resolution 2024-05 and all other terms and provisions of Article 9(b) remain unchanged and in effect. 
This resolution change is essential to ensure that our Management and Non-Represented employees 
can fully utilize the benefits provided during the upcoming open enrollment period. Missing this 
enrollment period would prevent employees from taking advantage of the revised health plan 
contributions for an entire year, potentially leading to financial strain. Implementing this Resolution 
amendment now is crucial to aligning with the open enrollment timeline.  
 
The Resolution amendment makes the following changes:  
The County will cover 75% of the premium for the PERS Platinum health plan, with employees 
responsible for the remaining 25%. 
The County will cover 80% of the premium for the PORAC health plan, with employees responsible for 
the remaining 20%. 
The County will cover 100% of the premium for the PERS Gold or EPO health plans. 
 
This Resolution amendment is consistent with the side letters your Board just recently approved for three 
other bargaining units (ICCOA, ICEA and ICPPOA) with which we are currently engaged in MOU 
negotiations.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Funding  
Source 

General Fund / Non-General Fund Budget Unit Multiple Budgets 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code 5031 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure   
If Sole Source, provide justification below 
 
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Potential savings up to $4,600 for the current fiscal year. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
Continued savings for future fiscal years. 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve the Resolution. This is not recommended, as employees would 
not be able to change health insurance plans and take advantage of the insurance premium changes 
during the open enrollment period for the upcoming 2025 calendar year. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
Economic Enhancement I Local Businesses, Organizations, and Workforce. 
 
APPROVALS: 
Keri Oney Created/Initiated - 9/10/2024 
Denelle Carrington Approved - 9/11/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/13/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 9/13/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/16/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 9/17/2024 
 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution No. 2024-30 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-30 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 

SETTING CERTAIN SALARY AND/OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT FOR 

MANAGEMENT AND NON-REPRESENTED EMPLOYEES EMPLOYED IN THE SEVERAL OFFICES 

OR INSTITUTIONS OF THE COUNTY OF INYO, WHICH SHALL SUPERSEDE ANY PRIOR 

RESOLUTIONS PERTAINING TO THAT SUBJECT TO THE EXTENT THEY ARE INCONSISTENT 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors, pursuant to Government Code section 25300, shall prescribe the 

compensation of all county officers and shall provide for the number, compensation, tenure, appointment, and 

conditions of employment of all County employees; and 

WHEREAS, there are Management and Non-Represented employees of the County of Inyo; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors desires to prescribe the compensation, tenure, appointment and/or 

conditions of employment for Management and Non-Represented employees, excluding, Appointed Officials and 

Board of Supervisors;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby replaces the first sentence only in 

Article 9 (b) of Resolution 2024-05 with the following:  

“The County agrees to pay seventy-five percent (75%) of the premium for the PERS Platinum health plan. 

Employees will be responsible for the remaining twenty-five percent (25%) of the premium. The County 

agrees to pay eighty percent (80%) of the premium for the PORAC health plan. Employees will be 

responsible for the remaining twenty percent (20%) of the premium. The County agrees to pay one 

hundred percent (100%) of the premium for the PERS Gold or EPO health plans.” 

All other terms and provisions of Article 9(b) shall remain unchanged and in effect. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of September 2024 following vote of the Inyo County Board of 

Supervisors: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

_______________________________________________________ 

Matt Kingsley, Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisor 

Attest:  Nate Greenberg 

    Clerk of the Board 

BY: ______________________________ 

        Darcy Ellis, Assistant Clerk of the Board 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-724  

 

Appointed Officials Resolution Regarding Changes to 
Health Insurance 

County Administrator - Personnel 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer Keri Oney, Assistant Personnel Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Resolution No. 2024-31 titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State 
of California, Amending Resolution 2006-06 And Setting Salary and/or Terms of Conditions of 
Employment for Appointed Officials Employed in the Several Offices or Institutions of the County of 
Inyo," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Historically, the Appointed Officials have been considered a "me-too" group for the benefits provided to 
the Inyo County Employee Association (ICEA). Your board has approved a side letter with ICEA 
providing for the same Health Insurance Premium benefits as outlined in this Resolution amendment. 
This Resolution amendment only adds a subsection e. to ARTICLE 9. INSURANCE BENEFITS. All other 
terms and provisions of Article 9 remain unchanged and in effect. This resolution change is essential to 
ensure that our Appointed Officials can fully utilize the benefits provided during the upcoming open 
enrollment period. Missing this enrollment period would prevent employees from taking advantage of the 
revised health plan contributions for an entire year, potentially leading to financial strain. Implementing 
this Resolution amendment now is crucial to aligning with the open enrollment timeline.  
 
The Resolution amendment makes the following changes:  
The County will cover 75% of the premium for the PERS Platinum health plan, with employees 
responsible for the remaining 25%. 
The County will cover 80% of the premium for the PORAC health plan, with employees responsible for 
the remaining 20%. 
The County will cover 100% of the premium for the PERS Gold or EPO health plans. 
 
This Resolution amendment is consistent with the side letters your Board just recently approved for three 
other bargaining units (ICCOA, ICEA and ICPPOA) with which we are currently engaged in MOU 
negotiations.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding  
Source 

General Fund / Non-General Fund  Budget Unit Multiple Budgets  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5031 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure Sole Source?  
If Sole Source, provide justification below 
 
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Potential savings of up to $9,300 for the current fiscal year.  
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
Continued savings for future fiscal years.  
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve the Resolution. This is not recommended, as employees would 
not be able to change health insurance plans and take advantage of the insurance premium changes 
during the open enrollment period for the upcoming 2025 calendar year. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
Economic Enhancement I Local Businesses, Organizations, and Workforce 
 
APPROVALS: 
Keri Oney Created/Initiated - 9/17/2024 
Denelle Carrington Approved - 9/17/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/17/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 9/17/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/17/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 9/17/2024 
 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution No. 2024-31 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
AMENDING RESOLUTION 2006-06 SETTING CERTAIN SALARY AND/OR TERMS AND 

CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT FOR APPOINTED OFFICIALS EMPLOYED IN THE SEVERAL 
OFFICES OR INSTITUTIONS OF THE COUNTY OF INYO

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors, pursuant to Government Code section 25300, shall prescribe the 
compensation of all county officers and shall provide for the number, compensation, tenure, appointment, and 
conditions of employment of all County employees; and

WHEREAS, Appointed Officials are employees of the County of Inyo; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors desires to change the compensation, tenure, appointment and/or 
conditions of employment for Appointed County Officials; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby amends Article 9. Insurance 
Benefits by adding subsection e. as follows:  

e. “The County agrees to pay seventy-five percent (75%) of the premium for the PERS Platinum 
health plan. Employees will be responsible for the remaining twenty-five percent (25%) of the premium. 
The County agrees to pay eighty percent (80%) of the premium for the PORAC health plan. Employees 
will be responsible for the remaining twenty percent (20%) of the premium. The County agrees to pay one 
hundred percent (100%) of the premium for the PERS Gold or EPO health plans.”

All other terms and provisions of Article 9 shall remain unchanged and in effect.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of September 2024 following vote of the Inyo County Board of 
Supervisors:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

_______________________________________________________

Matt Kingsley, Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisor

Attest:  Nate Greenberg
    Clerk of the Board

BY: ______________________________
        Darcy Ellis, Assistant Clerk of the Board



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

September 24, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-728  

 

ADDENDUM  25A) Retiree Health Benefits Resolution 
County Administrator - Personnel 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Personnel Keri Oney, Assistant Personnel Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 Approve Resolution No. 2024-32, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State 
of California, Rescinding and Replacing Resolutions 2003-23 and 2014-31, and Fixing the Employer's 
Contribution for Employees and the Employer's Contribution for Annuitants at the Same Amounts," and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
It has come to staff's attention that the County is currently out of compliance with the provisions of its 
PERS contract concerning retiree health benefits. In order to address this issue and ensure compliance, 
it is necessary to update the existing resolution governing retiree health benefits. This update will bring 
the County into alignment with the terms set forth by CalPERS and allow the County to meet its 
contractual obligations. Immediate action is recommended to rectify this situation and avoid any further 
non-compliance risks. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding  
Source 

General Fund and Non-General Fund Budget Unit Various 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5025 - Retiree 
Health 

Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure Sole Source? N/A 
If Sole Source, provide justification below 
 
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Retiree Health Benefits are currently budgeted based on prior year actuals and known retirements. This 
change assumes a cost savings. However, because retirees will have the option to change plans, the 
actual savings or costs cannot be calculated at this time.  
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
Continued savings 
Additional Information 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve this resolution, which would extend the County's non-
compliance. Continued noncompliance could result in termination of the County's contract with CalPERS, 
which would have significant implications for the workforce and overall operations. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
Not Applicable 
  
 
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 9/18/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/18/2024 
Keri Oney Approved - 9/18/2024 
Denelle Carrington Approved - 9/18/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 9/18/2024 
Amy Shepherd New -  
Nate Greenberg 

 

 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Retiree Health Contribution Resolution 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, RESCINDING AND REPLACING RESOLUTIONS 2003-23 AND 2014-

31, AND FIXING THE EMPLOYER’S CONTRIBUTION FOR EMPLOYEES AND THE 
EMPLOYER’S CONTRIBUTION FOR ANNUITANTS AT THE SAME AMOUNTS 

 
              WHEREAS, Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a local agency 
contracting under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act shall fix the amount of 
the employer’s contribution; and 
 

WHEREAS, The County of Inyo, is a local agency contracting under the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, In Resolutions 2003-23 and 2014-31, the County of Inyo previously 
established the amount of Inyo County’s employer contributions for its employees and annuitants;  
and 
 
              WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors desires to rescind and replace 
Resolutions 2003-23 and 2014-31, and change the amount of the employer’s contribution for 
employees and annuitants to be equal.  
 
              NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
as follows: 
 

1. The employer’s contribution for each employee shall be as set forth below: 
Code: Bargaining Unit (Current Employees): Contribution Per Month: 
001 – Inyo County Employees Association  100% of the maximum premium amount 

for basic family coverage under the PERS 
Gold and Blue Shield EPO health plans. 
75 % of the maximum premium amount 
for the basic family coverage under the 
PERS Platinum health plan. 

002 – Deputy Sheriffs Association 80% of the maximum premium amount 
for the basic family coverage under the 
PERS Platinum, PERS Gold and PORAC 
and Blue Shield EPO health plans.  

004 – Inyo County Employees Association 
CPAR  

100% of the maximum premium amount 
for basic family coverage under the PERS 
Gold and Blue Shield EPO health plans. 
75 % of the maximum premium amount 
for the basic family coverage under the 
PERS Platinum health plans. 

005 – Elected Officials Assistants Association 100% of the maximum premium amount 
for basic family coverage under the PERS 
Gold and Blue Shield EPO health plans. 
75 % of the maximum premium amount 
for the basic family coverage under the 
PERS Platinum health plans. 

006 – Law Enforcements Administrators 
Association 

80% of the maximum premium amount 
for the basic family coverage under the 
PERS Platinum, PERS Gold and PORAC 
health plans.  

007 – Elected, Appointed, 100% of the maximum premium amount 



Unrepresented/Management for basic family coverage under the PERS 
Gold and Blue Shield EPO health plans. 
75 % of the maximum premium amount 
for the basic family coverage under the 
PERS Platinum health plans. 

008 – Correctional Officers Association 100% of the maximum premium amount 
for basic family coverage under the PERS 
Gold and Blue Shield EPO health plans. 
80% of the maximum premium amount 
for the basic family coverage under the 
PORAC health plan. 
75 % of the maximum premium amount 
for the basic family coverage under the 
PERS Platinum health plan. 

009 – Probation Peace Officers Association 100% of the maximum premium amount 
for basic family coverage under the PERS 
Gold and Blue Shield EPO health plans. 
80% of the maximum premium amount 
for the basic family coverage under the 
PORAC health plan. 
75 % of the maximum premium amount 
for the basic family coverage under the 
PERS Platinum health plan. 

701 – Employee Association Non-PERS 80% of the maximum premium amount 
for basic single/employee only coverage 
under the PERS Platinum, Pers Gold, and 
Blue Shield EPO health plans. 

 
2. The employer’s contributions for each annuitant shall be in the amount equal to the dollar 

value of greatest available benefit provided to the respective annuitant’s employee unit as 
set forth below:   

Code: Bargaining Unit (Annuitants): Contribution Per Month: 
001 – Inyo County Employees Association  Up to 75% of the maximum premium 

amount for basic family coverage under the 
PERS Platinum health plan. 

002 – Deputy Sheriffs Association Up to 80% of the maximum premium 
amount for the basic family coverage under 
the PERS Platinum health plan.  

004 – Inyo County Employees Association 
CPAR  

Up to 75% of the maximum premium 
amount for basic family coverage under the 
PERS Platinum health plan. 

005 – Elected Officials Assistants 
Association 

Up to 75% of the maximum premium 
amount for basic family coverage under the 
PERS Platinum health plan. 

006 – Law Enforcements Administrators 
Association 

Up to 80% of the maximum premium 
amount for the basic family coverage under 
the PERS Platinum health plan.  

007 – Elected, Appointed, 
Unrepresented/Management 

Up to 75% of the maximum premium 
amount for basic family coverage under the 
PERS Platinum health plan. 

008 – Correctional Officers Association Up to 75% of the maximum premium 



amount for basic family coverage under the 
PERS Platinum health plan. 

009 – Probation Peace Officers Association Up to 75% of the maximum premium 
amount for basic family coverage under the 
PERS Platinum health plan. 

 
               
             PASSED AND ADOPTED on this _____ day of _______ 2024, by the Inyo County 
Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:   
                                               
                                              _______________________________________________ 

Matt Kingsley, Chairperson 
                                                  Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
NATE GREENBERG 
Clerk of the Board 
 
 
By:  ________________________________ 
         Darcy Ellis, Assistant 


	 Call to Order
	1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s) Comments 

	 Closed Session
	2) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursu
	3) Conference with Real Property Negotiators – Pursua
	4) Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litiga
	5) Public Employee Performance Evaluation – Pursuant 

	 Open Session
	6) Pledge of Allegiance
	7) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law
	8) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	9) County Department Reports

	 Consent Agenda
	10) Minutes from the September 10, 2024 Meeting
	Agenda Request Form
	Draft September 10, 2024 Minutes

	11) Support for Reconnecting Communities Grant and Res
	Agenda Request Form
	Draft Resolution  2024-28 -  Reconnecting Communities
	Letter Supporting Reconnecting Communities Grant

	12) Authorization to Apply for Cybersecurity Grant
	Agenda Request Form

	13) Local Area Technical Assistance Grant Phase 2-A Co
	Agenda Request Form
	Request for Proposals/Broadband Expansion Projects: Phase 2A - Design
	LATA Phase 2A Contract - 151 Design Professional Consultant - Onward 
	AND INYO NETWORKS, INC D/B/A ONWARD
	INTRODUCTION
	Project Deliverables
	Subprojects List



	14) Approval of Renewal of Land Mobile Radio Site Leas
	Agenda Request Form
	First Amendment to Antenna Site Agreement/Inyo County Road 
	Second Amendment to Antenna Site Agreement/Inyo County EMS
	Second Amendment to Antenna Site Agreement/Inyo County Sheriff
	Sole Source Authorization Form
	Sole Source


	15) Approval of Purchase of Land Mobile Radios for the
	Agenda Request Form
	BlackPoint L.L.C. Quote/Handheld Radio Equipment
	BlackPoint L.L.C. Quote/Kng M-150 Remote Mount
	Sole Source Authorization Form 
	Sole Source


	16) Electrical Cost Sharing Agreement with Caltrans fo
	Agenda Request Form
	Meadow Farms Lighting Agreement 

	17) Amendment No. 2 to the Contract between the County
	Agenda Request Form
	Cardno Inc. Contract Amendment No. 2
	Cardno Inc. Contract Amendment No. 1
	Budget Amendments/Cardno Inc. Contract 

	18) Accuracy of an Estimate for Sidewalk Railing Fabri
	Agenda Request Form
	Lone Pine  Guardrail Project Quote/Bishop Welding Services

	19) Annual Special Event Permit for the Big Pine High 
	Agenda Request Form
	Special Event Permit No. SE24-14 
	Parade Route

	20) Temporary Closure of Tinnemaha Road/Old Highway 39
	Agenda Request Form
	Encroachment Permit No. E24-56

	21) 2024 Patrol and Controlled Substance Annual Operat
	Agenda Request Form
	Forest Service Modification No. 008 
	Forest Service Modification No. 007


	 Regular Agenda
	22) Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Final Board 
	Agenda Request Form
	Attachment A - Board Approved General Fund Budget 24-25
	Attachment B - Board Approved Non-General Fund Budget 24-25
	Budget Adoption/Resolution No. 2024-29

	23) Contract between the County of Inyo and Eastern Si
	Agenda Request Form
	Eastern Sierra Engineering Contract (LP Sidewalk Project No. 2)

	24) Management and Non-Represented Resolution Regardin
	Agenda Request Form
	Resolution No. 2024-30

	25) Appointed Officials Resolution Regarding Changes t
	Agenda Request Form
	Resolution No. 2024-31


	 Additional Public Comment & Reports
	26) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	27) Board Member and Staff ReportsReceive updates on r


		2024-09-10T15:01:45-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


	Sole Source Justification: Mountain Investments is the only radio facility on Cerro Gordo.
		2024-09-16T15:20:48-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


	Sole Source Justification1: Blackpoint LLC qualifies as a sole source vendor because of their unique capabilities and prior experience. Specifically:

In terms of unique capabilities, it is the only radio vendor able to get to Bishop in 2.5 hour or less and Independence in 3 hours or less, which is required for both new equipment (programming and training) and for equipment already in use (updates, maintenance, support and troubleshooting). In addition, BlackPoint LLC has exclusive distribution rights for certain radio equipment vendors in our area.

In terms of prior experience, only this vendor has intimate knowledge of both how the County's radio systems operate and of the County's operating procedures, especially those of our first responders: the Sheriff's Office, volunteer fire departments, and the Bishop area ALS and BLS ambulance service. Moreover, this is the vendor that services the Bishop Police Department, which is a critical point of interoperability.

For the above reasons there is no credible alternative to this vendor. 
		2024-09-05T16:16:25-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


		2024-09-12T15:44:43-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


		2024-09-12T09:27:40-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


	Text1: 
	Text11: 
	Text12: California Dept. of Fish & Wildlife
	Text2: 
	Text3: 787 N. Main St., Ste. 220, Bishop, CA 93514
	Text4: 760-872-1171
	Text5: 4
	Text6: Barricade
	Text7: 
	Text8: We will be capturing Sierra bighorn by helicopter for population monitoring. 
	Text9: The helicopter will land on the road, with animals on a long line, and we will examine the sheep to assess
	Text10: health, as well as mark them for demographic studies, at a temporary base on the side of the road.
	Text111: Tinemaha Rd./Old Highway 395, ~6 miles south of Aberdeen 
	Text121: 
	Text13: 
	Text14: 
	Text15: 
	Text16: 
	Text17: 2
	Text18: Road Closed Ahead Sign
	Text19: 
	Text20: 
	Text21: 
	Text22: 
	Text23: 
	Text24: 
	Text25: 10/10/2024


